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improvement in net income from 2003

B We create solutions that redefine
8 the early detection and clinical
. management of cancer.
o ol o o 1Y Corporate Profile: TriPath Imaging, Inc.,
"} i headquartered in Burlington, North Carolina,
" develops, manufactures, markets and sells propri-
5 E - etary products for cancer detection, diagnosis,
i E i staging and treatment selection. Our revenues are
primarily generated today from the sale of our
SurePath™ liquid-based Pap test and other cervi-
cal cytology screening products. Our broad‘ba’sed
gene discovery program was created to develop
(! o s oed Y
S{;gss Margin new molecular diagnostic products for the early
detection and clinical management of malignant
§ melanoma and cancers of the cervix, breast, ovary
s
gg g g o and prostate. Our molecular diagnostic products
® 0%

are at various stages of development. We do expect

to generate revenues from some of these reagents

and instruments in 2005. We believe that sales

- related to these products may significantly impact
Earnings/(Loss)
Per Share our growth in 2006 and beyond.




Selected Consolidated Financial Data®™

Statement of Operating Data vears ended December 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues $ 32,652 $ 27,017 $ 37,485 $53,764 $68,504
Gross profit 16,529 13,921 22,563 35,387 47,274
Research and development @ . 9,629 7,828 10,259 14,295 15,162
Selling, general and administrative 23,867 28,777 30,786 30,011 31,778
Operating income/(loss) (16,967) (22,684) (18,482) (8.919) 334
Net income/(loss) $(17,369) $(21,680) $(18,064) $(8,538) $ 605
Earnings/(loss) per share (diluted) ® $ (0.60) $ (0.61) $ (0.48) $ (0.23) $ .02
VVeighted-average shares outstanding (diluted) 29,137 35467 37,438 37.626 39,151
Balance Sheet Data as of December 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(in thousands)

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 54,340 $ 55,976 $ 32,571 $20,954 $18,949
Working capital 62,316 62,898 38,837 33,446 35,909
Total assets 97,471 96,748 73,951 65,928 67,534
Long-term obligations 3,760 5,001 220 8 -
Total stockholders’ equity $ 80,774 $ 77,291 $ 59,177 $52,371 $58,546

{)) The selected consolidated financial data presented above should be read in conjunction with
Item 7 — *Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resules of
Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto, each of which
are included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(2) Includes regulatory expenses.

(3) See Note 2 of Notes to our consclidated finandal statements for information concerning the
compurtation of earnings/(loss) per share and shares used in computing earnings/(loss) per share.
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Paul

. Sohmer, M.D.

To Our Shareholders: | am pleased to
report that we achieved both of our overriding
objectives for 2004: 1) to drive our company to
profitability, and 2) to create multiple pathways
for growth in 2005 and beyond.

Our financial results were outstanding.

2004 was the first profitable year in our
history, with eamings per share of $0.02, reflecting
a $9.1 million improvement in net income from
2003. We grew our revenues by 27%, primarily as
a result of a 35% increase in revenues generated
from the worldwide sales of SurePath reagents
and disposables. Gross profit grew nearly 34% as
we maintained a gross margin on incremental
revenues in excess of 80%. Our commercial oper-
ations segment generated operating income in
excess of $14.7 million, an $11.1 million increase
from 2003. We reported our first three profitable
quarters, our first two cash flow positive quarters
and a nearly 83% reduction in our cash burn for
the year as compared to 2003. Our financial per-
formance was clearly driven by our continued
revenue growth and aggressive management of

our manufacturing and operating expenses.

gross
inecremental

While our financial results are striking, we
believe that our most significant accomplish-
ments were those that define our pathways for
growth in 2005 and beyond.

We began to penetrate the large commer-
cial laboratory segment in the U.S., a market
segment to which we had only limited access in
the past. After signing multi-year agreements
with Quest Diagnostics, Laboratory Corporation
of America, and LabOne over the last 18
months, our SurePath sales to large commercial
laboratories increased 92% from 2003 and
accounted for approximately 24% of all SurePath
cervical cytology test kits sold in the U.S. as
compared to 16% in 2003.

We initiated expansion of our U.S.-based
sales force to leverage the opportunity for growth
created by our growing relationship with the
large commercial laboratories and to meet the
challenge associated with expanding our cervical
cytology business in this heavily contested
market segment while maintaining and growing
our business within our traditional customer
base. When we complete this expansion in the
first half of 2005, we will have nearly doubled
the number of our sales representatives who call
on clinicians.

We continued to gain momentum outside
the U.S. Our international sales grew 32% from

2003. We continued to penetrate new markets,

margin on

revenues




We reported our first three
profitable quarters,and our first

two cash flow positive quarters.

We began to penetrate the
large commercial laboratory
segment in the US, a
market segment to which

we had only limited access

in the past.



reduction

including the U.K., where we have signed five
multi-year SurePath contracts, and to consoli-
date our leadership position in others, such as
Canada. Qur fastest growing market was Asia,
where sales grew 63% from 2003.

We continued to enhance our cervical
cytology products. We received FDA approval for
expanded claims for our SurePath liquid based
Pap test to include the spatula and brush combi-
nation as an alternative to the cervical broom
collection device, and pre-coated slides for pro-
cessing by our PrepStain™ slide processor. We
submitted Premarket Approval Supplement
applications to the FDA for our FocalPoint™ GS
Imaging System and for human papillomavirus
(HPV) testing of cells collected using the
SurePath test pack with the Digene hc2
High-Risk HPV DNA Test™. After having
withdrawn our HPV submission, we are currently
in discussions with the FDA regarding additional
data and/or information that they may require,
with the goal of resubmission at the earliest
possible date.

We began to fill our product pipeline with
our molecular diagnostic reagents and imaging
systems as data generated from in-house research
studies provided early-stage evidence of the

validity of our biomarker discovery process.

1

n ¢cash burn

Qur PrecEx C and ProEx Br analyte specific
reagents (ASRs), which incorporate molecular
biomarkers that measure the over-expression of
certain proteins that are associated with the
development of cancer, are scheduled to be
released in the U.S. in the first half of 2005. We
expect to launch our slide-based cervical and
breast cancer staging assays and our molecular
cytology imaging system outside the U.S. in the
second quarter of 2005 following receipt of the
relevant international regulatory approvals. We
also plan on releasing our blood-based ovarian
cancer screening reagents for research use only
(RUOQO) in the latter half of 2005. We anticipate
initiating clinical trials to collect data that could
support applications for pre-market approval for
our slide-based breast staging and cervical screen-
ing assays in the latter half of 2005 and are hope-
ful that these assays can be launched in the U.S. in
the latter half of 2006 and in 2007, respectively.
We continued to develop significant corpo-
rate relationships. We entered into a worldwide
agreement with Ventana Medical Systems, Inc.
(Ventana) pursuant to which Ventana has agreed
to sell a Ventana-branded version of our interac-
tive histology imaging system which quantifies
molecular biomarkers in histologic tissue sec-
tions. We expect that Ventana will launch this
product in the second quarter of 2005, pending
FDA 510(K) premarket clearance for processing
of their estrogen and progesterone assays on the
system. Our agreement with Ventana provides for
potential capital equipment and fee-per-use
revenues beginning in 2005. Ventana's success

will also ensure that an installed base of our




molecular imaging systems is in place, along with
a battery of complementary assays from Ventana,
in advance of the introduction of our slide-based
breast staging assay.

The strength of our performance in 2005
will be measured by the extent to which we are
successful in leveraging these opportunities for
growth while continuing to balance the costs
associated with effective research, development,
marketing and selling programs with revenue
growth. We expect that our growth in 2005 will
again be driven by the sale of SurePath reagents
and disposables and will primarily result from
accelerated penetration of the large commercial
laboratory segment in the U.S., expansion of our
sales force in the U.S. and accelerated market
penetration outside the U.S. While our molecu-
lar diagnostic products did not materially impact
revenues in 2004, we do expect to generate rev-
enues from some of these reagents and instru-
ments in 2005. We believe that these revenues
will result from the initial market introduction of
our ProEx C and ProEx Br ASRs in the U.S,,
introduction of our staging reagents and molecu-
lar cytology imaging system outside the U.S,,
and the anticipated launch of the Ventana-

branded version of our interactive histology

imaging system.

Our performance in 2004
highlights the remarkable
progress that we have made

over the last five years.

Looking beyond 2005, we continue to
believe that sales related to our molecular
diagnostic reagents and imaging systems may
significantly impact our growth in 2006 and
beyond. Future sales of our molecular diagnostic
products will be driven, in part, by a number of
events and milestones that we expect to occur in
2005, including the presentation and publication
of data generated from in-house and external
research studies on the performance of our cervi-
cal and breast staging assays, completion of the
development of our cervical screening assay and
molecular imaging system, initiation of clinical
trials of our cervical screening and breast staging
assays, the release of RUO reagents for ovarian
cancer screening and identification of a high-
volume testing platform for our blood-based
screening assays.

QOur performance in 2004 highlights the
remarkable progress that we have made over the
last five years and demonstrates that we have the
vision, the plan, and the discipline to get the job
done. We have great expectations for 2005.

As always, we greatly appreciate the ongo-
ing support of our shareholders, customers and

employees. Thank you very much.

e

Paul R. Sohmer, M.D.
Chairman of the Board, President,
and Chief Executive Officer



Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31
(In thousands, except:share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:;
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and notes receivable, net
Inventory, net
Other current assets
Total current assets

Customer use assets, net
Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Patents, less accumulated amortization of $3,752 and $3,085
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively
Other intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of
$1,229 and $1,066 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue and customer deposits
Deferred research and development funding
Current portion of debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares
authorized; none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.01 par value;
98,000,000 shares authorized; 38,127,501 and 37,855,967
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Deferred compensation
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s
Annudl Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2004

2004 2003
$ 18,949 $ 20954
13,643 13,650
10,723 10,896
1,582 1,495
44,897 46,995
7,688 6,634
3,290 3418
3,777 488
5,792 6,459
2,090 1,934

$ 67,534 $ 65,928
$ 3,668 $ 4425
3,750 7,378
1,851 1,499

- 207

19 40

8,988 13,549

- 8

381 379
290,114 285,035
(1) (52)
(232,418) (233,020)
477 29
58,546 52,371
$ 67,534 $ 65,928




Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Research and development
Regulatory

Sales and marketing
General and administrative

Operating income/(loss)
Interest income

Interest expense

Net income/(loss)

Earnings/(loss) per common share (basic and diluted)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004

2004 2003 2002
$68,504 $53,764 $ 37,485
21,230 18,377 14,922
47,274 35,387 22,563
11,280 8,861 7,534
3,882 5,434 2,725
18,640 18,324 19,850
13,138 11,687 10,936
46,940 44,306 41,045
334 8919 (18,482)
289 413 969
(18) (32) (551
$ 605 $(8,538) $(18,064)
$ 0.02 $ (0.23) $ (0.48)




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 2004 2003 2002
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income/(loss) $ 605 $ (8,538) $(18,064)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
in operating activities:

Depreciation 4,097 3,539 3,044
Amortization of intangible assets 830 817 817
Amortization of deferred compensation i 26 39
Non-cash equity compensation - 49 -
Amortization of non-cash sales discount 519 - -
Amortization of deferred research and development (207) (2,479) (2,479)
Amortization of non-cash debt issuance costs - - 225
Loss (Gain) on disposal of fixed assets 24 13 (3)
Other non-cash items - - 885
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 199 (4.183) 233
Inventory (3,503) (3,122) (3.005)
Other current assets 702 (1,01t) 603
Other long-term: assets (692) 443 (28)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (4,521) 3,927 (767)
Deferred revenue and customer deposits 46 395 373
Other current liabilities - (2.410) -
Net cash used in operating activities (1,900) (12,534) (18,127)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (0,205) (146) (2.251)
Disposals of property and equipment - - 5
Additions to other intangible assets (319) - -
Sales of short-term investments - - 2,499
Other (7) 196 -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,541) 50 253
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of commeon stock under employee stock purchase plan 246 359 84
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants 969 1,235 152
Proceeds from debt 365 633 -
Payments on debt and leases (394) (1,384) (3,286)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,186 843 (3,050)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 250 24 I8
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,00%) (11,617) (20,906)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 20,954 32,571 53,477
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 18,949 $ 20,954 $ 32,571

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest $ 18 $ 32 $ 326

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Re-pricing of warrants issued as consideration under

term loan agreement $ - $ - $ (350)
Issuance of warrants as consideration under incentive sales agreement $ 3,896 $ - $ -
$_3,896 s - s (350)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2004
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Johnny D. Powers, Ph.D.
Senior Vice-President and General Manager,

TriPath Oncology

Ray W. Swanson
Senior Vice-President, Commercial Operations

BCARD OF DIRECTORS

Paul R. Sohmer, M.D.
Chairman of the Board

Haywood D. Cochrane, Jr.
Vice Chairman,
I-trax, Inc.
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Richard A. Franco, R. Ph. @®
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Former Chairman, President and CEQO,
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Trimeris, Inc.; Former Vice President and
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Retired Senior Vice President of Finance,
Chiron Diagnostics Corporation
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REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.
59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038

(800) 937-5449

www.amstock.com

The Transfer Agent is responsible for
handling registered shareholder ques-
tions regarding lost stock certificates,
address changes, and changes of owner-
ship or name in which shares are held.

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Copies of the Company’s Form 10-K,
Forms 10-Q, quarterly earnings releases,
or other recent news releases may be
obtained through the corporate home-
page, www.tripathimaging.com, by

calling (866) TRI-PATH or by writing to:

Investor Relations

TriPath Imaging, Inc.

780 Plantation Drive

Burlington, North Carolina 27215
investorrelations@tripathimaging.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Ernst & Young, LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
LEGCAL COUNSEL

Palmer & Dodge LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
STOCK SYMBOL

TriPath Imaging common stock trades
on the Nasdaq National Market under
the symbol “TPTH”.

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will
be held on Tuesday, May 24, 2005 at
10:00 A.M. at the Country Suites,

3211 Wilson Drive, Burlington,

North Carolina.

ANNUAL REPORT INFORMATION

The 2004 Annual Report is presented
using a summary format intended to
provide information about TriPath
Imaging in a concise manner. The
audited financial statements and
detailed analytical schedules are
contained in TriPath Imaging’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31, 2004.

Copies of the Form 10-K are being
distributed to shareholders together with
and as part of the 2004 Annual Report.
Additional copies of the Form 10-K are
available by contacting the Investor
Relations Department.

FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS

Investors are cautioned that statements in this annual report that are
not strictly historical statements constitute forward-looking state-
ments which involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results and outcomes to differ materiafly from what is expressed in
those forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements
indude, without limitation, those related to the efficacy and market
acceptance of TriPath imaging's products, TriPath Imaging's product
development efforts, TriPath imaging’s ability o maintain and grow its
business, the anticipated timing of product launches, and expected drivers
of growth. important factors that may affect TriPath Imaging’s operating
results include, without limitadon: TriPath Imaging may not receive
revenues when or in the amounts anticipated; TriPath Oncology and
its collaborators may not prioritize or launch products as or when
expected; TriPath Imaging and TriPath Oncology’s products may not
receive FDA or other required regulatory approval when expected, if at
all; TiPath Imaging may be unable w increase sales and revenues at its
historical rates; expenses may exceed expectations and TriPath Imaging
may not maintain profitability; changes in general economic conditions
or the healthcare industry may occur that adversely affect TriPath
Imaging’s customers’ purchasing plans; TriPath Oncology may be unable
o successfully develop and commercialize products when anticipated, if
at all; TriPath Imaging's products may not achieve market acceptance to
the degree anticipated; competition and competitive pricing pressures
may limit TriPath Imaging’s flexibility with respect to the pricing of its
products: TriPath Imaging may need to obtain additional financing in
the future: TriPath Imaging may not be able to develop and to protect
adequately its proprietary technology: and other risks detailed in
TriPath Imaging’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including those described in TriPath Imaging’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

earnings per share
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As used 1n th1s report the terms ‘we,” “us,” “our,” “TriPath Imaging” and the i‘Company” mean
TnPath Imagmg, Inc. and its subsidiaries, unless the context indicates another meaning.

Note Regardmg Trademarks

We have registered trademarks in the Unlted States for AutoCyte® AutoCyte Quic®, CytoRlch®
ImageT1ter® PAPMAPS®, PrepMate® SlideWizard®, and TriPath Imaging®. We have pending
US. trademark appl1cat10ns for /. Series™, FocalPoint™, PrepStain™, ProEx™, SureDetect™, SurePath™,
TnPath Cire Technologles and TriPath Oncology™. Foreign reg1strat1ons are maintained for several of our
trademarks in Argentina, Austraha Brazil, Canada, Chile, China, the European Union, Finland, Hong Kong,
Indonema,‘lsrael Japan, Malaysia, Norway, the Russ1an Federation, South Africa, Sweden, Sw1tzerland
Taiwan; and the United Kingdom. We have pendlng foreign trademark applications for FocalPoint™
Series™, PAPNET®TM "PrepStain™; SurePath™, ProExTM and TriPath Care Technologies™. In addmon to
trademark actrvrty, we 1nclude a copyright notice on all of our documentatmn and operating software. There
can, be 1o assurance that any trademarks or copyrrghts that we own will prov1de competitive advantages for our
products or w111 not be challenged or ¢ircumvented by our compe’ntors All other products and company names
are trademarks of therr respectrve holders
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PART I

Item 1. Business

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements, including statements regarding
our results of operations, research and development programs, clinical trials and collaborations. Statements
that are not historical facts are based on our management’s current expectations, beliefs, assumptions,
estimates, forecasts and projections. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future perform-
ance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could cause actual results to differ
significantly from those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause or
contribute to these differences include those described in the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting Estimates” and in “Factors
Affecting Future Operating Results” attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated by reference into this
Form 10-K. You should not place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as the
date of this report. We undertake no obligation to update these statements to reflect events or circumstances
occurring after the date of this report or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by
law.

The Company’s Internet website is www.tripathimaging.com. Information on the Company’s website is
not a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. As soon as reasonably practical after they are filed or
furnished with the SEC, the Company makes available free of charge on its website, or provides a link to, the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K,
and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act. To access these filings, go to the Company’s website and click on “Investor
Resources,” then click on “SEC Filings.” Alternatively, interested parties may request, in writing, a copy of
this Form 10-K, without charge. Such requests should be made to TriPath Imaging, Inc., Attn: Investor
Relations, 780 Plantation Drive, Burlington, North Carolina 27215.

The Company

We create solutions that redefine the early detection and clinical management of cancer. Specifically, we
develop, manufacture, market, and sell proprietary products for cancer detection, diagnosis, staging, and
treatment selection. We are using our proprietary technologies and expertise to create an array of products
designed to improve the clinical management of cancer. We have developed and marketed an integrated
solution for cervical cancer screening and other products that deliver image management, data handling, and
prognostic tools for cell diagnosis, cytopathology and histopathology. We have created new opportunities and
applications for our proprietary technology by applying recent advances in genomics, biology, and informatics
to our efforts to develop new molecular diagnostic products for malignant melanoma and cancers of the cervix,
breast, ovary, and prostate. : ,

We are organized into two operating units: (1) Commercial Operations, through which we manage the
market introduction, sales, service, manufacturing and ongoing development of our current products; and
(2) TriPath Oncology, our wholly-owned subsidiary through which we manage the development and market
introduction of molecular diagnostic products for cancer. >

Our Commercial Operations unit is a commercial engine organizcd to grow sales, drive margin and
generate cash. TriPath Oncology is the development engine of a broad based gene discovery program created
to develop new molecular diagnostic products for the early detection and clinical management of cancer. Our
revenues are primarily generated today through our Commercial Operations from the sale of our SurePath
liquid-based Pap test and other cervical cytology screening products. The products and services that we are
developing in TriPath Oncology did not materially impact revenues in 2004; however, we do expect to generate
revenues from some of these reagents and instruments in 2005 and continue to believe that sales related to
products developed by TriPath Oncology may significantly impact our growth in 2006 and beyond.

2




"We provrde financial information by segment and geographrc area in Note 8 to our Consolidated
Flnan01al Staternents 1ncluded in Item 8 of thls report We are mcorporatrng that information into this section |
by reference G
Our Products o _ »
Cervrcal Cytology Product Line (formerly the l Serles Product Line)

Our cemcal cytology product lme includes the followmg products

The SurgPath; T est Pack

Our SzlrePath Test Pack is a proprietary, liquid-based cytology sample collection, preservation and
transport system ‘that cons1sts of 'the SurePath liquid-based Pap test, a sample collection vial, proprietary
preservative: solution’ and sample collection dévice. SurePath addresses errors in cell sample collection and
slide. preparat1on while providing a liquid medium for performmg additional laboratory tests. SurePath slides
show a statlstlcally srgmﬁcant reduction of unsatisfactory cases compared to conventional slides. During a
clinical exam, a physician or nurse will collect a sample of endocervical and ectocervical cells, using a cervical
broom or spatula and brush combination collection device. Once -collected, the health practitioner detaches
the removable hcad of the collection device and places it into the vial containing our proprietary SurePath
preservatwe fluid, thereby retaining al] of the cells collected. The lid of the vial is then fastened and the vial is
then transported ito, a clinical laboratory for follow-on processing on the PrepStain system. The SurePath
11qu1d based Pap test was approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for slides
prepared usmg the PrepStain Slide Processor in June 1999. In 2001, SurePath was approved by the FDA for
manual shde processing in which the cell suspension obtained by using the SurePath Test Pack is layered onto
the slide and stained by a prep technician. In May 2003 we received FDA approval for expanded labeling
claims to include study data showing a 64.4% (p<<0. 000()1) increase in detection of High.Grade Squamous
Intraeplthehal and more serious lesions (HSIL+), as compared to the conventional Pap smear. In June 2004,
we recelved FDA 'approval for expanded labeling claims to include ‘the -use of the spatula and brush
combrnatlon device for collectmg cervical cells as an alternative to the ‘previously approved cervical broom
collection. devrce All SurePath devices come with detachable heads to ensure 100% of the collected sample is
sent to the laboratory for processmg ' ‘ :

P

PrepStam Sltde Processor

Our PrepSzam Slide Processor is an automated shde preparatron system that produces slides with a
standard1zed thm layer of stained cervrcal cells. It consists of proprietary reagents, plastic disposables and
automated eq\npment for preparing a thin-layer of cemcal cells on a SurePath microscope slide. Once
received i in the; laboratory, the sample is thoroughly mixed, resulting i in a homogenized and randomized cell
suspensron wh1ch ‘1s removed from the vial and layered onto a proprietary liquid density reagent in a plastic
centrrfuge tube usmg our patented synnge device. Batch density gradlent centrifugation is then conducted on
the celltsuspensmn to ‘remove excess blood, inflammatory cells and other debris from the sample. Once
centnfuganon is, completed the laboratory technician places the. centrifuge tubes containing the separated
dlagnostlc cells onto an ‘automated pipetting system. Th1s pipétting system then distributes the cervical cells in’
a thin- layer on the mrcroscope slide. At this stage, drscrete staining of the slides can be carried out by the
PrepStam system or Staining can be performed off line from the PrepStain using alternative staining
1nstrumentat10n PrepStaln is currently capable of prepanng approxrmately 48 discretely stained or 96 un-
stained thm -layer slides in approximately one hour. A SurePath slrde typically contains approximately 50,000
to 100 000 dragnostlc cells that are distributed unrformly over a 13- nnlhmeter diameter circle. The PrepStain
Slide Processor or. PrepStain, reduces the comple)oty of interpretation by providing a homogeneous more
representatrve and standardized thin layer of stained cells. The FDA approved PrepStain in June 1999. In
early 2005, we rece1ved FDA approval for expanded clalms to include the processing of pre-coated slides.

The PrepMate system an accessory to PrepStam is designed to automate pre-processing steps in the
preparation. of SurePath thin-layer slides. PrepMate .automatically mixes and removes specimens from the
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SurePath preservative fluid vials, and layers the specimens onto the SurePath density reagent in a test tube for
automated slide preparation and staining. The PrepMate accessory is intended to reduce the time required to
prepare samples for processing on the PrepStain instrument. The FDA approved the PrepMate accessory in
May 2001.

In August 2004, we submitted new clinical data to the FDA in support of a supplemental filing to our
Pre-Market Approval (PMAS) for the PrepStain System to include approval of testing of cervical cells
collected using the SurePath Test Pack for high-risk human papilloma virus (HPV) DNA with the Digene
Corporation (Digene) hc2 High-Risk HPV DNA Test™. In February 2005, we announced that we had
withdrawn this submission. This action was taken after we, through discussions with the FDA, learned that
additional clinical information and analyses would be required which had not been part of the original protocol
accepted by the agency. The decision to withdraw is a procedural step and we are currently in discussions with
the FDA about the additional data or information requirements. We intend to advance these discussions and
evaluate the required additional data or information, with the goal of resubmission of the PMAS at the earliest
possible date. There can be no assurance that our re-submission, if or when made, will receive thé required
regulatory approvals, when anticipated, if at all.

FocalPoint Imaging System

Our FocalPoint Imaging System is a computerized imaging system that applies proprietary technology to
screen SurePath or conventionally prepared Pap smear slides by identifying those slides that have the highest
likelihood of abnormality. The FocalPoint Slide Profiler was approved by the FDA for primary screening of
conventional Pap smears in May 1998 and for SurePath slides in October 2001. The FocalPoint GS Imaging
System, which combines the automated sorting and ranking capability of the currently approved FocalPoint
Slide Profiler with FocalPoint GS location guided screening of areas of interest, was introduced outside of the
U.S. in the fourth quarter of 2000.

Our FocalPoint Slide Profiler is an automated primary screening device that combines computerized
video nﬁcroscbpy and image interpretation to distinguish between normal and abnormal SurePath liquid based
and conventionally prepared Pap test slides. The FocalPoint Slide Profiler is intended to sort and rank slides
based on the likelihood of abnormality, distinguish slides that need further cytotechnologist review from those
that require ‘No Further Review’ (up to 25% least likely to be abnormal), and to identify slides in an enriched
quality control population (a minimum of 15% of slides with a highest likelihood of being abnormal) for a
directed quality control (QC) review. In addition, sorting, ranking, adequacy and other slide information
provided by the FocalPoint Slide Profiler facilitates the manual microscopic review of slides designated for full
microscopic review. ‘

Our FocalPoint GS Imaging System (FocalPoint GS) combines the automated sorting and ranking
capability of the FocalPoint Slide Profiler with a rapid screen of areas of interest, or Fields of View (FOV), on
slides designated for review by the FocalPoint Slide Profiler. The FOV location coordinates and associated
images are communicated via a network connection from the FocalPoint Slide Profiler to a designated
FocalPoint GS Review Station that has been equipped with commercially available microscopes and
. computer-controlled automated stages for FOV review. FOV’s determined by the FocalPoint GS to
demonstrate the highest likelihood of abnormality are presented for a focused microscopic review that allows
the cytotechnologist to quickly analyze the slide for the presence of cellular abnormality. Abnormal findings
thus identified can be confirmed by full microscopic review. If no abnormality is identified during this rapid
cytologic assessment, no further review is required. In October 2004, we submitted clinical data to the FDA in
support of a PMAS for the FocalPoint Slide Profiler to expand our claims to include approval of the
FocalPoint GS Imaging System. Review of this submission is currently pending. There can be no assurance
that the FocalPoint GS system will receive the required regulatory approvals for sale in the United States,
when anticipated, if at all. We currently market FocalPoint GS to certain markets outside the US.




SlideWiiard Product Line

Our Slzdeszard product line consists of personal computer- _based applications focused on the quantifica-
t1on of the nuclear DNA content of cells and the detection and quantification of specific molecules in cells or
tissue sections’ (1mmunohrstochem1stry and’ 1mmunocytochemrstry assays), the management and archiving of
images ' and patrent information, the exchange of data via telepathology and the creation of comprehensive
reports combrmng color images and patient data. Qur Shderzard lme of products include:

rTelepathology Module a module for the transm1ss1on and. 1nterpretat10n of high-resolution images
‘ captured at remote sites for teachmg and research ce

. Mo
STy

Ve Quantltallve Image Cytometry- DNA an applrcatlon that performs quantitative analysrs of DNA by
quant1fy1ng nuclear texture and morphology,

e’ Quantztanve Image Cytometry-]mmuno an apphcatron that offers general purpose image analysis
that i is ideal for recognition and quantification of virtually any stain application on a variety of biologic
‘ matenals :

i

D e Imagether a method to quantitatively measure abnormally high levels of antinuclear antibodies
through trtratron emulation” as.an md1cat10n for a variety of immune system problems; and

. Slzdeszartz’ an electromc dottmg and labelrng system

We recerved pre market notification, or 510(k) clearance through one of our predecessor companies in
November 1995 to market the' Image Titer for automating antinuclear antibody testing. Our DNA and
immuno- quantification applications are presently offered “For Research Only” in the United States. We
currently. do not‘tmeet the InVitro Diagnostics Directive requirements to sell and place the SlideWizard
applications in 1Europe (except in combination with the FocalPoint GS). Specifically, a SlideWizard
workstation is also a component of the FocalPoint GS system that is currently sold only outside the United
States. We may elect to pursue regulatory clearance to market additienal SlideWizard applications currently
under development or: developed by us in the future. ‘

Molecular\ Dragnostrcs Products I L

‘ Our molecular dragnostrc products did not materrally 1mpact revenues in 2004; but we do expect to
generatet revenues from some of these reagents and instruments in 2005 and continue to believe that sales
related to.these products may significantly impact our growth in 2006 and beyond. Our molecular diagnostic
products are at varrous stages of development and mclude the following:

o

Microscopic‘Slide Based Reagents

- Our ProEx C analyte specific reagent (ASR) incorporates molecular- biomarkers that measure the over-
expressron of protems whose over-expression is assoc:ated with aberrant S phase induction, an abnormal
growth state assoc:1ated with' the developmentof cancer.' Aberrant S phase induction has been associated with
cancer of the cervix, esophagus ovary, lung, and prostdte. We expect that th1s analyte specific reagent w111 be
ava1lable for' purchase in.the U.S. in the second quarter of 2005

Ty i . o !

\ Our ProEx\ Br analyte spec1ﬁc reagents 1ncorporate rnolecular blomarkers that measure the over-
expression:of certain proteins that are believed to reflect increased activity in molecular pathways that are
associated w1th the progress1on of cancer. These analyte spec1ﬁc reagents are currently available for purchase
mtheUS jlg S N :

Our Cervzcal Stagzng Assay 1ncorporates propnetary molecular blomarkers and reagents and is being
developed to 1dent1fy blopsy proven underlying pre-malignant ceérvical disease and cervical cancer in patients
who have tested positive for high-risk human papilloma virus infection or for whom the results of cytologic
screening with ;the SurePath liquid-based Pap, test are equivocal. We expect to launch a cervical staging
diagnostic,kit outside the U.S. in the second quarter of 2005 if wé have received the necessary international
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regulatory approvals. Concurrently, we expect to release a detection kit for visualization of biomarkers on
cytology slides, an automated cervical cytology slide-staining platform and a series of assay control reagents.

Our Cervical Screening Assay incorporates proprietary molecular biomarkers and reagents and is being
developed for primary screening for cervical cancer. The assay is being developed to test slides prepared using
the SurePath liquid-based Pap test and to permit concurrent evaluation of morphologic features and
measurement of the over-expression of molecular biomarkers that are associated with biopsy proven moderate
to severe cervical disease and cancer. The assay is being developed for use with and without our molecular
cytology imaging system (described below). We expect to initiate clinical trials in the second half of 2005 to
collect data that could support an application for pre-market approval by the FDA. Given the relatively low
prevalence of moderate to severe cervical disease and cervical cancer and the fact that the results obtained
with our molecular biomarkers may dictate a need for additional follow-up of some clinical trial subjects over
time, we believe that this clinical trial may require up to 12 to 18 months to complete. If our clinical trial is
successful, we would expect to introduce this assay in the U.S. as an in vitro diagnostic in late 2006 or 2007
depending, in large part, on the length of the clinical trial.

Our Breast Staging Assay incorporates proprietary molecular biomarkers and reagents and is being
developed to predict the risk of disease recurrence and to aid in treatment selection in patients with early stage
breast cancer. The assay is being developed for use with commercially available detection kits and staining
platforms and to utilize our interactive histology imaging system (see below) to quantify biomarker over-
expression in tissue samples collected at the time of initial diagnosis of breast cancer. We expect to initiate
clinical trials in the second haif of 2005 to collect data that could support an application for pre-market
approval by the FDA. Given a successful clinical trial, we would expect to introduce this as an in vitro
diagnostic in the latter half of 2006.

Over the past two years we have also released several Research Use Only (RUQO) products, including
RUO reagents for staging of melanoma and cancer of the cervix and breast. In data presented in 2004 from a
study completed in 2003, investigators at Albany Medical College observed that the measurement of
melastatin™ expression using our melanoma assay was an independent prognostic factor that may be useful in
determining the risk of disease recurrence and metastasis in patients with primary thin melanoma lesions. We
released our RUO reagents for cervical and breast cancer staging in 2004. Investigators at the Massachusetts
General Hospital, Johns Hopkins Hospital, and the University of Colorado are currently evaluating the
analytical and clinical performance of our RUO reagents for cervical cancer staging. Investigators at Albany
Medical College are currently evaluating the clinical performance of our RUO reagents for breast cancer
staging.

There can be no assurance that the microscopic slide based reagents that we are developing will be ready
to launch or receive required regulatory approvals when anticipated, if at all.

Molecular Imaging Systems

Our Interactive Histology Imaging System is being developed to allow rapid, reliable and cost effective
quantification of molecular biomarkers in histologic tissue sections. This product is expected to provide on-
demand digital imaging, direct visualization of immuno-histochemistry (IHC) stained slides, and real-time
quantitative analysis of tissue samples. Ventana Medical Systems, Inc. (Ventana) has agreed to sell and
distribute a Ventana-branded version of our interactive histology imaging system (Ventana Image Analysis
System (VIAS)} under a five-year global supply agreement that we entered into in September of 2004, We
submitted data to the FDA in support of a 510(k) notification for processing of the Ventana estrogen and
progesterone receptor assays on the imaging system in January of 2005. Pending FDA clearance, we anticipate
that Ventana will launch VIAS in the second quarter of 2005. We anticipate filing additional 510(k)
notifications for processing of other Ventana assays throughout the year. There can be no assurance that we
will obtain the desired FDA clearances when anticipated, if at all, nor that Ventana will prioritize the
marketing of VIAS. ‘

Our Molecular Cytology Imaging System identifies abnormal cells on cytology slide preparations based on
their specific reaction with molecular biomarkers. We intend to introduce this system outside the U.S. in the
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second. quarter of 2005 and we expect to incorporate it in our cervical screening clinical trial, which we
anticipaté initiating in.the second half of 2005. There can be no assurance that this imaging system will receive
the desired regulatory approvals when anticipated, if at all.
-
Blood Based Reagents » ’
We have initiated 'development of blood-based screening and monitoring assays for ovarian and breast

cancer. We, anticipate releasing our ovarian cancer screening reagents in an RUO format in the second half of
2005 We antrcrpate releasing our breast screening reagents in an RUO format by the end of 2006. Concurrent
with the development of these reagents we are evaluating high volume testing platforms.

The Cancer Market

Cancer isa chronic and complex disease characterized by uncontrolled growth and spread of abnormal
cells. According to the World Health Organization (WHO), the worldwide incidence of cancer in the year
2000 exceeded 10 million cases, excluding basal and squamous cell cancers of the skin. The WHO further
estimates that approximately 6.2 million deaths worldwide were attributable to cancer in 2000. In the United
States, the :American, Cancer Society (ACS) estimates that roughly 1.37 million cases of non-skin cancers
will be diagnosed-in 2005, roughly half of which will occur in women. In the United States, women have about
a l-in-3- hfetrme risk ‘of developing invasive cancer. It is estimated that in 2005 approximately 663,000 women
will'be newly diagnosed with cancer and an'estimated 275,000 women will succumb to the disease. It is
ant1c1pated that melanoma and cancers of the breast, cerv1x and ovary w1ll account for over 40% of all new
cancers dragnosed 1 women in 2005.

SR ~-‘{ : ' " Women’s Cancers

. 2005 Cancer Estimates (U.S.)
' :‘” g L ' ‘ Estimated 2005 Incidence lEstir'nated 2005 Mortality
All cancers e L 662,8417‘ 275000
TriPath Imagmg Targeted Cancers: t ‘
j ‘Breast . ;,}‘, e e o 211 240 40,410
o O;vjal-i_ap,;“‘.i I SR e 22020 | 16,210
Malrgnant Melanoma i e Co 26,000 2,860
Cervical ... SRR 10,370 3,710

' ' . - [
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Source Amerrcan Cancer Society, Facts & Figures, 2005 ,

Treatments for cancer are expensive and often ineffective. Current treatments for cancer include surgery,
rad1at1on chemotherapy and targeted therapeut1cs Surgery is limited in its effectiveness because it treats the
tumor- at’a specific site and may not remove all the cancer cells; particularly if the cancer has spread.
Rad1at1on and chemotherapy can treat the cancer at multiple sites but can cause serious adverse side effects
because they destroy healthy cells and tissues as well as cancer cells. The ACS projects that in 2005 over




275,000 women will die of cancer-related illness. Detecting cancer at the earliest possible stage of disease is
critical to patient survival and outcome as reflected in the following five-year relative survival rates:

Five Year Disease — Free Survival
by Stage at Diagnosis

TriPath Imaging Targeted Cancers: Localized Disease (%) Regional Spread (%) Distant Metastases (%)
Breast ............. P 98 80 26
Ovarlan ..................... 95 ' 72 31
Malignant Melanoma ......... 98 60 16
Cervical ..................... 92 51 15

Source: American Cancer Society, Facts & Figures, 2005

Development and utilization of modalities for routine cancer screening is critical to early detection.
According to the ACS, whereas the five-year relative survival rate for all cancers is approximately 64%, the
relative survival rate for currently screened cancers (i.e. including cancers of the cervix, breast, rectum and
skin) is approximately 84%. The ACS estimates that the relative survival rates of these screened cancers could
be further increased to 95% if all Americans were regularly screened for these cancers. In 2004, the National
Institutes of Health estimated the overall costs for cancer-related illness in the U.S. to be $189.8 billion.

We expect the market for cancer diagnostics will grow substantially due to the increased incidence of
cancer, an aging population, early cancer awareness, pressure to reduce cancer mortality rates and improve-
ments in healthcare screening systems. The existing cancer diagnostics market is characterized predominantly
by tests or methods that identify the presence of surrogate markers of disease, cellular abnormalities or
imaging anomalies that are correlated with the presence or stage of disease but, for the most part, do little to
provide information specific to the biology of the disease or the outcome of the patient. The current
technologies used in cancer diagnostics consist primarily of tumor marker i 1mmunoassays cytology evaluation
and imaging techniques such as mammography.

While some of the underlying causes of specific cancers can be traced to a single genetic alteration, it is
now believed that multiple complex genetic changes underlie the development of the vast majority of cancers.
However, the identification of genetic anomalies alone is unlikely to prove clinically significant as many
genetic events may have minimal or no impact on a patient’s health, whereas others may pose life-threatening
health risks. Determining the interrelationship of genes and proteins, and their interaction with one another is
likely to be as important as understanding the underlying cause of the genetic change itself. The scientific
community’s knowledge of these underlying genetic and proteomic factors has only recently come about
through the development of more sophisticated research and discovery tools, investment in mapping of the
human genome, and development of bioinformatics capabilities to assess the clinical relevance of these genetic
and proteomic abnormalities.

In recent years, novel molecular oncology tests have been introduced to provide additional clinical
information previously unavailable to assess an individual’s predisposition or lifetime risk of developing certain
cancers. Molecular tests are also used to screen and assist in the diagnosis of the presence of disease, to assess
patient prognosis and outcome more accurately, to guide therapeutic selection in the management of certain
cancers and to monitor for disease recurrence. Molecular tests offer the promise of providing a more accurate,
disease-specific understanding of cancer to best address the needs of medical practitioners.

Cervical Cancer

Cancer of the uterine cervix, or cervical cancer, is second only to breast cancer as the most common form
of malignancy in both incidence and mortality in women worldwide. According to the WHO the worldwide
incidence of cervical cancer in 2000 was 470,606 with a mortality rate of 233,372. In parts of the developing
world, cervical cancer is the major cause of death in women of reproductive age. The ACS estimates that in

8




2005 approxrmately 10,370 -cases of invasive cervical cancer- w111 be dragnosed in the Umted States with an
estlmated 3,710 deaths : v r

4 Invasrve cerv1cal cancer spreads from the surface of the cervix to tissue deeper in the cervix or to other
parts of the body ‘Cervrcal cancer develops i in stages over a perrod of t1rne beginning with pre-invasive changes
that eventual]y progress to invasion. Because of the progression to 1nva51on most deaths due to invasive
cervrca] cancer can ‘be prevented with early-stage detectlon and treatment. Early detection is . critical in
promotmg patrent wéllness. The more advanced the cancer, “the lower'the chances are of managing and/or
curing the patlent Thus, regular cervical screenmg examinations are recommended in the Umted States and
many forergn countrres : co o e “ ‘

Screenmg for Cervtcal Cancer . I Lot IR L ‘

Based on the concept that the phys1ca1 appearance {or morphology) of cells that have been scraped from
the surface of .the utefine cervix .may correlate w1th and, therefore, s1gn1fy the presence of cancer or its
precursors in underlymg cervical tissue, the Pap smear has been employed worldwide as a primary screen for
cervrcal cancer and its.precursors since the late 1940s. It is the most widely used and most successful of all
screemng tests tfor cancer having contributed to a greater than 70% decrease in deaths resultlng from cervical
cancer m the U S ‘since it was first mtroduced It is estimated that chn1cal laboratories in the United States
perform over 50’ million Pap tests, including l1qu1d based Pap - tests, annually and we beheve that the annual
test, volume out51de of the United States i Is in excess of 80 mrlhon

The Papismear, as first developed by Dr. George N: Papamcolaou in the 1940s, remalned essentlally
unchanged until the introduction of liquid based Pap tests, such as our SurePath liquid based Pap test, in the
1990s. The liquid based Pap test was developed to remedy several practical limitations of the conventional Pap
smear, including those related to specimen collection and slide interpretation. The use of a liquid medium to
transport. cerv1cal cells may facilitate the specimen collection process by reducing the time taken to prepare
the - spec1men for transport by eliminating air drying and other collectron related artifacts that distort cell
archrtecture by prov1d1ng a readrly accessrble medlum and adequate shelf l1fe to allow for repeat testlng from
genetrc or other dlseases and, in the case of our SurePath liquid based Pap test, by prov1d1ng a standardrzed
techmque for spec1men collection that ensures that all cells collected are transported to the laboratory. The
thin layer slides prepared using liquid based Pap tests eliminate the depth of focus issues that may complicate
the 1nterpretatron of the relatively thick conventional Pap smear and are relatively devoid of blood, mucus, or
inflammatory . materral that may obscure significant cytologic pathology. In the case of our SurePath liquid
based Pap test, the combination of these. collection and slide preparation features contributes to a statistically
signiﬁcant reduction‘ in the number of unsatisfactory icases when compared to the conventional Pap smear.

The Pap smear is prepared from scrapings of the’ surface of the uterine cervix that are collected during a
gynecologrc pelvrc examrnat1on These exfoliated cervical cells are, in the case of the conventional Pap smear,
d1rectly transferred to a glass slide by the clinician who collects the specimen. In the case of the liquid based
Pap test, sucht as our. SurePath liquid based Pap test, these exfoliated cells are transferred by the clinician into
a quuld med1um from which a thin layer slide is subsequently prepared in the laboratory, most often using an
automated. system such as our PrepStain slide processor, after the liquid medium, blood, mucus, and other
obscurmg matenals ar¢ removed by density gradient centrlfuganon With the conventional Pap smear, the
clinician drscards the collection device and whatever cells that remain attached to the device, after the sample
is transferred to the glass slide. With the-SurePath liquid based Pap test, the clinician simply detaches the
head of the collection device and places it into the liquid transport medium, thus, ensuring that 100% of the
cells that have been collected are transported.to the laboratory. For either the conventional or liquid based Pap
tests, a Papamcolaou stain is applied to the slide to facilitate microscépic review. The slide is then analyzed
m1croscop1cally by'a cytotechnologlst who evaluates the appearance of the ex-foliated cells. The cytotechnolo-
gist looks:for cell-features that are! associated with cancer of the cervix or its precursors. Any abnormality so
detected is further reviewed by a pathologist. Depending on the cytologic-classification that has been assigned
by the:pathologist,;abnormalities. that are confirmed by pathologist review are further evaluated by testing for
human ‘papilloma virus (HPV) and/or direct visual examination of the:cervix using a colposcope and, if a
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lesion is so detected, a biopsy to obtain cervical tissue for histologic examination. Biopsied cervical tissue is
evaluated for histologic evidence of the loss of uniformity of individual cells, the loss of architectural
orientation, and other abnormal findings that are associated with Cervical Intraepithelial Neoplasia
(CIN) and cervical cancer. CIN, which is also referred to as dysplasm is characterized by pre-cancerous
changes in cervical tissue, and is further categonzcd into CIN 1, CIN 2, or CIN 3 (mild, moderate, and
severe dysplasia), depending on the severity of abnormality. Further treatment or follow-up is dictated by the
results of the cervical biopsy and most often follows consensus guidelines that have been developed by opinion
leaders in concert with various clinical organizations and advocacy groups.

Typically, about 90% to 95% of all Pap smears are classified as normal. Abnormal Pap smears are
classified in order to specify the degree of cytologic abnormality, according to The Bethesda System (2001).
The prevalence of histologic evidence of CIN and cancer varies with each cytologic classification. For
example, the cytologic classification of atypical squamous cells of undetermined significance (ASC-US)
represents the least significant cytologic abnormality and is associated with only a relatively small number of
biopsies that demonstrate underlying premalignant or malignant cervical disease. Low-grade squamous
intraepithelial lesion (LSIL) is associated with a slightly higher likelihood of underlying disease, particularly
CIN 1 and, most often, appears to reflect cytologic changes that are associated with HPV infection. Atypical
squamous cells of undetermined significance-cannot exclude high grade (ASC-H), a recently introduced
classification, is associated with a somewhat higher number of biopsies that demonstrate CIN 2 or more severe
discase. High-grade squamous intraepithelial lesion (HSIL), is a very significant cytologic abnormality that is
associated with a very high correlation to biopsy evidence of CIN 2, CIN 3, and, not infrequently, cancer. The
most significant cytologic classification is cancer itself where the correlation to biopsy ev1dcnce of cancer or
severe dysplasia is very strong.

Human Papillomavirus

Since the mid-1970’s Human Papillomavirus, or HPV, has been recognized as a sexually transmitted
infection that is associated with the development of genital tract neoplasia. Of the approximately 70 types of
HPYV viruses recognized to date, more than 20 have been associated with lesions in the female anogenital tract.
The so-called low risk types (i.e. 6,11,42,43,44) are mainly associated with benign lesions such as condylomas,
which rarely progress to malignancy. The so-called high-risk types (i.e., 16,18,31,33,35,39,45,51,52,56, and
58) are detected in cancer of the cervix.

While it has been documented that nearly all cervical cancers (99.7%) are directly linked to previous
infection with one or more of the high-risk types of HPV (Judson 1992; Walboomers et. al. 1999), infection
with HPV, even a high-risk type, in and of itself is not predictive of cervical cancer or its precursors. Most
HPYV infections are transient and are not associated with the development of cervical cancer or its precursors.
Given the biology of the infection and its association with cervical neoplasia, if one were to test for high-risk
HPV (even with a test that is 100% sensitive and specific for high-risk HPV) one would expect that the
negative predictive value for testing for high-risk HPV, that is the likelihood that a negative test for high-risk
HPYV is associated with absence of CIN 2 or more severe cervical disease, would approach almost 100%.
However, one would also expect that the positive predictive value of a test for high-risk HPV, that is the
likelihood that a positive test for high-risk HPV is associated with the presence of CIN 2 or more severe
lesions, would range from 10 to 25% depending on the age of the population tested.

Over the past few years, testing for infection with high-risk types of HPV has gained clinical acceptance
in the U.S. in certain clinical situations. The 2001 Consensus Guidelines sponsored by the American Society
for Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP) recommend testing for HPV to assist in the management of
women with ASCUS-US Pap test results. These guidelines are supported by a number of studies including the
NCl-sponsored ASCUS/LSIL Triage Study for Cervical Cancer (ALTS) trial that demonstrated that HPV
testing within the ASC-US patient population was an effective method of triaging these patients for
subsequent referral to colposcopy because of the extremely low likelihood of finding cancer or its precursors in
the absence of infection with high-risk HPV. The Guidelines recommend that patients with ASC-US who test
negative for high-risk HPV should be managed by follow-up Pap smear and HPV testing and that patients
with ASC-US who test positive for high-risk HPV should be immediately referred for colposcopy and possible
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biopsy.rlnlthe ALjTS: :trial, the positive predietive V.alite (PPV) of HPV. testing within the ASC-US patient
population, however, was shown to be only 17%.

In March 2003 the FDA approved a submission by Digene Corporation to include HPV as an adjunct to
the. Pap smear for primary screening for ceivical cancer in women age 30 and older. The rationale for this
approach is predicated on the extremely low likelihood of finding cancer or its precursors in the absence of
high-risk HPV infection ‘when the Pap smear is normal. In fact, the negative predictive value of the two tests
in comblnatron is greater than 99%. However, the lack of specificity and rélatively low positive predictive value
of HPV may agam ‘be problematic. For example, approximately 2 to 6% of women with normal Pap smears
yield positive tests for high-risk HPV. The management of such patients is as yet unclear. Furthermore,
although approximately 56% of patients with ASC-US and 85% of patients with LSIL test positive for high-
risk HPV, ‘the rate of detection of CIN 2 or more severe les1ons on bropsy in these populations is only 10% and
20% respectlvely

Breast Cancer

W1th an estimated incidence of over one million new cases per year, cancer of the breast is the most
common women’s cancer in the world, accounting for 22% of all new cases diagnosed. On a worldwide basis,
breast cancer is the leading cause of cancer rnortahty in woinen, representing an estimated 14% of all cancer-
related deaths in females

The ACS estlmates that in 2005, approxrmately 211,240 new cases of invasive breast cancer will be
dlagnosed among women in the United States, with an estimated 40,410 women dying of the disease. Breast
cancer incidence increases with age, and although 51gn1ﬁcant progress has been made in identifying women
cons1dered to berat high risk of devéloping the 'disease; more than 50% of breast cancer occurs sporadically in
worhen with no ‘kriown risk factors. According to the NCI, the overall five-year survival rate for women
dragnosed with ‘breast cancer is 86%. Early detection is paramount as the relative survival rates vary
s1gn1ﬁcantly among localized disease (96. 8%) regronal spread (78. 4%) and distant metastases (22.5%).

Breast Cancer Screenmg

Breast cancer screemng is currently defined as a combination of patient self-exam, clinical breast exam
and- mammography ‘These methods are complementary and are not used as stand-alone techniques. Film
1mag1ng mammography is the gold standard for breast cancer screemng and currently represents the most
effective means .of early detection of breast cancer with a sensitivity ranging from 54.0% to 94.0% and a
specificity ranging from 83.0% to 98.5%. More specifically, studies show that mammography sensitivity ranges
from 54.0% to 58.0% in women under age 40 and from 81.0% to 94.0% in women over 65. The primary purpose
of mammography screening is the detection of an -abnormality. Numerous studies have shown that early
detectton saves lives and provides more treatment options. For this reason, annual screening by mammography
is recommended for women over age 40 in the U.S, and many forergn countries.

Accordmg to data from the 2000 Behavioral Rrsk Factor Surverllance System (BRFSS) the percentage
of U S. women aged 40 and older who had a recent mammogram was 62.6%. Of the 32.5 million screening
mammograms“currently‘ performed in the U. S., approximately four million indicate some form of abnormality
requiring ‘furth"er follow-up. Once an abnormality is detected on initial screening, the need for a very sensitive
and specific assay to detect early breast cancer becomes critical. Although follow-up diagnostic imaging and
ultrasound' may provrde greater image clarity, neither is able to drstmgulsh between a benign condition and a
malignancy. Of the éstimated 1.2 million breast biopsies performed in the U.S., roughly 80% yield no form of
mahgnancy resulting in an estimated cost of $3.3 billion related to unnecessary biopsies. (HCA Cancer Care,
Nov 2002 Informatlonal Guide to Breast Cancer).

Breast Cancer Stagmg and T reatment

Once \breast cancer is diagnosed, it is staged (ie. I IL Mior IV) based on a number of factors including
tumor, pathology (T) nodal involvement (N) and distant metastasis (M). In the U.S., approximately 55% to
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60% of newly diagnosed invasive breast cancer is detected at a relatively early stage (i.e. small tumor size and
with no or minimal nodal involvement).

Although the “TNM” classification system is useful in staging patients for follow up and treatment, it is
based solely on the morphologic features of the tumor and its degree-of spread and, thus does not take into
consideration the biologic make up of the cancer. The clinical course of primary breast cancer varies from
patient to patient. Predicting which individuals are cured and which are not remains difficult for both lymph
node negative and lymph node positive breast cancer patients. Clinicians are well aware that some patients
who have poor TNM scores have long disease-free survival times, whereas others with good TNM scores
experience a rapid deterioration with early recurrence of breast cancer followed by death. At best, current
prognostic indicators serve as guides for clinical decisions that require considerable judgment. .

Once the cancer i$ staged, treatment decisions are typically made by an oncologist in consultation with
the patient and will take into consideration the patient’s age and preferences, as well as the risks and benefits
associated with each treatment protocol. Nearly all women with breast cancer have some form of surgery
combined with other treatments such as radiotherapy, chemotherapy, hormone therapy and/or monoclonat
antibody therapy. Prognostic tests for the determination of estrogen receptor (ER), progesterone receptor
(PR) and her2/neu status have become standard of care for selecting subsets of patients most likely to benefit
from certain hormone and monoclonal antibody therapies.

Breast Cancer Post-Therapy Recurrence

In general, it has been widely assumed that early detection of any.cancer, whether as a new primary
malignancy or as a recurrence, leads to more effective therapy. As with screening, the ability to detect small
tumors and early progression in asymptomatic situations is paramount to positive outcomes. However, the
recurrence rate can be as high as 25% to 30% within the first five years after diagnosis, even in patients with
good TNM scores.

Presently, a large number of markers exist for the monitoring of breast cancer. These include MUC-1
(CA13-3), carcinoembryonic antigen (CEA), oncoproteins, milk proteins and cytokeratins. Of these,
CA15-3, CA27.29 and CEA are the most commonly used. According to the American Society of Clinical
Oncologists (ASCO); Tumor Marker Guidelines, the performance of these markers range in sensitivity for
Stage I disease of 9% to 10%, Stage II of 19% to 54%, Stage III of 31% to 54% and Stage IV of 64% to 75%.
Additionally, ASCO notes that CA15-3 exhibits a limited sensitivity for detecting low tumor burden, when
treatments are most likely to be beneficial. Currently, only 20% to 30% of recurrences are detected before the
onset of symptoms. '

Ovarian Cancer

. Ovarian cancer. is only the seventh most common cancer in women with an estimated 192,379 cases
diagnosed worldwide in 2000, but it is among the most deadly. In the U.S., the five-year relative survival rate
is only 53% for all women diagnosed with ovarian cancer. According to the American Cancer Society Facts
and Figures for 2005, the estimated five-year survival rate for localized ovarian cancer is 95%, but only 72% if
the cancer has spread regionally, and only 31% for women with distant metastases.

Ovarian cancer has been shown to be a clonal dlscase in approximately 90% of cases suggesting that most
cancers could, in fact, be detected before they have metastasized. Due to the lack of an adequate screening
test, and to the fact ovarian cancer is asymptomatic until the cancer has progressed to a late stage,
approximately 75% of newly diagnosed patients are in advanced to late stages I and IV.

Ovarian Cancer Screening

The effectiveness of routine screening of asymptomatic women using pelvic examination, abdominal or
vaginal ultrasound or serum carcinoembryonic antigen (CEA-125) has not been established. The ACS
recommends annual pelvic examinations for women starting at age 18 or at the onset of sexual activity. In
1994, a National Institutes of Health Consensus Conference on Ovarian Cancer concluded that there is no

12




evidence that screening with currently available modalities, including CEA-125 and/or transvaginal ultra-
sound can be used effectively to decrease ovarian cancer mortality or morbidity.

. e l S L , ) . ‘

" Currently, screening for ovarian cancer typically occurs'in one of the following settings:

o Women' considered at high risk for developing ovarian cancer.

The ACS states that women who are at high risk of epithelial ovarian cancer, such as those with a very
strong family history of the disease, may be screened annually using transvaginal ultrasound and/or
CEA-125.

. Presence o[ adnexal Lovarzanj or pelvic mass.

‘ In the Unrted States the hosp1talrzat1on rate for ovarian neoplasms is reported to be as high as

. 289,000 women’ annually. Roughly 80% to 90% of these women hdve a surgical procedure to rule out
and/or diagnose ovarian cancer. Typically, women are found to have an adnexal or pelvic mass during a
routme physrcal examination or during evaluatlon for another complaint.-

A successful screenmg program aimed at the early detection of ovarian cancer would require that major
abdomlnal surgery (laparoscopy and/or laparotomy) be performed, as this is the only means of a definitive
d1agnos1s Because of the low incidence of ovarian cancer and the necessity of major abdominal surgery, a
screemng program requires high accuracy with a high spec1ﬁcrty to minimize morbidity associated with major
abdornlnal surgery, A

Maligmjn‘t Melanoma

Although melanoma accounts for only a fraction of all skin cancers diagnosed, it is by far the most
serious. Unlike thie more common and curable basal cell and squamous.cell skin cancers, melanoma accounts
for roughly 75%: of all skin cancer-related deaths. In 2000, the WHO estimated that 67,425 cases of melanoma
were diagnosed i 1n/w0men and 17,045 female deaths were attributable to this deadly disease. In 2005, the ACS
estimates 26 ,000'women in the U.S. will be d1agnosed with mclanoma and 2,360 are expected to die of the
disease. .

The overall five-year relative survival rate of patients diagnosed with melanoma is 89% according to the
ACS. Because melanoma develops from biological changes in pigmented lesions such as moles, early signs of
melanoma ‘development can usually be seen through changes in the size, color or texture of the lesion. As a
result, about 82% of melanomas are diagnosed at an early or localized stage where the five-year relative
survival rate approxrrnates 99%. Survival rates drop considerably to- -60% and 16% for melanomas that have
spread to reg1onal nodes or to dlstant organs, respectrvely ‘

Melanoma Stagmg and Treatment ‘ ) ‘ ﬂ

Once melanoma 18 suspected the lesion and surrounding tissue are excised. Once diagnosed, biopsy of
the surroundmg (sentmel) lymph nodes is common to determine the degree of spread of disease. Like most
cancers, melanomas are staged, i.e. I, II, II or IV, based on a number of factors including tumor pathology,
nodal mvolvement and distant metastasis, or the TNM class1ﬁcat10n system discussed above. Prognostic
factors such'as tumor thickness (Clark Score) mitoses and ulceration ‘are among the criteria used in tumor
gradmg Although the TNM c¢lassification system is useful in staging patients for follow up and treatment, it is
based’ solely on the morphologlc features ‘of the tumor and its degree of spread and, thus does not take into
cons1derat1on the b1olog1c make up of the cancer.

Predrctmg whrch 1nd1v1duals are cured and Wthh are not remains drfﬁcult as up to 20% of individuals
with th1n le51ons may relapse within five years. As with other types of cancer, some patients who have poor
TNM scores have long disease-free survival times, whereas others with good TNM scores experience a rapid
deterioration with éarly recurrence of melanoma followed by death. At best, current prognostic indicators
serve.as guldes‘for clinical decisions that require considerable judgment..
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" In addition to the standard treatment for malignant melahoma, which includes adequate excision of the
primary tumor and may require removal of surrounding lymph nodes, advanced cases are treated with
chemotherapy or immunotherapy. Although a number of markers have been studied to determine their utility
in predicting which patients with early stage disease have biologically aggressive disease and, therefore should
be treated more aggressively, determination of Melastatin mRNA expression levels appears to be the most
promising.

Marketing and Sales
Marketing Strategy

Our marketing strategy is focused on providing solutions that address the unmet needs of our three broad
market stakeholders: clinical laboratories, clinicians and third-party payors. We increased our marketing
efforts during the first half of 2002 by directing resources toward various marketing-related initiatives designed
to promote-brand identification and awareness, increase market acceptance of our products and services and
enhance product management. We have expanded our presence in the marketplace through increased
advertising and promotion, company-sponsored seminars and trade shows, and peer selling activities. To
further educate and reinforce the benefits of our products, we initiated a partnership with a third-party
physician/peer selling organization in 2001 that continued into 2004. In September 2004, we initiated an
expansion of sales and marketing activities to leverage the opportunity created by our growing relationship
with the large commercial laboratories (see below) and to meet the challenge associated with expanding our
cervical cytology business in this heavily contested market segment while maintaining and growing our
business within our traditional customer base.

Clinician/OB-GYN

Over the past 3 years we have expanded our clinician educational programs to better focus on this large
segment. We also conducted a number of clinician-related activities including the establishment of a Clinical
Advisory Board and numerous expert panels as forums to discuss and receive feedback on unmet medical
needs, standards of care, market trends, product concept review and use, and clinical trials strategies. Finally,
we cultivated and developed relationships with leading clinicians to identify current and future potential
product areas with the goal of expanding peer-to-peer selling and influence.

Clinical Laboratory

The standard of practice in the cytopathology and histopathology laboratories is defined by the visual
examination and analysis of cells and tissues. Cancer, in one of its many forms, is the disease most often
considered and evaluated in laboratories. Samples being examined are typically tissue biopsies or Pap smears.
The collection and preparation of these samples have been resistant to the general wave of automation because
they have required human observation and analysis under a microscope. The observer is required to identify
and interpret what are often very subtle changes within human tissues. These are often very complex, time
consuming, tedious and exacting tasks. The practices of cytopathology and histopathology remain largely
manual and labor intensive.

Previously, the complex biologic structural, or morphologic changes exhibited by cancer were considered
too subtle for identification and interpretation by computer or other automated apparatus. The conventional
wisdom was that cell and tissue diagnosis is an intrinsically qualitative process that requires subjective visual
judgment. However, as the science of image processing and analysis has matured, it has become increasingly
accepted that these “subjective” signals can be redefined in terms of mathematical algorithms. These
algorithms, in turn, provide the basis for computerization and an automated solution.

As the last frontier for automation in ‘in vitro’ diagnostics, the cytopathology and histopathology
laboratories present a major opportunity. We beheve that increased automation of these laboratories through
computerized image analysis will:

+ significantly reduce labor costs;




ve drive irriproxled standardization, reproducibility' and quality control;
o enhance the efﬁcrency of treatment by increasing the accuracy and precision of diagnosis; and,

' tpr0V1dc an opportumty to collect digitized 1nformat10n ito facrhtate the development of highly specific
ek and targeted outcome patient care programs.-

Automated shde preparation.and screening products were introdiced into the cervical cancer screening
market i in the mrd 1990s We expect to benefit from the 1ncreased awareness and growing acceptance of these
new technolog1es

Cervzcal Cytology Product Line . o ' C

We currently market our cervical cytology products as part of ‘an integrated system. Our SurePath,
PrepStam and FocalPomt systems, together, provide an integrated solution for sample preparation, processing,
staining and computenzed analysis of liquid based thin-layer slide preparations. We began limited interna-
tional commerc1a1 sales of our PrepStain system in 1993 and commenced commercialization in the
Umted States following FDA approval in 1999. We began placements.of AutoPap QC systems, a predecessor
to the current FocalPomt system, in 1995 and of the FocalPoint primary, screening system in 1998. FocalPoint
is the’ only fully automated Pap smear screening device to receive regulatory approval for marketmg in the
Un1ted States for both thin-layer and conventional Pap smear slide preparations.

o The pnncrpal market for gynecological appl1cat1ons of PrepStam and FocalPoint are clinical laboratories
worldwide: Chmcal laboratones are also the pnmary focus for patients, physicians and third party payors in
connection’ with’ screening for cervical cancer. In an effort to facilitate the adoption of our products, we
engaged.sales profess1onals to educate and promote our products to ‘each of these groups. Furthermore, we
have . contractual relatlonshlps with organizations that prov1de physician education and third party
payor/ re1mbursement support. We view these relat10nsh1ps as a necessary extension of our business given their
potennal to fuel ‘our growth.

The prmc1pal market for non- gynecolog1cal apphcatlons of PrepStaln also includes clinical laboratories
worldw1de although these applications -are performed in significantly lower quantities than cervical cancer
screemng apphcatlons Non-gynecological applicatiofis for the 'detection of cancer are performed on body
fluids, 1nclud1ng urine samples, respiratory specimens and a variety of fine-needle aspirates of specific organs.

Large commerczal laboratories. Pap smear testing has become a concentrated market in the United
States. We believe that approximately 50% of cervical cancer test volume is concentrated among a relatively
small nurnber of large laboratories. We believe the PrepStain’s high throughput and cost-effectiveness and
FocalPoirit’s ability. to'show improved productivity over-manual practice will enable us to market PrepStain
and 'FocalPoint' successfully to this. concentrated market segment. Moreover, the pressures associated with
rising' health care costs, rising litigation costs, and the limited supply of qualified cytotechnologists should
further fac1htate adoption of PrepStain and FocalPoint by the large laboratory market. We believe that the
large , chnlcal laboratones offer a significant opportunity for our growth in 2005 as we have entered into
agreernents and have establlshed growmg relationships with the four largest commercial laboratories in the
US : M i“;.‘}v X , .

LI

In the ﬁrst quarter of 2003 wé entered into an agreement with Quest Dragnostlcs Incorporated (Quest
D1agnostlcs or Quest) to introduce our cervical cancer screening products in select locations. Quest
Dlagnostlcs completed an evaluation process of these products in late 2003. Early in the second quarter of
2004, on the strength ‘of the outcome of this evaluatron we entered’ rnto a new multi-year agreement with
Quest Dragnostrcs Under this agreement, Quest Diagnostics is adoptmg the SurePath liquid-based Pap test
and.the PrepStam system and is evaluating the FocalPoint Slide Profiler. During the term of the agreement,
we wtll work together w1th Quest Dlagnostlcs to expand the use of our products by educatmg physicians about
the beneﬁts of our technology We also renewed a multi-year agreement with Laboratory Corporation of
Amenca in the" latter half of 2003 and entered into a new mult1-year agreement with LabOne in mid-year
2004. Further 1in September of 2004, we initiated an expansion of our sales and marketing activities in the

US., to le‘veragelour growing relationship with the large commercial laboratories and to meet the challenge of

i
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expanding our cervical cytology business in this highly competitive segment while growing and maintaining
our business within our traditional customer base. We have reorganized our sales management to ensure
accountability and support for a larger field sales organization and to ensure broad geographic coverage. We
completed expansion of our sales management team in the fourth quarter of 2004 and expect to expand our
field sales organization over 2005. In addition, we expect to make increased investments in marketing and
sales related activities in support of our current cytology products worldwide as well as to begin to prepare the
market for the future introduction of our molecular oncology products. There can be no assurance that our
agreement with Quest, or other large laboratory customers, will generate significant revenue.

Academic Centers of Excellence. We expect to maintain and continue to build a “franchise” ‘among
academic centers of excellence and to continue to add high profile, opinion leaders to our customer list. We
believe these relationships reflect on the quality of our products. Further, as early adopters of new diagnostic
technologies, the academic centers of excellence will be key targets for the early introduction of our molecular
diagnostic products.

Medium and small clinical laboratories. We also intend to continue to devote a portion of our
marketing and sales resources to targeting medium-sized and small clinical laboratories, including, in
particular, laboratories that serve hospitals and local and regional integrated health care provider networks.
These laboratories are often well integrated into the local health care management process and delivery
continuum and, therefore, facilitate an integrated sales process that includes the ordering clinician, the
laboratory, and the payor. This is of particular significance to our strategy for commercializing molecular
diagnostic products that will require significant interaction between the laboratory and the clinician. We
expect that the medium-sized and small clinical laboratory segment of the market represents a promising
opportunity for our equipment rental programs.

Third-party payors. We have gained a significant level of market acceptance for our products by third-
party payors by devoting additional resources to the area of reimbursement. We plan to continue promoting
the clinical and economic benefits of PrepStain and FocalPoint systems to managed care companies, major
private insurers and other third-party payors. We have demonstrated that the overall cost savings to the health
care system, resulting from the early detection of cervical cancer and the decrease in unnecessary repeat Pap
smears, biopsies and colposcopies resulting from improved specimen adequacy, more than offset the cost of
our products. See also “Third-Party Reimbursement” below.

Molecular Diagnostic Products

The marketing strategy for the molecular diagnostic products we are developing is predicated on several
key principles. First, our marker discovery programs are all driven by clinical specifications developed from an
ongoing analysis of the current standards of care for cancer of the cervix, breast, ovary and prostate. From
these analyses, we have identified areas of clinical need and, therefore, market opportunity. Second, our
product development strategy comprehends minimal disruption of laboratory workflow and current practice.
We are designing our products to change the clinical practice of medicine, not the laboratory practice of
medicine. Third, we employ a strategy for commercialization that includes stacking clinical claims in which
_ we will initially target defined clinical problems in defined patient populations to create specific and clearly
defined clinical outcomes. Our strategy comprehends the fact that the commercial opportunity associated with
our products will depend on the extent to which they impact decisions made and actions taken in the course of
the early detection and clinical management of cancer, and that the value generated by these products and the
attendant level of reimbursement derived from third-party payors will reflect the extent to which the products
positively impact patient outcome, both clinical and economic. Fourth, we will employ a strategy for early
commercialization that includes initial introduction of ASRs to be used in laboratory-developed assays. Fifth,
we will leverage the recognition, relationships, and infrastructure developed to market and sell our cervical
cytology product line to commercialize our molecular diagnostic products. In effect, the infrastructure we have
developed for our cervical cytology product line will serve as a conduit for our molecular diagnostic products.

In September 2004, we entered into a five-year global supply agreement with Ventana under which
Ventana obtained exclusive rights to sell and distribute worldwide a Ventana-branded version of our
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interactive - histology imaging system that we are developing to be optimized for both Ventana and TriPath
Imagrng assays., "The interactive histology imaging system was developed to offer anatomic pathology
laboratones a cost eﬁectlve solution utilizing on-demand digital imaging, direct visualization of IHC stained
shdes ‘and real-time quantitative analysis of ‘tissue samples We believe that in addition to non-recurring
revenue already recorded, the agreement provides the poteritial for capital equipment and fee-per-use revenues
in 2005 if we successfully complete the development of the product, if we obtain FDA clearance for processing
of Ventana assays on the product, additional FDA or ‘othér regulatory clearance or approval if necessary with
respect to the | assays and imager, 'if Ventana is successfiil in placing the product with laboratory customers

and if’ customers mrgrate the processing of Ventana assays to the product

1
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Sales Strategyr i
Cer‘vzc;al‘ Cytology Product Line

" We: record revenué from the-sale, rental and/or lease of our systems and from ‘the sale of related
consumables Addltlonally, we record revenue from service contracts on our systems.

; In the case of system sales to end-users, revenue reeognrtron on:system sales occurs at the time the
1nstrument is. mstalled and accepted at the customer site. In the. case of instrument sales to distributors,
revenue recogmtlon on system sales occurs based upon the contract governing the transaction, typically at the
time: the instrumient is shipped from our facility. This is the predominant vehicle for international instrument
sales. If, however we sell an instrument directly to an international end user, we record the revenue upon
1nstallat1on and acceptance of the 1nstrument eon51stent with our treatment in the U. S

'.

For systemtrentals systems are placed at the customer’s site free of charge and the customer is obligated
erther to, purchase teagent Kits for a fixed term, or are charged fees based-on monthly minimum, or actual,
usage. Under these transactions, revenue recognition occurs at the time of shipment of the reagent kitsorona
monthly'basis based on the actual or'minimum usage There 1s no caprtal equ1pment revenue recognized under
these transactrons : :

oy

We: also oﬁer leasing alternatives. Under these transact1ons we may, or may not, recognize revenue on
system’ hardware dependrng on the particular details of the lease. We respond to customer needs by offering
both! caprtal and operating lease alternatives. Under the capital lease alternative, revenue is recognized initially
as an instrumentisale with part of the lease payments being-allocated to interest income, and service revenues,
if applleable over.the lease term. Under operating leases, we do'not recognize any revenue related to the
1nstrument sale; but recogmze revenue as rental income over the lease term.

We also generate revenue from the salé and rental of our ShdeW1zard line of products and from service
contraets on lthese products. For system sales, customers purchase the products through distributors in
countrres where such relatronsh1ps exist. Where d1stnbutor arrangements do not exist, we sell these products
drrectly to the customer
: Moléculc‘zr Didgnostic Reagents and Imaging Systems -

yVe 1ntend to 1ntroduce some of our molecular dragnostrc reagents and i imaging systems in 2005. We
expect to introduce : our ProEx C and .ProEx Br analyte specific reagents (ASRs) (see Government
Regulat1on) to early adopters among academ1c centers, hospital laboratories, and independent clinical
laboratones in the. U.S. through our existing laboratory sales organrzatron It is the responsibility of the
laboratory that purchases the ASR to develop, validate, and promote the test as well as to demonstrate its
cl1n1cal eﬁicacy We also expect to introduce our cervical and breast staging assays, and our molecular
cytology 1mag1ng system outside the U.S. Our interactive hlstology imaging system will be launched by
Ventana. pursuant to-our five-year global supply agreement under which Ventana obtained exclusive rights to
sell:and distribute worldwide a Ventana-branded version of the system. We believe the agreement provides the
potentlal for capltal equipment and fee-per-use revenues in 2005 should. we be successful in gaining 510(k)
clearance for progessing Ventana’s estrogen ‘and progesterone assays on the imaging system.

o | : 17



Marketing and Sales Organizations

We currently employ more than 100 full-time marketing and sales personnel worldwide to market, sell
and provide post-sale support of our products, in addition to leveraging distributor networks in our markets
outside the U.S., with the exception of Canada, where we sell through our own sales and marketing
organization. In addition to expanding our existing cervical cytology business our intention is to leverage our
sales and marketing capabilities, our strong relationships with key influential leaders in the anatomic pathology
laboratory and clinician segments, and our customer base among the academic institutions to accelerate the
adoption of molecular-based reagents for laboratory developed assays in 2005.

In the U.S., we have expanded our efforts to market our cervical cancer screening products through a
direct sales organization focused both on the physician, primarily OB-GYN and primary care physicians, and
laboratory market segments to optimize awareness and market penetration of our products. In September of
2004, we initiated an expansion of our sales and marketing activities in the U.S., targeted primarily towards
our pursuit of additional business under our agreements with large commercial laboratories. We have
reorganized our sales management to €nsure accountability and support for a larger field sales organization and
to ensure broad geographic coverage. We completed expansion of our sales management team in the fourth
quarter of 2004 and expect to complete expansion of our field sales organization by mid-year of 2005. We also
employ field based reimbursement specialists who call on U.S. managed care organizations and other third-
party payors to achieve maximum reimbursement levels and to further stimulate demand for our products.
Where, and if, appropriate, we also seek co-marketing agreements with major clinical laboratories to leverage
their sales capabilities and more effectively market our products directly to health care providers.

Outside the U.S., with the exception of Canada where we sell to and service customers through our own
sales and service organization, we market and sell our products primarily through a distribution network. To
support these efforts, we employ eight full-time personnel, consisting of a sales director, and a sales, marketing
* and service staff located in Europe. We anticipate expanding our international sales and service team in 2005
to meet the requirements of our growing international business. Our international distribution network is
comprised of both large distribution organizations with products focused on the clinical diagnostic market and
smaller organizations with products focused specifically on the anatomic pathology market.

We participated in a product evaluation in the U.K. related to liquid-based cytology testing for cervical
cancer. In October 2003 the National Institute for Clinical Excellence (“NICE,” or the “Committee”) in the
U.K. issued guidance that recommends the adoption of liquid-based cytology for cervical cancer screening.
The formal guidance recommends that liquid-based cytology be used as the primary means of processing
cervical cancer screening samples in England and Wales. We have been awarded contracts to supply our
SurePath liquid-based Pap test by five regional healthcare providers in the United Kingdom since NICE
approved the conversion to liquid-based cytology for cervical screening. The United Kingdom National Health
Service, which plans to convert completely to liquid-based cytology, represents attractive growth potential for
our products. In June 2004, Cervical Screening Wales (the national Welsh cervical screening organization)
signed a five-year contract to use the SurePath liquid-based Pap test exclusively for its cervical screening
program. In September 2004, Birmingham Women’s Hospital and Good Hope Hospital signed a five-year
contract to use the SurePath liquid-based Pap test exclusively for all women in its cervical screening program.
Birmingham Women’s Hospital will rollout the SurePath liquid-based Pap test to Primary Care Clinics in the
South Birmingham Primary Care Trust (PCT) during late 2004 and is scheduled to begin processing samples
from Good Hope Hospital in Spring 2005. In October 2004, Cheshire and Merseyside Strategic Health
Authority (Liverpool) signed a five-year contract to use the SurePath liquid-based Pap test for its cervical
screening program. In February 2005, Cumbria and Lancashire Strategic Health Authority signed a five-year
exclusive contract to use the SurePath liquid-based Pap test for its cérvical screening program. Also, in March
2005, the four strategic health authorities that comprise North East, Yorkshire and Humber regions of
England signed a five-year exclusive contract to use the SurePath liquid-based Pap test for its cervical
screening program. '

We offer post-sale support services, including customer training, product installation, telephone technical
support and repair service directly to customers in the United States and Canada. Qur support personnel are
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located bvoth at our headquarters and in select major metropolitan areas. Otherwise, internationally, we provide
these ser‘}{ices through our employees and distributor organizations.-

i - vy "
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Manufacturmg

| Cos . ' ’ u

SurePath and PrepStam B . v "

We currently assemble test’ and package components of PrepStam and its accessory, PrepMate at our
manufactunng fac111ty in Burlmgton North' Carolina. We also manufacture our SurePath preservative fluid
and our PrepStain line of reagents and stains for PrepStain at the Burlington facility. We believe that our
existing ‘r‘nanufactunng, and assembly processes are adequate to meet the near-term, full-scale production
requirements‘of cour SurePath and PrepStain systems for cervical cancer screening.

L The*consumable items used with PrepStain are-purchased from a varlety of third-party vendors, some of
which' afe’ sole- source suppliers. We completed a multi-year, exclusive contract with a European supplier of
rnanufactured 1nst1urnent components that are incorporated into our PrepStain product line in December
2004: ‘Those 1nstrurnent components will now be purchased from a U.S. subsidiary. Service parts will continue
to be purchased from ‘our European supplier. Pricing for components is fixed, but is subject to adjustment
based ipon changes in Taw material costs. We believe that our new supplier has sufficient capacity to meet our
present and future requrrements for these components. We believe our new supplier will allow us to ensure
unmterrupted supply of PrepStaln component parts. ,

FocalPomt i

g rWe currently assernble 1ntegrate and test the FocalPomt electromc mechamcal and opt1ca1 components
and modules at, our Redmond, Washington facility.. Qur. operations have produced sufficient FocalPoint
systems 0 meet customer demand since we began commercial operations in 1996 and we believe we have

sufﬁment capacny to-meet anticipated near-term-customer needs: for our FocalPoint product

‘ We purchase all components for the FocalPomt system from outside vendors. Several components of the
FocalPomt system are supplied by sole- source vendors. Tf any of these sole-source suppliers are unable to
prov1de an ad‘eﬁuate and constant supply of ¢components; we will need to modify any components provided by
additional or replacement suppliers. We may be unable to quickly establish additional or replacement sources
of supply for several FocalPoint components. In addition, we may need to obtam regulatory approval to

substltute certam components

SlzdeWtzard ‘Praducts

"tW e currently rnanufacture the ma]onty of our ShdeW1zard product hne at our. Burhngton North
Cardlina’ fa0111ty 'We also manufacture a limited number of our GS Review Stations and integrate them into
the FocalPomt GS for-international sales at our:Redmbond, Washmgton facility. We believe we have sufficient
capac1ty 6 meet ant1c1pated near-term customer demand for our SlideWizard product hne

,1Our Shderzard products and GS Rev1ew Statlons consrst pnmanly of off-the- shelf components and
propnetary software "The components are supphed by a variety of vendors, some of which are sole-source
supphers We have been integrating and selhng SlldeW1zard products since 1993,

Molecular Dmgnosttcs e T S o '«,..v :

i
i

Reagents ! l;g ‘ . " ‘
In 2004, we- began in-house and 1n1t1ated third- party manufactunng of molecular diagnostic reagents that
were developed for commercialization at our TriPath Oncology facility. Our molecular diagnostic manufactur-
ing!is! performed in a dedicated suite built at the Burlington, North ‘Carolina facility.' Molecular reagent
products?‘consisﬂof mondclonal antibodies grown and puriﬁed in héuse, diluted, filled, labeled and packaged for
their a:nt1c1pated commercial release in 2005. We bélieve ‘we have: sufficient manufacturing expertise and
capamty to meet antlcrpated near-term customer demand for our molecular diagnostic product line.
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Molecular Imaging Systems

In 2004, we began manufacturing our new Interactive Histology Imaging System in Burlington, North
Carolina, in support of our exclusive sales and distribution agreement with Ventana. Our Interactive Histology
Imaging System consists primarily of off-the-shelf components and proprietary software. The components are
supplied by a variety of vendors, some of which are sole-source suppliers. We expect to begin manufacture of
our Molecular Cytology Imaging System in our Burlington, North Carolina facility in 2005. We believe we
have sufficient capacity to meet anticipated customer demand for our molecular imaging product line.

Lean Manufacturing Strategy

In 2002, we introduced Lean Manufacturing into our organization. Our Lean Manufacturing strategy
incorporates process improvement methodologies to eliminate non-value adding activities within the opera-
tions area to reduce costs, improve quality and product delivery. The Lean Manufacturing process improve-
ment strategy includes tools such as Value Stream Mapping, One-Piece Flow, Kanban Materials
Management and Kaizen implementation methodology. During 2004, value stream driven Kaizen events
continued, at a rate of at least one per month. We believe these efforts continuously serve to remove waste and
inefficiencies from our manufacturing processes, resulting in lower costs, improved quality and delivery to our
customers. '

Our Suppliers

Several components of our products are supplied by sole-source vendors. Subject to any of our exclusive
contractual arrangements, we may seek to establish relationships with additional suppliers for components of
our products. If any of our current or future sole-source suppliers are unable to provide an adequate and
constant supply of components, we will need to modify any components provided by additional or replacement
suppliers for use in our products. We may be unable to quickly establish additional or replacement sources of
supply for several of these components. The incorporation of new components, or replacement components
from alternative suppliers into our products may require us to submit PMA supplements to, and obtain further
regulatory approvals from, the FDA before marketing the products with the new or replacement components.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain the necessary approvals.

Manufacturing Standards

Our manufacturing process is subject to extensive regulation by the FDA, including the FDA’s Quality
System Regulation (QSR, including Good Manufacturing Practice, or GMP) requirements. As part of the
FDA regulatory process, we face periodic FDA inspections and other periodic inspections by U.S. and foreign
regulatory agencies. See “Governmental Regulation.” Both the Burlington, North Carolina and Redmeond,
Washington facilities are subject to periodic FDA inspections. Failure to comply with the FDA’s QSR
requirements in the future would materially impair our ability to achieve or maintain commercial-scale
production. In addition, if we are unable to maintain full-scale production capability, acceptance by the
market of PrepStain, SurePath and FocalPoint would be impaired, which in turn would have a material
adverse effect on our business. '

In addition to QSR requirements, we are required to meet requirements relating to ISO 9001
certification, and European regulatory requirements. A European “CE” certification is.required ‘to successfully
sell PrepStain and FocalPoint in the European Economic Area (EEA, the 25 European Union member states,
plus Norway, Iceland and Liechtenstein) according to certain European Community (EC) directives. The
OEM supplier of the PrepStain instrument components has ISO 9001 certification and has obtained CE
certification for the main PrepStain component. In December 2003, we met the essential requirements of the
European In Vitro Diagnostic Medical Devices Directive (IVDD), which will allow us to add the CE Mark to
our cytology products, and we are now in a position to apply the CE mark to.the entire PrepStain system. The
FocalPoint System is certified to EN55022:94/CISPR 22, Class A, EN 50082-1 92, AS/NZS2064/
CISPR 11, Class A. '
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- We. obtained ISO 13485 certification-at our Burlington, North Carolina facility in 1999. We obtained
ISO ;13485 certification at our  Redmond, facility in.July :2003. Compliance audits have been routinely
conducted at both: our ;Burlington, North Carolma and Redmond, ;Washington facilities by certified 1SO
auditors, most: recently in October 2004 in Burlington and- January. and October 2004 in Redmond. We have
no! outstandmg deﬁcrencres related to these, comphance audits.. In ‘addition, the Burlington and Redmond
manufacturing. facilities successfully underwent ISO certification audits.in order to comply with Canadian
requirements, . which became effective on-January 1, 2003: Under, the Canadian requirements, third-party
certification of comphance with ISO 13485 0r 13488 &and Regulatron SOR/980282, as amended, is required
and was; obtalned ' »

Research and Dé‘velopment
’ Our research_and development programs are currently focused on three major goals:
L8 development‘ of molecular dragnostlc products for mahgnant melanoma and cancer of the cervix,

breast ovary and prostate, :

" « continued 1mprovement of the FocalPomt Imaging System PrepStam System and reagents and
' ’d1sposables'

SO o i | e . !
. development of molecular 1mag1ng systems g by

“‘\

Development of Molecular Diagnostic Products

“On. July 31, 2001 we entered into 4 series of agreements with Becton ‘Dickinson and Company (BD) to
develop and commercrahze molecular dlagnostlc products for melanoma and cancer of the cervix, breast,
ovary and prostate usmg ‘genomic and proteomrc markers rdentlﬁed at Millennium Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(Mlllennr m)' The products we ' are’ developmg mcorporate .genomic ' and proteomic markers that were
identified through( dlscovery research conducted at Millennium ‘uider' its research and development agreement
with' BDJas well as’other markers that have been or may be identified independently of that agreement. In
January 2004 'thé molecular marker drscovery process ‘and transfer 6f all markers from Millennium’ was
completed ‘We have iised, and intend to use, these markers and related intellectual property to develop and
commermahze tests’ and other products for these cancers: We will share ‘cominercial responsibilities with BD
for any products that we “ultimately develop utrlrzmg the markers developed pursuant to our research and
development agreement w1th BD ‘

.o
Sy

Frve key, components of our product development strategy are, respons1ble for what we beheve are the
dlfferentratmg features of our molecular diagnostic products: N

1), Our, blomarker discovery process was outcome driven. We identified and valldated our molecular
ibromarkers based upon predetermined cllmcal spec1ﬁcat1ons and correlated the presence of specific
molecular blomarkers with a series of clinical spec1ﬁcat10ns for each of our targeted cancers. These
chmcal specrﬁcatlons are based upon unmet clmlcal needs and” what we perceive to be a significant
commercral opportumty ' S Sy

i 2) leen the blologrcal and chmcal complex1ty of cancer it is generally accepted that cancer onset
and progressmn are driven by multiple gene-related. changes As a result, with the exception of our RUO

reagents for melanoma each of our molecular assays, .meorporates multiple molecular biomarkers.

Hee ’3) lWe bel1eve that if properly selected, a ﬁmte number of molecular biomarkers will yield
~molecular proﬁles or signatures, that are corrélative with clinical phenotype and patient outcome,
'thereby, hmltmg the" complex1ty of test1ng ‘téchnology and mformat1on management that is required by
“the performmg laboratory With the exception of ‘our RUO' reagents for melanoma, our molecular
products 1ncorporate from three to eight molecular bromarkers per assay )

4) Our assay technologles are. bemg developed in. commercrally accepted formats to facilitate rapid
laboratory adopt1on For our slide-based assays, we have chosen a standard IHC or immunacytochemistry
(1CC) format, with ;standard colorometric bright field: detection .to facilitate the quantification of
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molecular markers (proteins) within the context of cellular morphology. For our blood-based screening
assays, we have chosen an immunoassay format that is capable of detecting and quantifying multiple
secreted proteins in blood. This approach requires us to generate monoclonal antibodies targeted to each
unique protein that we wish to quantify. We do this by first translating the unique gene sequences
identified by Millennium undet its research and development agreement with BD (as well as other
sequences that have been or may be identified independently of that agreement) into proteins using a
number of protein expression systems and ther develop monoclonal antibodies specific to each protein
through standard hybridoma technology. After each monoclonal antibody marker is independently
validated using clinical samples with known patient outcome, a marker panel will be assembled to achieve
the desired assay sensitivity and specificity.

5) We believe that the results obtained with molecular biomarkers in slide-based assays will be
interpreted, at least initially, in the context of historical standards of practice, such as morphology. Given
that tissue architecture, cell morphology, and precise sub-cellular localization of molecular biomarkers
will be an important tool for accurate cancer staging and prognosis, we have adapted our proprietary
image analysis platform to allow analysis and quantification -of multiple, discrete molecular markers
within the context of tissue distribution and cellular location. We also believe that in many cases clinical
outcomes are determined by subtle differences in gene or protein expression, and that these subtle
differences in gene and protein levels will require advanced imaging capability for quantification and
interpretation.

In November 2004, we announced that data generated from in-house research studies of an early version
of our proprietary formulation of multiple biomarkers derived from our cervical cancer development program
demonstrated a sensitivity of 93%, a specificity of 92%, a negative predictive value of 97%, and a positive
predictive value of 79% for biopsy proven moderate to severe cervical dysplasia in a retrospective cohort of
cervical samples. These and other data relating to the performance of individual biomarkers and the
proprietary formulation combining multiple biomarkers were presented at the Annual Scientific Meeting of
the American Society of Cytopathology in Chicago, Illinois. For the purpose of these research studies, the
biomarkers were incorporated into a proprietary, reproducible, easy-to-use, research format that utilizes
cervical cytology slides prepared from samples collected with the SurePath test pack. Individual biomarkers
and a combination of multiple biomarkers were evaluated as to their ability to detect biopsy proven cervical
dysplasia and cervical cancer as reflected in a histologic grade of CIN2 or greater (moderate to severe
dysplasia) in a retrospective cohort of samples. There can be no assurance that any products we develop, when
and if approved by applicable regulatory authorities, will demonstrate results that are the same as or are
similar to the results we obtained in our in-house studies.

In December 2004, we announced that data generated from in-house research studies of our breast
cancer biomarkers demonstrated a strong correlation between biomarker expression and recurrence of breast
cancer in archival breast tissue samples from a retrospective cohort of patients with early stage breast cancer.
The results of these in-house research studies were presented at the Annual San Antonio Breast Cancer
Symposium at a Company sponsored symposium held in San Antonio, Texas. For the purposes of these
research studies, five biomarkers were incorporated into a proprietary, reproducible, easy-to-use, research
assay that involves the staining of tissue biopsies on glass microscope slides. Tissue slides prepared from
archival breast tissue were stained with each of the five biomarkers allowing for evaluation of each biomarker
individually and as a panel of biomarkers by evaluatmg the combined results of two or more of the tissue
section slides. Biomarker staining was analyzed using a prototype of our Interactive Histology Imaging
System. While expression of each individual biomarker correlated with cancer recurrence, the strength of
correlation was significantly improved when the analysis included the combined results of two or more
biomarkers. The rate of breast cancer recurrence was directly related to the number of biomarkers that stained
positive. When no biomarkers were positive, the cancer recurrence rate was less than 20%. However, the
recurrence rate increased to 35% when one biomarker was positive, 65% when two biomarkers were positive,
and nearly 80% with three or more positive biomarkers. These results were independent of other known
prognostic indicators such as tumor size or HER-2/neu status. There can be no assurance that any products
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we, develop, when and if approved by applicable regulatory authontles will demonstrate results that are the
© same 'as or are, s1rmlar to the results we obtained in our in- -house studies. !

o Over the past two' years we have released several of our molecular diagnostic reagents in a RUO format to
fac111tate external research studies by independent 1nvest1gators We released RUO reagents for cervical and
breast cancer, stagmg in 2004. Investigators at the Massachusetts General Hospital, Johns Hopkins Hospital,
and the University of Colorado are’ currently evaluatlng the analytical and clinical performance of our RUO
reagents for cerv1cal cancer stagmg Investlgators atAlbany Medical: Collegc ar¢ currently evaluating the .
clinical performance of our RUO reagents for breast cancer staging. We expect the results of these research
studies will be available for review in the latter half of 2005. In data presented in 2004 from a study completed
in 2003, investigators at Albany Medical College observed that the measurement of melastatin™ expression
using our melanoma assay provided independent prognostic information that may be useful in determining the
risk 'of diseaseirecurrence and metastasis in patients with primary thin melanoma lesions. There can be no
assurance that the results of these research studies will demonstrate the results that are the same as or are
s1rmlar to: the results we obtained in our in-house studies.

'

Impro‘vement of FocalPoint Imaging System, PrepStain' System, Reagents and Disposables

Enhancements to both FocalPoint and PrepStam are specifically des1gned to increase the instruments’
elﬁcrency, ease' of use, reliability and cost- effectiveness. This also includes initiatives directed at extending the
shelf life of the SurePath and PrepStain lines of reagénts and preservanves used with the PrepStain system.
We are also contmumg to explore alternative uses for adjunctrve test1ng us1ng our SurePath preservatrve fluid.

Development of Molecular Imagmg Systems

' !

We are leveragmg our extenswe 1ntellectual property portfollo know how, and experience in image
analysis to develop molecular imaging systems that we believe will enhance the performance of our molecular
diagnostic products Our new interactive histology imaging system is designed to allow fast, reliable and cost
efféctive- quant1ﬁcatron of different. breast cancer markers applied to histological sections. Our Molecular
Cytology Imaglng System is being developed to identify abnormal cells on cytology slide preparations based on
the1r spec1ﬁc reactlon with molecular biomarkers. =

There can be no. assurance that any product enhancement or development project that we undertake,
either currently or in’ the future, will be successfully completed, receive regulatory approvals, be successfully
commergialized or demonstrate results that are the same as or-aré similar to our other early studies. The
failure of any such enhancement or project to be completed approved or commercialized could prevent us
from successfully competing in our- ‘targeted markets.

| - s |

'

As of December 31, 2004 we . had approx1rnately 70 employees engaged in research and development
activities: Our expendrtures for research and development were approximately $7.5 million, $8.9 million and
$11.3 mrlhon for.the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. See additional discussion in
Item 7 — Management s Discussion and Analysrs of Flnancral Condition and Results of Operations.”

Thlrd Party Relmbursement .
Cervzcal Cytologvt Product Line

‘ The vast maJorrty of private- th1rd -party medical insurance prov1ders and governmental agencies offer
coverage and re1mbursement for laboratory testing associated with routine medical examinations, including
* Pap smears as part of a wellness program. In the United States, thé lével of reimbursement by those third-
party payors for wellness testing, including the Pap smear, can vary cons1derably However, on average, since
the - majority ,of ‘third ‘party payors benchmark coverage and pricing based on Medicare coverage and
relmbursement determinations, there has been a general inerease in reimbursement amounts paid for cervical
cancer screenmg due!to a minimum payment of $14.76 established in 2002 by the Center for Medicare and
Medicaid Servrces (CMS) which administers Medicare. In addition ;to the minimum established by CMS,
subse,quentMedrcare National Limitation Amount (NLA) pricing for these procedures has created a positive



level of increased reimbursement for the newer technologies, including both the PrepStain and the FocalPoint.
Successful commercialization of PrepStain and FocalPoint. for cervical cancer screening in the United States,
and some other countries, will depend on the availability of reimbursement from such third-party payors.

Because the up-front costs of usmg our products are typically greater than the cost of the conventional Pap
smear, we have worked to convince third-party payors that the overall cost savings to the health care system,

resulting from early detection of cervical cancer and its precursors will more than offset the cost of our
products. The Medicare NLA for the various procedures that represent the technologies for cervical cancer
screening demonstrates the general revenue potential. As a result of the Medicare Modernization Act of 2003,

the clinical laboratory fee schedule for 2005 will remain the same as 2004. Below are the current NLA’s (as of
December 20()4) for the various CPT codes affecting our business:

CPT Code ) ] Description - NLA

.88164  Cytopathology smears, cervical or vaginal (Bethesda System reporting); manual
: screening under physician supervision oo ‘ $14.76
88147  Cytopathology smears, cervical or vaginal; screening by automated system under

physician supervision $15.90
88148  Cytopathology smears, cervical or vaginal, screening by automated system with

manual re-screening under physician supervision $21.23

88142 Cytopathology, cervical or vaginal (any reporting system), collected in preservative

fluid, automated thin layer preparation; manual screening under physician supervision $28.31
88174  Cytopathology, cervical or vaginal (any reporting system), collected in a preservative

fluid, automated thin layer preparation; with screening by automated system, under

physician supervision $29.85
88175  Cytopathology, cervical or vaginal (any reporting system), collected in a preservative

fluid, dutomated thin layer preparation; with screening by automated system and

manual re-screening, under physician supervision $37.01

We have focused on obtaining coverage and relmbursement from major national and regional managed
care organizations and insurance carriers throughout the United States. We have a reimbursement team to
work with third-party insurers and managed care organizations to establish and improve third-party
reimbursement rates for our products. Most third-party payor organizations independently evaluate new
diagnostic procedures by reviewing the published literature and the Medicare coverage and reimbursement
policies on the specific diagnostic procedures. To assist third-party payors in their respective evaluations of
PrepStain and FocalPoint, we provide scientific and clinical data to support our claims of the safety and
efficacy of our products. ' We focus on improved discase detection and long-term cost savings benefits in
obtaining reimbursement for PrepStain and FocalPoint for cervical cancer screening.

To date, the manually screened PrepStain thin-layer slide preparation procedure has achieved near
universal covérage from third-party payors, as has the FocalPoint primary screening procedure for convention-
ally-prepared slides. During 2004 the combined procedure of screening PrepStain slides on the FocalPoint has
also achieved near universal coverage from the commercial and managed care insurers. Over the past year,
laboratories utilizing the combined PrepStain/FocalPoint application have and continue to reahze positive
coverage and reimbursement from the vast majority of the third party payors.

We expect to continue to realize the positive reimbursement for our technologies we received in 2004
throughout 2005 from the payor community and will work to continue to demonstrate diagnostic and
economic value as new performance data is realized and made available. However, there can be no assurance
that such favorable relmbursement will continue.

¥

Molecular Diagnostic Products and Imaging Syst‘ems‘

As with our cervical cytology products, we expect that our molecular diagnostic reagents and imaging
systems will be primarily purchdsed by medical institutions and laboratories that bill third-party payers such as
government healthcare administration authorities, private health coverage insurers, managed care organiza-
tions and other similar organizations. Qur ability to earn sufficient returns on these products will depend in
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part on- the extent to which reimbursement for these products and related treatments will be available to our
customers from thrrd-party payers.- Generic billing codes and reimbursement schedules exist for slide based
1mmunohlstochem1stry and immunocytochemistry tests, including laboratory developed home brew assays,
and these: codes. reflect incremental reimbursement for image analysis. All of our slide based molecular
dragnosnc reagents are being developed in. either 1mmunohrstochem1stry or immunocytochemistry formats.
For' our cervzcal screenmg assay, it is likely that we will apply for erther a new code or a code based on the
Medlcare NLA 16 Teflect the increased utility of the test. For blood based screening reagents, we will most
llkely be requ1red to work with government healthcare administrative authorities to establish new billing codes
and reimbursement schedules While opportunities exist to enhance third party reimbursement if the results of
future .clinical tnal and peer reviewed published studies support unique and high value clinical claims, third-
party. payers ar¢ 1ncreas1ngly attempting to limit both the.coverage and the level of reimbursement of products
to contain costs;and if they are successful, ,our ability to generate revenue growth and profitably from our
molecular d1agnost1c products will be adversely affected.
.

Propnetary Technology and Inteliectual Propen‘.y .

We' currently hold over 110 issued or allowed United States patents. 'We have aggressively filed patents to
protect the intellectual property generated by TriPath Imaging through work done in our TriPath Oncology
segment for the molecular and imaging programs. We also hold over 70 foreign patents and have applied for
patent protectlon for certain aspects of out technology in various foreign countries. Many of our patents were
acquired in the merger of AutoCyte Inc. and NeoPath Inc. and the acquisition of the intellectual property and
technology of Neuromedrcal Systems, Inc. We further expanded, and are expanding, our patent portfolio
through the, acqulsltron of the intellectual property of Cell Analysis Systems from BD in September 1999 and
through our current work undertaken at TriPath Oncology. Our patents cover system components, such as the
d1saggregat10n syringe, .the PrepStain process, and various aspects of our high-speed image-interpretation
technology, as applied to cytopathology and. histopathology. Because of the substantial length of time and
expense- requ1red to brmg new products through development and regulatory approval to the marketplace, we
rely jofi a. combination of patents, trade secrets, copyrights and confidentiality agreements to protect our
proprletary technology, rights and know-how. We intend to continue to pursue patent protection where it is
available and gost- -effective, both in the United States as well as in other countries. Most of our existing
United- States‘and forergn patents will expire between. 2012 through 2020. Several of our foreign patents
exprred in. 2004, There can be no assurance, however, that the claims allowed in any of our existing or future
patentswill provrde competitive advantages for our products oor will not be successfully challenged or
c1rcumvented by oir competitors.

Our molecular concology program focuses on using new discoveries in genomics and proteomics research
to develop and commerc1a11ze molecular diagnostic products -to improve the early detection and clinical
management of. certam types of cancer. We have active programs in development seeking to create tests to
1dent1fy mdlvrduals with certain types of cancer. at the earliest possrble stage of the disease, provide
1nd1v1duahzed predrct1ve and prognostic information, guide treatment selection for patients with cancer, and
pred1ct d1sease recurrence. The core products and services we are developing will be based upon genomic and
proteomiic: markers that were 1dent1ﬁed through drscovery research conducted at Millennium under its
research and development agreement with BD as well as other markers that have been or may be identified
mdependently of. that agreement. We have sublicensed certain of BD’s rights to the proprietary markers. Our
approach to ‘marker d1sc0very, identification, and pnorrtrzatron is based on correlation with patient outcome
and 1nc]udes the evaluatron of markers that have been previously 1dent1ﬁed by others as well as novel markers
that have not been prevrously assoc1ated with our specific product 1nd1cat10ns As a result, to ensure our
freedom to ut1l1ze known markers and 1ntegrate them into our product candidates, we will in certain instances
be' requlred to lrcense them from third parties. We are concurrently pursuing intellectual property protection
for the. novel markers that we have identified and the proprietary formulations that we are creating from the
combmatlon‘ of erther novel or known markers as well as for molecular imaging systems. However, we cannot
be sure that we will be able to license' markers on acceptable terms, if at all, or establish intellectual property
protection. of our, novel markers, propnetary formulations or molecular imaging systems. During 2004, we filed
prov1s1onal patents ,that covered our discoveries, valrdatlon and clinical assay format development in our
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cervical screening, breast prognosis and ovarian molecular oncology programs. We cannot be sure that our
products or technologies do not infringe patents that may be granted in the future pursuant to pending patent
applications or that our products do not infringe any patents or proprietary rights of third parties or that all of
our issued patents are valid.

Under current law, patent applications in the United States and in foreign countries are generally
maintained in secrecy for a period after filing. The right to a patent in the United States is attributable to the
first to invent, not the first to file a patent application.

We have registered trademarks in the United States for AutoCyte®, AutoCyte Quic® CytoRich®,
ImageTiter®, PAPMAP®, PrepMate®, SlideWizard®, and TriPath Imaging®. We have pending
U.S. trademark applications for ## Series™, FocalPoint™, PrepStain™, ProEx™, SureDetect™, SurePath™,
TriPath Care Technologies™, and TriPath Oncology™. Foreign registrations are maintained for several of our
trademarks in Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Canada, Chile, China, the European Union, Finland, Hong Kong,
Indonesia, Israel, Japan, Malaysia, Norway, the Russian Federation, South Africa, Sweden, Switzerland,
Taiwan and the United Kingdom. We have pending foreign trademark applications for FocalPoint™, i
Series™, PAPNET®, PrepStain™, SurePath™, ProEx™ and TriPath Care Technologies™. In addition to
trademark activity, we include a copyright notice on all of our documentation and operating software. There
can be no assurance that any trademarks or copyrights that we own will provide competitive advantages for our
products or will not be challenged or circumvented by our competitors. '

Competition
Commercial Operations

The cervical cancer screening market is comprised of the conventional Pap smear process and certain
technologies that have been introduced in recent years or are currently under development to provide
improvements over the conventional Pap smear process. Our competitors in the development and commercial-
ization of alternative cervical cancer screening technologies include both publicly traded and privately held
companies. Alternative technologies known to us have focused on improvements in slide sample preparation,
the development of automated, computerized screening systems and adjunctive testing technologies. Never-
theless, some competitors’ products have already received FDA-approval and are being marketed in the
United States. In addition, one of our competitors has greater financial, marketing, sales, distribution and
technical resources than us, and more experiénce in research and development, chmcal trials, regulatory
matters, customer support and marketing. ‘ -

We believe that our products compete on the basis of a nimber of factors, including slide specimen
adequacy, screening sensitivity, ease of use, efficiency, cost to customers and performance claims. We believe
a fully automated solution incorporating collection, preparation, staining, and computerized imaging for liquid
based thin-layer preparations is required for sustaining our competitive advantage. While we believe that our
products will have competitive advantages based on some of these factors, there can be no assurance that our
competitors’ products will not have competitive advantages based on other factors, including earlier market
entry and scale, which may adversely affect market acceptance of our products. Moreover, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against current or future competitors or that
competition, including the development and commercialization of new products and technologies, will not
have a material adverse effect on our business. Qur products could be rendered obsolete or uneconomical by
technological advances of our current or potential competitors, the introduction and market acceptance of
competing products or by other alternative approaches for cervical cancer screening.

Our primary competltor in the Unlted States and abroad in thin-layer slide preparation is Cytyc.
Corporation (Cytyc). Cytyc’s systems, the ThinPrep 2000 and ThinPrep 3000 processors, are based on a
membrane-filtration separation system rather than the density gradient and centrifugation- approach used in
our PrepStain process. The Cytyc ThinPrep systems are presently the only other thin-layer sample preparation
systems approved by the FDA as a replacement for the conventional Pap smear. They are also used for non-
gynecological applications. Additionally, in Europe and in Latin America, there are a few small thin-layer
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compet1tors oﬁenng a manual method liquid based product. Currently these manufacturers have very little
market share and .are not -actively pursuing FDA approval for their products. Nonetheless they are creating
compet1t1ve actmty 1n France and in many countnes around the world

We also face' several competitors, or potent1al competltors in the imaging field. To date, the FocalPoint
system is the’ only FDA-approved device for the automated primary screening of thin-layer and conventional -
Pap smear slides! In June 2003, however, Cytyc announced that it had received approval from the FDA for
commercialization of its ThinPrep Imaging System, an interactive computer system that is designed to assist
cytotechnologlsts in the primary screening and diagnosis of its thin-layer slides. We are currently engaged in
litigation with Cytyc as to whether its ThinPrep Imaging System infringes certain of our patents. See
Item 3 — “Legal Proceedmgs below. Other competitors include ChromaVision Medical Systems, Inc.
(ChromaV1s1on) which recently announced its plans to change its name to Clarient, Inc. and has also.
announced its ‘1ntent1on to reposition itself as a diagnostic services company, develops, manufactures and
markets an automated cellular imaging system to assist in the detection, diagnosis and treatment of cellular
diseases such as cancer ‘and Applied Imagmg Corporation, which develops and markets automated genetic
testmg systems and imaging systems used i In cancer pathology and research which are capable of sending
dlgltal 1mages electromcally for remote rev1ew and consultation.

SR ‘ ‘ S
Molecular Dtagnosttc Reagents S

i
| 1o

Compet1t1on m the ﬁeld of cancer dlagnostlc products contlnues to be concentrated in a few areas and is
expected to further 1ntensrfy Aside from mammography screemng for breast cancer, the in vitro cancer
d1agnost1cs market consists primarily of tumor marker immunoassays.. The cancer immunoassay market
encompasses a, number of blood-based tumor marker tests that are utilized extensively to assess therapeutic
response and moriitor for disease recurrénce but have limited applications for screening due to their lack of
sensitivity .and- specificity. Currently, prostate specific antigen (PSA) is the only biood based tumor marker
that ‘is. umversally utxhzed for cancer screening. Among the companies competing in the tumor marker
immunoassay market are Abbott Diagnostics, Bayer D1agnost1cs Roche Dlagnostlcs Ortho Clinical Diagnos-
tics, Beckman Coulter and Dade-Behring.

We beheve tthat genom1c and proteomlc-based assays wil} likely prov1de a more accurate, disease-specific
understandmg of cancer to improve the clinical management of cancer. Although there are a number of
compames that are investing in genorhic and proteomic discovery research, few have invested as broadly in the
cancer dlagnostlcs area as we have through our relationship with BD: We view our primary competitors in this
area to be Abbott D1agnostlcs Bayer Diagnostics, and Roche Diagnostics. Abbott Laboratories, through its
acqulsmon lof Vys1s Inc. 'develops and markets clinical laboratory products targeting DNA chromosomal and
genomic abnormalities for cancer and pre- and post-natal genetic disorders. Bayer D1agnost1cs and Roche
D1agnost1cs operate in the immunoassay and tumor marker markets e | :

i

‘ ’In addmon to 1mmunoassay-bascd tests, we believe the staging, prognosis and predlctlon of outcomes will
also be heav11y mﬂuenced by the assessment of special stains utilizing THC and in situ hybridization
(ISH) techmques on tissue specimens. The primary compames currently competing in this area are Dako
Corporauon and Ventana Medical Systems, Inc. Both. companies speCIahze in automated IHC staining
mstrumentat1on and otfer a wide range of validated IHC tumor markers.

We also have several competitors with competing technology in the molecular diagnostics field. TriPath
Oncology faces a host ‘of competition from companies such as Roche Diagnostics, Abbott Laboratories,
EXACT Séiences Corporation, Correlogics Systems, Inc., Genomic Health, Ciphergen, Celera Diagnostics,
and Bayer Diagnostics, all of which have announced active programs in this area. There can be no assurance
that, these. or other competitors will not succeed in- developing: technologies and products that are more
eﬁ'ectlve easier tojuse or less expensive that those which we currently. offer or are developing, or that would
render our; techriology-and products obsolete. In addition, these or other competitors may succeed in obtaining
FDA and/other- regulatory clearances and approvals of their products that we are unable to obtain or more
rap1dly than we can. o
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Government Regulation

The design, testing, manufacture, labeling, distribution, advertising, promotion and sale of our medical
diagnostic devices is subject to extensive governmental regulation in the United States and in other countries
where we sell our products. In addition, our research and development activities in the United States are
subject to various health and safety, employment and other laws and regulations.

United States FDA Approval

PrepStain and FocalPoint are regulated for cervical cytology applications in the United States as medical
devices by the FDA under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or the FDC Act, and require pre-
market approval by the FDA prior to commertcial distribution. In addition, certain modifications to the design,
performance, manufacturing process or labeling of medical devices are subject to FDA review and approval
before marketing. FDA may impose conditions of approval or restrictions on the sale, distribution, or use of
devices. Pursuant to the FDC Act, the FDA regulates the pre-clinical and clinical testing, design,
manufacture, storage, labeling, distribution, record keeping, reporting, sales, marketing, advertising and
promotion of médical devices in the United States. The FDA also regulates the import and export of medical
devices. Noncompliance with applicable requirements, including good clinical practice requirements and QSR
requirements, can result in enforcement action which can include any of the following sanctions: the
suspension or withdrawal of authorization of clinical studies, the refusal of the government to grant pre-market
approval or premarket clearance for devices, suspension or withdrawal of clearances or approvals, warning
letters, operating restrictions, total or partial suspension of production, distribution, sales and marketing,
customer notification, orders for repair, replacement, or refund, fines, injunctions, civil penalties, recall or
seizure of products, and criminal prosecution of a company, its officers and employees.

Medical devices are classified into one of three classes, Class I, II or 111, on the basis of the controls
deemed by the FDA to be necessary to reasonably ensure their safety and effectiveness. Class I devices are
subject to general controls (e.g., establishment registration, labeling, recordkeeping, reporting, and adherence
to FDA-mandated quality system requirements, including QSR), and, in some cases, pre-market notification
under Section 510(k) of the FDC Act. Class II devices are subject to general control$, in most cases to pre-
market notification under Section 510(k) of the FDC Act, and to special controls (e.g., performance
standards, patient registries and FDA guidelines). Generally, Class III devices are those that must receive
pre-market approval by the FDA to ensure their safety and effectiveness, including life-sustaining, life-
supporting and implantable devices, and also “new” devices that were not on the market before May 28, 1976
and for which the FDA has not made a finding of “substantial equivalence” based on a pre-market
notification. Class I1I devices usually require data from clinical testing that demonstrates the device is safe
and effective, and must have FDA approval of a premarket approval application, or PMA, under Section 515
of the FDC Act, prior to marketing and distribution. The conduct of clinical studies is subject to FDA
regulations, including requirements for institutional review board (or IRB) approval, informed consent, record
keeping, and reporting. Clinical studies of “significant risk” devices, including many Class III devices, also
require FDA approval of an investigational device exemption (IDE) application prior to initiating clinical
trials. Clinical trials are conducted with the oversight of the IRB at each study site. Our PrepStain and
FocalPoint products, when intended for gynecological use, are regulated as Class III medical devices. In the
future, some of our molecular diagnostic products may be regulated as Class I1I devices. In addition, to the
extent molecular diagnostic products may be intended for use as prognostic tests for selecting subsets of
patients most likely to benefit from drug therapies, such products may be studied in clinical trials of drug
products under the FDC Act regulatory provisions governing pharmaceutical clinical trials.

FDA has developed special rules for in vitro reagents that are not approved or cleared as diagnostic
products. FDA has imposed restrictions on the manufacture, labeling, sale, distribution, advertising, promotion
and use-of Analyte Specific Reagents (ASRs). FDA defines ASRs as antibodies, specific receptor proteins,
ligands, nucleic acid sequences, and similar reagents which, through specific binding or chemical reaction with
substances in a specimen, are intended for use in a diagnostic application for identification and quantification
of an individual chemical substance or ligand in biological specimens. In simple terms, an ASR is the active
ingredient of an in-house laboratory test and is used, in conjunction with general purpose reagents and general
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purpose 1nstruments by a laboratory that must be certlﬁed as high complex1ty under the Clinical Laboratory
Improvement Act of 1998 as amended (CLIA) and has developed and performs an in-house (“home brew”)
‘test or laboratory testing service. The in-house assay is used to test patient specimens only by the clinical
laboratory that'develdped and validated ‘the test for its own in- -house use. It is the responsibility of the
laboratory using the ASR to develop the test procedures and to- take responsibility for establishing and
maintaining performance. Most ASRs are exempt from premarket notification under Section 510(k) of the
FDC Act, but they are subject to- GMP requirements and the restrictions on sale, distribution and use imposed
by FDA regulatlon ASRs intended for use in blood banking tests are not exempt from premarket notification.
In addition, some ASRs are subject to premarket approval (PMA) requirements, 1nc1ud1ng ASRs used in
dlagnosmg a contagious condition that could be fatal (such as HIV) 'or in blood donor screening. In addition,
FDA regulates Research Use Only (RUO), products, which by their required labeling are not intended for use
in dlagnostlc procedures. The clinical application of these RUO products is unknown and commercialization is
limited to research purposes only, Products and reagents that we develop now and in the future may be subject
to these and other applicable FDA regulations.

- Device manufacturers are required to register their establishments and list their devices with the FDA.
For devices with an approved PMA, the manufacturer must submit periodic reports containing information on
safety and effectiveness and other information specified in FDA regulations. The FDC Act requires that
medical’ devices be manufactured in accordance with the FDA’s QSR requirements. PrepStain and
FocalPomt and any other products that we manufacture or distribute pursuant to an approved PMA
apphcatlon and. any supplements, or pursuant to 510(k) clearances; or as ASRs, are and will be subject to
pervasive and: continuing regulation by the FDA, including record-keeping and reporting requirements. We
have estabhshed and maintain a system for tracking FocalPoint and PrepStain systems through the chain of
d1str1but10n FDA’s Medical Device Reporting regulations require medical device companies to provide
lnformatlon to the FDA whenever evidence reasonably suggests that a device may have caused or contributed
to'a death or serious injury. These regulations also apply if the device malfunctions and the device or a similar
device sold by the company would be likely to cause or contribute to a death or serious injury if the
malfunctlon were to recur. We are also required to report to the FDA about corrections to our device products
and about any market removals.

Product labehng and promotional activities are also subject to scrutiny by the FDA. Product advertising
and promotlonal act1v1tles are also subject to regulation by the Federal Trade Commission. We, and our
dlstnbutors may only promote products for théir approved indications. In this regard,” violations of
promotlonal reqmrements may, in addition to 1mphcat1ng violations of the FDC Act, also involve violations of
the: False Clalms Act, the Medicare and Medicaid “anti-kickback” laws, and other federal or state laws that
the govemment may utilize to enforce these and related requlrements In addition to the government bringing
claims under‘the Federal False Claims Act, qui tam, or “‘whistleblowér,” actions may be brought by private
individuals on behalf of the government. Also, competitors may bring litigation under the Lanham Act relating
to: product advert1s1ng If the FDA requires us to make modifications to our product labeling in the future,
these changes may adversely affect our ability to market or sell PrepStain, FocalPoint or any of our other

products Cl e

We:are subject to both routlne and directed inspections by the FDA for compliance w1th regulations with
respect to design control ‘activities; manufacturing, testing, distribution, storage, product labeling, recordkeep-
ing, reportlng, ‘sales, advertising and promotional activities. We have Been periodically inspected by the FDA
at both’our Burlington, North Carolina and Redmond, Washington facilities. In 2004, we underwent a routine

“inspection at our Burlington facility to conclude the move of PrepMate manufacturing from Redmond to
Burlington in addition to GMP compliance. In 2003 we underwent routine inspections at both our Redmond
and Burhngton fac111t1es while in 2002, we were inspected at our Burlington facility with respect to our
advertlsmg and promot10nal act1v1t1es our manufacturing activities relative to a contemplated move of
PrepMate manufacture from our Redmond to our Burlington facﬂlty and other aspects of our manufacturing
operatrons. All ,of these inspections were concluded in 2004 without material adverse results. ‘
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If the FDA believes that we have not complied with the law, it can take one or more of the following
actions:

« refuse to review or clear applications to market our products in the United States;
« refuse to allow us to enter into government supply contracts;

+ withdraw approvals already granted; '

« require that we notify users regarding newly found risks;

« request repair, refund or replacement of faulty devices;

 request corrective advertisements, recalls or temporary marketing suspension;
 impose administrative civil penalties; and

+ initiate legal proceedings to detain or seize products, enjoin future violations, or assess civil or criminal
penalties against us, our officers or employees.

These actions. could seriously disrupt our operations for an indefinite period of time.

In the future, the Company may seek FDA approval of medical products other than medical diagnostic
devices. The regulatory requirements for these products are similar in scope to the requirements described
above for medical devices, particularly with respect to the need for, and the degree of FDA oversight of, pre-
clinical and clinical testing, pre-market approval, manufacturing, labeling, recordkeeping, promotion, sale and
post-market reporting. '

Clinical Laboraiory Improvement Act of 1988 and State Laboratory Laws

Congress has directed the Department of Health and Human Services to issue regulations designed to
improve the quality of biomedical analytic services, particularly the examination of Pap smears. These
regulations require clinical laboratories to randomly re-screen at least 10% of the Pap smears classified on
initial manual screen as normal. This 10% must include normal cases selected from the laboratory’s total
caseload, and from patients or groups of patients that have a high probability of developing cervical cancer
based on available patient information. Laboratories that purchase our PrepStain and FocalPoint products, or
our ASR’s, are subject to extensive regulation under CLIA, which requires laboratories to meet specified
standards in the areas of personnel qualifications, administration, participation in proficiency testing, patient
test management, quality control, quality assurance and inspections. We believe that our PrepStain and
FocalPoint products operate in a manner that will allow laboratories using our products to comply with CLIA
requirements. However, there can be no assurance that interpretations of current CLIA regulations or future
changes in CLIA regulations would not make compliance by the laboratory difficult or impossible and
therefore have an adverse effect on sales of our products.

"In addition, laboratories often must comply with state regulations, inspection, and licensing. In recent
years, a few states, including New York and California, have adopted regulations that limit the number of
slides that may be manually examined by a cytotechnologist within a given period of time. We cannot
guarantee that states will not directly regulate FocalPoint in the future, nor can we predict the effect, if any,
new regulations may have on our business or operations. '

Environmental, Health, Safety aﬁd Other Regulations

We also are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws relating to such matters as safe working
conditions, manufacturing practices, environmental protection, fire hazard control and disposal of hazardous or
potentially hazardous substances. Our manufacturing activities involve the use, storage, handling and disposal
of hazardous materials and chemicals and, as a result, we are required to comply with regulations and
standards of the Occupational Safety and Health Act and other safety and environmental laws. Although we
believe that our activities currently comply with all applicable laws and regulations, the risk of accidental
contamination or injury cannot be completely eliminated. In the event of such an accident, we could be held

30




liable for any damages that result, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condmon and results of operations. Further, we can give no assurarice that we will not be required to incur
s1gn1ﬁcant costs to ‘comply with such laws’ and regulations in the future or that such laws or regulations will
not have a matenal adverse eﬁect upon our busmess financial cond1t1on and results of operations.

Foretgn Regulatory Approval

Sales of: medrcal devices outside of the United States are subJect to forelgn regulatory requirements that
vary. w1dely from country to country. The time required to.obtain approval by a foreign country may be longer
or shorter than that required for FDA approval and the requirements may differ. No assurance can be given
that, such foreignregulatory approvals will be granted-on a timely basis, or at all. We have been advised by
various parties, including consultants we engaged and foreign distributors, that no regulatory approvals. for a
device analogous to FDA approval of a PMA are currently required by any country where we currently sell
PrepStain. Such approval requirements may be imposed in the future. In addition to regulatory approvals in
the United States, the FocalPoint system is approved or accepted for primary screening and quality control re-
screenmg in J apan “Canada, Australia, Germany, Belgium, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Switzerland,
Denmark, Italy, Hong Kong, Soith Korea, and Taiwan. Placements of FocalPoint are also possible in The
Netherlands, France, and many other countries where cervical screening is performed. In September 2001, we
announced rece1pt of a Medical Device License in Canada to market both our PrepStain system and the
PrepMate ‘accessory. We intend to pursue additional product registrations in other foreign countries. We
received an FDA permit to export PrepStain and FocalPoint to all foreign countries in which we are currently
selling these products and where such a permit was required. There can be no assurance that we will meet the
FDA’s export tequirements or receive additional FDA export approval when such approval is necessary, or
that countries to which the devices are to be exported will approve the devices for import. Our failure to meet
the FDA’s export requirements or obtain FDA export approval when required to do so, or to obtain approval
for 1mport could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our products are subject to a variety of regulanons in Edrope, including the EU. In vttro ‘medical devices,
mcludrng our PrepStam system, FocalPoint Imaging System, molecular diagnostic reagents, and molecular
imaging'systems, must now comply with the EC’s In-Vitro Diagnostic Medical Devices Directive also known
as IVDD. The TVDDwas published in the Official Journal of European Communities in December 1998. The
EU member states were required to implement the IVDD into national law by December 1999. A transition
period, which eénded December 6, 2003, applies to all devices placed on the market in the EU. By the end of
this transition period, our' products were required to comply with the requirements of the VDD and member-
state local language: requirements. At such time, products not bearing the CE mark would have been
prohlblted from being commercially distributed in EU member countries. Products bearing the CE mark may
crrculate freely within the EEA; but member states may restrict or -prohibit the marketing of CE-marked
devices pursuant to the safeguard clause of the IVDD if the member state determines a particular device may
compromise the health and/or safety of patiénts or users. In December 2003, we announced that we satisfied
the ‘essential requirements of the IVDD,; which -allows us to add the CE mark ‘to our. products mcludrng
ant1body—based diagnostic tests w1th the appropnate registration.

Other. European countries may enact national laws that would conform to the IVDD. EU and EEA
member ‘states' are. required to implement :national-laws that are -consistent with IVDD. However, some
European countries have established national regulations relating to in vitro diagnostic medical devices,
including rules: governmg their supply, advertlsmg, promotion, pricing or reimbursement. EC directives and
national laws impose requirements for electrical safety and .electromagnetic compatibility that apply to the
PrepStain system, PrepMate, and the FocalPoint system. We.have performed the requisite testing procedures
and related documentatlon to apply the European CE' mark to the: FocalPoint, :PrepStain and PrepMate
systems. We cannot guarantee that the FocalPoint system or any ether product we may develop will receive
any.required regulatory clearance or approval on a tlmely basis, 1f at all

In addrtlon Canadian regulations have similar, but distinct, requlrements as those noted for the EU’s
IVDD, which" also ‘became eﬁ”ectrve January L, 2003 We undertook and ach1eved comphance with those
requ1rements : : » :
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Product Liability

Commercial use of any of our products may expose us to product liability claims. We currently maintain
general liability and product liability insurance coverage and believe that the amount of such coverage is
adequate to meet our present needs. The medical device industry has experienced increasing difficulty in
obtaining and maintaining reasonable product liability coverage, and substantial increases in insurance
premium costs in many cases have rendered coverage economically impractical. To date, we have not
experienced difficulty obtaining an amount of insurance coverage commensurate with our level of sales. As our
sales expand, however, there can be no assurance that our existing product liability insurance will be adequate
or that additional product liability insurance will be available to us at a reasonable cost, or that any product
liability claim would not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Employees

 Asof December 31, 2004, we employed approximately 280 people on a ful_l-time basis. We believe that
relations with our employees are good. None of our employees are party to a collective bargaining agreement.
Item 1A. Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our current executive officers are as follows:

Name ) Age : Pasition

Paul R. Sohmer, MD. ............. 56  President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board

Stephen P. Hall ................... 54  Senior Vice-President, Chief Financial Officer

Ray W.Swanson................... 49.  Senior Vice-President, Commercial Operations

Johnny D. Powers, Ph.D. ........... 43 Senior Vice-President and General Manager,

TriPath Oncology

Paul R. Sohmer, M.D. has served as our Chairman of the Board of Directors since November 2000, and
as our President and Chief Executive Officer since June 2000. Prior to joining us, Dr. Sohmer served as the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Neuromedical Systems, Inc., a supplier of cytology screening and
anatomic pathology diagnostic equipment and services to laboratories, from 1997 through 1999. From 1996
until 1997, Dr. Sohmer served as President of a consulting firm, which he founded. From 1993 to 1996, he
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Genetrix, Inc., a genetic services company based in
Scottsdale, Arizona. From 1991 through 1993, Dr. Sochmer was the Corporate Vice-President of Professional
Services and President of the Professional Services Organization for Nichols Institute, a clinical laboratory
company, where he was responsible for sales, marketing, information systems, logistics, and clinical studies.
From 1985 until 1991, Dr. Sohmer served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Pathology Institute
in Berkeley, California, during which time he founded and served as Medical Director of the Chiron
Reference Laboratory. Dr. Sohmer received a B.A. degree from Northwestern University and an M.D. from
Chicago Medical School.

Stephen P. Hall has served as our Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer since September
2001. Prior to joining us, Mr. Hall served as Chief Financial Officer and President of the Imaging and Power
System Division of Colorado Medtech, Inc., a Colorado-based medical products and services company, from
September 1999 until August 2001. From September 1993 to January 1999, he served as Chief Financial
Officer for BioTechnica International, Inc., a publicly held agricultiral products company, as well as privately
held operating companies in' the software development, wireless communication equipment and food
processing machinery industries. Mr. Hall spent nine years in the commercial banking industry and four years
with the accounting firm of Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. He earned a A.B. degree from Harvard College
and an MBA from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.

Ray W. Swanson has served as our Senior Vice-President of Commercial Operations since May 2001.
Prior to joining us, he served as General Manager of e-Business for Dade-Behring, one of the world’s largest
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clinical dlagnostrcs companies. Mr. Swanson held a number of senior management positions at Dade Behring
and its predecessor companies since 1987. From 1997 to 1999, he was the general manager responsible for the
introduction and,market development of Dade-Behring’s platelet function business. As President of Dade-
Behnng s, Japanese subsidiary from 1994 to 1997, he was a member of the management team that purchased
Baxter International’s diagnostics businesses and created Dade International as a privately held, stand-alone
company. Prior to 1987, he held positions with Johnson and Johnson, American Hospital Supply Corporation,
Solvay (a global chemical and pharmaceut1cal company) and Washington University School of Medicine’s
Department of Anatomy and Neurobiology. Mr. Swanson has B.S. and M.S. degrees in zoology from Eastern
Ilincis University and an MBA from the University of Iowa.

Johnny D. Powers Ph.D. is our Senior Vice-President and General Manager of TriPath Oncology. He
previously served as Vice-President and General Manager of TriPath Oncology since July 2002. From
November 2001 to June 2002, Dr. Powers served as our Vice-President of Manufactunng Operations and
Product Development in our Commercial Operations segment. Prior to joining us, he held a number of senior
management positions at Ventana Medical Systems, Inc., most recently serving as Vice-President and
General Manager of Manufacturing Operations. Prior positions held at Ventana include Vice-President and
General Manager of Worldwide Strategic Marketmg and Vice-President of the Molecular Diagnostics
Business Unit. Prior to 1996, Dr. Powers held various management positions at Organon Teknika Corporation,
1nclud1ng Director of BioManufacturing and Manufacturing Technologies. Dr. Powers earned a B.S. degree in
Chennstry from Wake Forest University, a M.S. degree in Chemical Engineering from Clemson Univefsity, a
Ph.D. m BroChem1cal Engmeermg from North Carolina State University and an MBA from Duke University.

Item r2 Properttes

!

We currently ledse a total of 43,000 square feet of space devoted primarily to our Commercial Operations
manufacturmg, warehousmg, administrative, research and development and engmeenng functions at 780
Plantation Drive, Burlington, North Carolina under a seven-year lease expiring in August 2005. In 2004 we
negotiated a lorig-term 'lease extension inclusive of the addition of approximately 26,000 square feet to our
Plantation Drive facility. At the expiration of the current lease in August 2005, the new lease extends through
December 2018. We also currently leasé approximately 10,000 square feet to serve as educational and
corporate office. space at 1111 Huffman Mill Road in Burlington, North Carolina under a three-year lease
which explred in'November 2004 and which was extended on a month-by-month basis until our new addition
is complete at Plantatlon Drive. When we complete the phase-in of our new addition, with occupancy assumed
between August and December 2005, we will incorporate the Huffman Mill Road personnel and training
space into our. Plantauon Drive facility. In 2003, we renegotiated our Redmond, Washington lease in order to
reduce ofﬁce ‘and ‘manufacturing space leased. At the end of 2004 an additional lease obligation for
30, 000 square feet exprred and was not renewed. We now lease approximately 20,000 square feet of office and
manufacturing - space in' Redmond,  Washington under an operating lease. That operating lease expires in
December 2007: We also-lease approximately 4,000 square feet of office space in Brussels, Belgium, under an
operatmg lease expiring in January. 2013. We lease approxnnately 22, 000 square feet near Research Triangle
Park in Durham North Carolina devoted pnmanly to the actrvmes of TriPath Oncology. This lease has a
seven- year term- exp1r1ng in June 2009. We believe that our fac1ht1es and other available office space will be
adequate for our current and future planned needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedmgs

We compete w1th Cytyc Corporatron (Cytyc) wrth respect to the sale of our FocalPoint and Cytyc’s sale
of 1ts ThlnPrep Imagrng System. We believe Cytyc’s ThinPrep Imagmg System infringes our patents and, on
June 16, 2003, we filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the M1ddle District of North Carolina
seekmg damages and injunctive relief to stop such infringement. !

. On January.5, 2004, the district court in. Massachusetts entered an order consolidating this lawsuit mto a
s1ngle action with a lawsuit that Cytyc had filed in Massachusetts. On April 30, 2004, the district court granted
us leave to amend our complaint and answer in the consolidated action to assert infringement against Cytyc’s
ThinPrep Imaging System under two additional patents. The fact discovery period has now been completed.
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The expert discovéry period runs through April 29, 2005. The court has set alscheduling conference for May 5,

2005. At present the court has not scheduled a Markman hearing to he

ir argument on the patent claim

construction issues. We anticipate that a trial will be scheduled sometime {n 2006 based on the current case

schedule. We are unable to predict the ultimate outcome. Similarly, we a|

effect on our business and results of operations that any outcome may ulti

[e unable to predict the potentral
mately have.

The case number for the action transferred from North Carolina to Massachusctts is 1:03-CV-12630-

DPW and the case number for the consolidated Massachusetts action is

1:03-CV-11142-DPW. The case

numbers are for reference only and the corresponding pleadings are expressly not incorporated into this

document by reference.

Item 4. Submzsszon of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters subrmtted to a vote of our security holders dur;
year ended December 31, 2004.

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder M
Equity Securities

Our common stock, $0.01 par value per share, is traded on the N
symbol “TPTH”. The following table sets forth, for the calendar periods in
bid and ask prices for our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market,
mark-up, mark-down or commissions and may not represent actual transal

Year ended December 31, 2003:
First Quarter
Second QUATET .. ..o\ttt et e
Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter
Year ended December 31, 2004:
First Quarter
Second QUATET .. ..o\ttt et
Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

On March 29, 2003, the last reported sales price of the Common Stod
was $6.95 per share. As of March 29, 2005, there were 38,163,770 shares q
which were held by 346 Common Stockholders of record.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock.
future earnings, if any, for use in our business and therefore do not anticj
foreseeable future. Payment of future dividends, if any, will be at the, discre

ng the fourth quarter of the fiscal

Jatters and Issuer Purchases of

sdaq National Market under the
dicated, the range of high and low
These prices do not include retail

vtIOIlS.

......... $ 449  $2.15
......... $ 770  $3.47
......... $9.69 $5.71
......... $10.00  $7.30
......... $10.95  $7.70
......... $10.45  $8.36
......... $ 949 $7.00
......... $9.52  $6.19

k on the Nasdaq National Market
f our Common Stock outstanding,

We currently intend to retain our
pate paying cash dividends in the

tion of our Board of Directors after

taking into account various factors, including our financial condition, operafing results, current and anticipated

cash needs and plans for expansion.




Item 6 Selected Fmanczal Data

, The selected consohdated financial data presented below should be read in conjunction with Item 7. —
“Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our
consohdated ﬁnancral statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)

. Statement of Operatrons Data:

Revenues e $ 32,652 $ 27,017 $ 37485 @ $53,764  $68,504
Gross proﬁt e e e e ‘ ‘. 16,529 . 13,921 22,563 35,387 47,274
Research 'and development(l) R e L 9,629 . 1,828 10,259 14,295 15,162
Selhng, general and administrative ... ......... : 23,867 28,777 30,786 30,011 31,778
Operatmg 1ncome/(loss) ....... P ' (16967)  (22,684)  (18,482)  (8,919) 334
Net 1ncome/(loss) R . ..... $(17,369) $(21,680) $(18,064) $(8,538) § 605
Earnrngs/ (loss) per share(2) : : B '

‘Basic ..o e $ (0.60) $ (061) $ (048) . % (0.23) § 0.02

Diluted . ... o0 8 (060) 'S (0.61) $ (0.48) $ (0.23) $ 0.2
Welghted average shares outstandlng - o ‘

Basrc‘,‘,., R RETTPPPT T 29,137 35,467 37438 . 37,626 38,006

Diluted e e 29,137 35,467 37,438 37,626 39,151

December 31,
2000 2001 2002 2003 © 2004
‘ (In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data ‘ .
Cash cash equlvalents and short-term 1nvestments $54,340  $55976  $32,571  $20,954 $18,949

Worklng capital .ot 62,316 ~ 62;898 38,837 33,446 35909
Total assets ...o...ivvnno... [ 97,471 96,748 73,951 65,928 67,534
Long term obllgatrons ......... e ... 3760 - 5001 220 8 —

Total stockholders equlty P . $80,774 $77.291  $59,177  $52,371  $38,546

Ao
(l) Includes regulatory expenses.

(2) See Note 2 of Notes to our consolidated financial statements for information concerning the computation
of earmngs/ (loss) per share and shares used in eomputing earnings/ (loss) per share.

Item J. ”‘ quagément’s Discussion and Analysis of Fim_mcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction
w1th the Consolldated Financial Statements .and Notes thereto 1ncluded elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

o
The dtscussron mcluded in this section contams forward- lookmg statements based on current expectatrons

of .our. rnanagement Generally, those forward-looking statements use words like “expect,” “believe,”

contmue ” “antrcrpate estimate,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “opportunity,” “future,” “project,” and similar
expressrons Such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
from those proleeted The forward-looking statements include primarily those made in the section entitled
“Qutlook” below as well as statements about our prOJected timetables for the pre-clinical and clinical
development of, regulatory submissions and approvals for, market introduction and commercialization of our
products and services; .our expected future revenues, operations and expend1tures and our projected cash
needs and ‘the future of the markets in which we participate. '
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Statements that are not historical facts are based on our current expectations, beliefs, assumptions,
estimates, forecasts and projections for our business and the industry and magkets in which we compete. These
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and inpvolve certain risks, uncertainties
and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and fesults may differ materially from
what is expressed in such forward-looking statements. We caution investors ot to place undue reliance on the
forward-looking statements contained in this report, which speak only as the date hereof. We undertake no
obligation to update these statements to reflect events or circumstances occyrring after the date of this report
or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by faw.

Certain factors, among others, that could cause our actual results t
expressed in those forward looking statements include the following: we may

b differ materially from what is
be unable to successfully develop

and commercialize the diagnostic oncology products and services being developed by TriPath Oncology; our

products may not receive regulatory, pricing or reimbursement approval whe
may not be accepted by the market to the extent we expect; we may be
licenses, strategic collaborations and distribution arrangements; we may lac
to further develop our marketing and sales capabilities domestically and

manufacturing capability; we may be unable to comply with the exter
governmental regulatory, pricing or reimbursement approval and review prod

and sale of our products are subject, or lack the financial resources to bear
compliance; we may be unable to obtain and maintain adequate patent and

-l

h we expect, if at all; our products
inable to establish and maintain
the financial resources necessary
internationally or to expand our
sive domestic and international
edures to which the manufacture
the expense associated with such
bther proprietary rights protection

of our products and services; competition and technological change may|] make our products or potential

products and technologies less attractive or obsolete; we may incur greater
clinical trials or they may take longer to complete than we expect; our

marketing programs and strategies may not have their expected effect. Thes

in more detail in Exhibit 99.1 “Factors Affecting Future Operating Resu
incorporated into this item by this reference.

Overview

We create solutions that redefine the early detection and clinical mana
develop, manufacture, market, and sell proprietary products for cancer
treatment selection. We are using our proprietary technologies and expert
designed to improve the clinical management of cancer. We have devel
solution for cervical cancer screening and other products that deliver imagg
prognostic tools for cell diagnosis, cytopathology and histopathology. We h
applications for our proprietary technology by applying recent advances in g
to our efforts to develop new molecular diagnostic products for malignant m
breast, ovary, and prostate.

We are organized into two operating units: (1) Commercial Operatio
market introduction, sales, service, manufacturing and ongoing developn
(2) TriPath Oncology, our wholly-owned subsidiary through which we maj
introduction of molecular diagnostic products for cancer.

Our Commercial Operations unit is a commercial engine organized
generate cash. TriPath Oncology is the development engine of a broad basg
to develop new molecular products for the early detection and clinical maj
are primarily generated today through our Commercial Operations unit fro
screening products, in particular, the SurePath liquid-based Pap test. A

expenses than we expect with our
promotional discounts, sales and
e factors and others are discussed
ts” to this Form 10-K, which is

bement of cancer. Specifically, we
Hetection, diagnosis, staging, and
se to create an array of products
ped and marketed an integrated
management, data handling, and
hve created new opportunities and
enomics, biology, and informatics
blanoma and cancers of the cervix,

ns, through which we manage the
ent of our current products; and
hage the development and market

to grow sales, drive ‘margin and
bd gene discovery program created
hagement of cancer. Our revenues
n the sale of our cervical cytology
though the products that we are

developing in TriPath Oncology did not materially impact revenues in 2004
from some of these reagents and instruments in 2005 and continue to be
developed by TriPath Oncology may significantly impact our growth in 2

2004 was the first profitable year in our history, with earnings per shar
improvement in net income from 2003.- We grew our revenues by 27%, pri

we do expect to generate revenues
ieve that sales related to products
06 and beyond.

.of $0.02, reflecting a $9.1 million
arily as a result of a 35% increase




in revenhes generated from the worldwide sales of SurePath reagents and disposables. Gross profit grew nearly
34%, as we maintained a gross margin on incremental.revenues in excess of 80%. Our commercial operations
segment generated operating income in excess of $14.7 million, an $11.1 million increase from 2003. We
reported our first three profitable quarters, our first two cash flow positive quarters and, given that we were
cash ﬁow p0s1t1ve for the entire second half of 2004 a nearly 83% reduction in our net decrease in cash and
cash’ equlvalents for the year as compared to, 2003. All of these results were driven by our continued revenue
growth and aggressrve management of our manufacturrng and operat1ng -expenses and are further reflected in
the fact that we' generated incremental operatrng 1ncome as a percent of incremental revenues of nearly 63%.

. As 'striking’ as these financial results: may- be, our most srgmﬁcant accomplishments in 2004 were more
likely those thaticontributed to the development of pathways for growth in 2005 and beyond: 1) We finalized
agreements with Quest Diagnostics and LabOne and began to penetrate the large commercial laboratory
segment 1n the U.S., a market _segment to which we had only limited access in the past; 2) We initiated
expansmn of our U S. sales force late in the third quarter of 2004 to leverage the opportunity for growth that
has been, created by our growing relatlonshtps with the large commercial laboratories; 3) We continued to gain
momentum outside the U.S. as revenues generated from. international sales grew 32% and we signed new
contracts in the U.K. and, more recently, in Canada among others; 4) We received FDA approval for
expanded cla1ms for our SurePath liquid based Pap test to. include the use of the spatula and brush
combrnanon as an alternative to the cervical broom device and, in early 2005, for processing of precoated
slides’ wrth the PrepStam Slide Processor; 5) We made several new submissions to the FDA, including a PMA
supplement apphcatron for the FocalPoint GS Imagmg System and a 510(k) filing for processing of the
Ventana estrogen and, progesterone receptor tests on our interactive histology imager; 6) We released
: Research Use. Only (RUO) kits for microscopic slide based staging of cancer of the cervix and breast to
mdependent 1nvest1gators who will generate data from extemal research studies of these research kits; 7) We
reported the results of in-house research studies of both our cemcal and breast staging biomarkers, and;
8) We entered into a worldwide agreement with Ventana to sell and distribute a Ventana branded version of
our, 1nteract1ve h1stology imager whose development was driven by -our molecular d1agnost1c products
development programs. _While the impact of these accomplishments on revenues generated in 2004 was
limited, except for international sales of our cytology products, we, expect each will impact our results in the
future, and are contemplated in our forecasted revenues of $90.0 to $940 million in 2005 (see Outlook below).

it
A

Challenges P . k o W v
Our pnmary challenges in 2005 relate to leveragmg the pathways for growth that we created in 2004.

We have made s1gn1ﬁcant progress in penetratlng the cervical cytology marketplace with our SurePath
liquid- based Pap test over the past five years. We believe that there is additional ground to be gained despite
the fact that we: contrnue to face significant competmve pressure.. Our growing relationship with the large
commercral laboratory segment, as reflected in our. new agreements with Quest and LabOne, presents a
srgmﬁcant growth opportunity in 2005. Our success in 2005 will in large part depend on our ability to
accelerate conversion of these and other large commercial laboratory customers. As we transition the focus of
our sales and marketmg efforts to our large commercial laboratory customers, however, we face the challenge
of expandrng our cervical cytology business in a heavily contested market segment while maintaining and
growing our busmess within our traditional customer base. We will need to succeed at both if we are to achieve
the revenues we ‘have forecasted for 2005 (see Outlook below).

A we complete the expansion of our domestic sales force that we initiated in' the third quarter of 2004,
we will face the challenge of ensuring the earliest possible return on this increased investment in sales and
marketing by accelerating our growth in revenues generated from increased sales to our large commercial
laboratories as well as to our traditional customer base. Typically, a sales representative achieves optimal sales
productivity in‘approximately six months from date of hire. We, therefore, expect most of the impact of the
expanded sales force. to be reflected in the second half of 2005. However, the extent to which we can reduce
the learning curve and accelerate integration of our expanded sales organization will impact on our results
earlier in, the yéar and-make it more likely-that we will achieve or exceed our revenue forecast for 2005 (see
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Outlook below). The expanded sales organization also presents new chal
given our increased size and expanded geographic coverage.

Given the accelerated traction we gained outside the U.S. in 2004, w
U.S. will contribute significantly to our growth in 2005. The primary
U.S. include governmental decisions regarding licensing and reimbursd
practices and product acceptance. In addition, since we sell predominantly
markets outside the U.S. except for Canada, we face the challenges
independent sales distributors in most international markets and our succe
the performance of the regional distributor. In Canada, where we sell throug
challenge in 2005 relates to our ability to translate the success we have ¢
Ontario to other population centers.

Successful movement of product offerings through the FDA approval
that we face in 2005. Review of our PMAS Application for the FocalPoint
notification for processing of the Ventana estrogen and progesterone r
histology imaging system are currently pending. In August 2004, we subm]
in support of a supplemental filing to our Pre-Market Approval for the Pre
of testing of cervical cells collected using the SurePath Test Pack for
(HPV) DNA with the Digene hc2 High-Risk HPV DNA Test™ In Feb
had withdrawn this submission. This action was taken after we, through d
that additional clinical information and analyses would be required which
protocol accepted by the agency. The decision to withdraw is a procedy

discussions with the FDA about the additional data or information requirem

discussions and evaluate the required additional data or information, wit
PMAS at the earliest possible date. We also expect to submit additional 51
Ventana assays on our interactive histology system throughout 2005. FDA
will significantly impact on our ability to achieve our revenues forecasted f]
assurance that we will obtain FDA marketing clearance for these product of]
of developing clinical trial protocols that are acceptable to the FDA for our
breast staging molecular diagnostic products. The length, size, complexit
these clinical trials will be driven by our ability to craft and execute a red
trial protocol. Successful development of these clinical trial protocols will iy
trials in the second half of 2005 as planned and will ultimately impact on r
from the sale of these products in 2006 and beyond.

We face new challenges and risks in 2005 that primarily reflect th
molecular diagnostics development programs to date and the fact that som
into the next stages of development. Our approach to marker discovery,
based on correlation with patient outcome and includes the evaluation of
identified by others as well as novel markers that have not been previously

lenges for our sales management,

> expect that our sales outside the
challenges presented outside the
ment, and regional variations in
through regional distributors in all
associated with managing these
s, 1o a large extent, is dictated by
h our own sales force, our greatest
njoyed to date in the province of

process is a continuing challenge
GS Imaging System and a 510(k)
cceptor assays on our interactive
tted new clinical data to the FDA
pStain System to include approval
high-risk human papilloma virus
ruary 2005, we announced that we
iscussions with the FDA, learned
had not been part of the original
iral step and we are currently in
ents. We intend to advance these
h the goal of resubmission of the
0(k) notifications to process other
approval of each of these products
br 2005, although, there can be no
ferings. We also face the challenge
slide based cervical screening and

y, cost, and potential outcome of

sonable and well-designed clinical
pact on our ability to initiate these
venues that we expect to generate

e progress we have made in our
t of these programs will now move
identification and prioritization is
markers that have been previously
ssociated with our specific product

indications. As a result, to ensure our freedom to utilize known markers and integrate them into our product
candidates, we will in certain instances be required to license them from third parties. We are, concurrently,

pursuing intellectual property protection for the novel markers that
proprietary formulations that we are creating from the combination of eit
can be no assurance that we will be able to license markers on accep
intellectual property protection for our novel markers and proprietary fq
systems.

We expect that domestic and international sales of some of our m

imaging systems will contribute to our revenues for 2005 (see Outlook be
challenge of introducing these as either RUO products or ASRs in th
associated with the international introduction of product not yet approved
our slide based cervical staging product, cervical screening product, breast

imaging systems will depend, to a large extent, on the outcome of our onlg
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for use in the U.S. The success of

have identified as well as the
r novel or known markers. There
able terms, if at all, or establish
rmulations or molecular imaging

olecular reagents and molecular
ow). As a result, we will face the
U.S. as well as the challenges

taging product, and our molecular
oing in-house studies, as well as,




extemal research studres that are being generated by 1ndependent investigators. As we collect data from both
mternal dnd external research studies we face the challenge of building the clinical case for the value of these
developmg products the challenge: of positioning ourselves for clinical trials, the challenge of translating the
'results of these studies into market oppoitunity, the challenges of securing regulatory approval, and the
challenge related;to preparing the market for a broad introduction of these products in 2006 and beyond. We
also face the challenges and risks associated with selection of the final marker panel for screening for ovarian
cancer, for 1dent1fy1ng a high-voliime testing platform for blood-based screening assays, for continuing clinical
studies related to our' melanoma- staging’ product, and for preparation of our facilities and operations for
manufacture of the molecular dlagnost1c ‘products that we are developmg

Our sales and d15tr1but10n agreement with Ventana is of both short and long term significance. In the
short term, it is .an opportunity to penetrate the Anatomic Pathology marketplace with our interactive imager
and, as a, result to generate new revenue streams as the agreernent provides for potential capital equipment
and fee per use Tevenues begmnmg in 2005. In the long term, it is an  opportunity to ensure placement of our
rnolecular 1mag1ng system in advance of the. commercial introduction of our slide-based breast staging product
along with' a battery of complementary assays from Ventana. The challenges that we will face as a result of this
venture, 1nclude obtaining FDA clearances for Ventana assays processed-on the product and, if necessary,
additional’ FDA or other regulatory clearances.or approvals with respect to the dssays and imager, and the
challenges assocrated with supporting Ventana in its market introduction of the product.

"As always we face the ongoing ehallenges associated with balancrng our existing cash reserves against the
costs lassociated w1th elfectlve research, development marketing and selling programs.
K b . o
Results jof Operatrons o L
Non- GAAP F. manctal Measures}

Early in the second quarter of 2004, we entered into a mult1-year agreement with Quest. In connection
w1th the new agreement we issued Quest inicentive warrants with respect to an aggregate of 4,000,000 shares
of our common stock as follows: a three-year warrant exerc1sable 1mmed1ate1y for 800,000 shares at an
exercise: pnce of $9.25 per share; a three-year warrant exercisable’ upon ‘achievement of a certain sales-based |
milestone for 200 000 shares at an exercise. price of $10.18 per share; a three-year warrant exercisable upon
achrevement of : certam sales- based milestone for 500,000 shares at an exercise price of $10.64 per share; a
four-year warrant exerc1sable ‘upoil achievement of a certain sales-based milestone for 1,000,000 shares at an
exercrse?pnce of $lL 56 per share; ‘and a four-year warrant exercrsable upon achievement of a certain sales-
based: mrlestone for 1,500,000 shares at an exercise price of $12.03 per share.

*- We, have recorded the value of the 800,000 currently exerc1sable warrants held by Quest as a deferred
sales discount and are amortrzmg this amount as a reduction of revenue.over the 60-month life of our contract
wrth Quest because those warrants were exercisable on the date the contract was executed in May 2004
Accordmgly, we' recorded a non-cash sales discount of $519,000 in 2004. We will' contiriue to record a non-
cash sales discount of $65,000 per month, attributable to these warrants, over the remainder of the 60-month
life of our agreement with Quest. The deferred sales discount was calculated on the basis of the fair value of
the! warrants at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes valuation model, consistent with the provisions of
SFAS 123 and’ 148 (see Note 7 to the Condefised Consolidated Fmancral Statements) and was accounted for
as an adJustment agamst revenue, in accordance with'the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force Release 01-9,
”Accountmg for: ‘Conszderatzon szen by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s
Products)

‘ When and 1f it becomes apparent that any of the four tranches of currently unexercisable warrants held by
Quest may vest upon the achievement of the applicable sales-based milestone, we will amortize the resulting
deferred-sales dlscounts over the related number of tests in the six-month period for which the warrants were

arned Since: the deferred sales discount relatrng to these tranches of warrants will be amortized over only six
months if: and when such warrants vest, ‘the quarterly impact upon the future quarters in which they are
recorded w1ll be drsproportronately large .compared to the ongoing quarterly non-cash sales discount of
$195 000 recorded in connectlon with the initial currently exercisable warrants.
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The following tables present pro forma versions of our revenues, gross profit, net income and earnings per
share (basic and diluted) to illustrate our results from operations exclufling the recorded non-cash sales
discount relating to the warrants held by Quest. The table presents the mdst comparable GAAP measure to
each non-GAAP measure, as well as the reconciliation to the correspondipg GAAP measure. Our manage-
ment believes that these non-GAAP financial measures provide a useful mgasure of our results of operations,
excluding discounts that are not necessarily reflective of, or directly attributpble to, our operations. We believe
that these non-GAAP measures will allow investors to monitor our ongoing pperating results and trends, gain a
better understanding of our period-to-period performance, and gain a better[understanding of our business and
prospects for future performance. These non-GAAP results are not in accgrdance with, or an alternative for,
generally accepted accounting principles and may be different from similar non-GAAP measures used by
other companies.’ :

Year Epded December 31, 2004

R¢conciliation: Add
Badk Non-Cash Sales

GAAP ~ Discount Non-GAAP
(In thousqnds, except per share data)
Revenues ................... e $68,504 ‘ $519 $69,023
Gross profit. . ... cvv i e 47,274 - 519 47,793
Netincome .................. e 605 ‘ 519 1,124
Earnings per share: ‘
Basic....... ... .. . $ 0.02 : $519 to revenues $ .0.03
us¢d in calculation
Diluted ........ ... ... .. . $ 002 $519 to revenues $ 0.03

usgd in calculation

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

The tables below summarize our segment results for the years endpd December 31, 2004 and 2003.
Comments made throughout this discussion related to our segments refer{to the figures in these tables:

Cpmmercial Operations

‘V . Change vs
2004 2003 2003 % Change
‘ (In thousands)
Revenues ................. T $67,862  $33,631 $14,231 26.5%
Cost Of TEVENUES . oottt i 21,072 8,361 2,711 14.8%
R 46790 35270 11,520  32.7%
Operating expenses: A '
Research and development .................... 2,005 2,319 (314) (13.5)%
Regulatory.................. e S 13,263 4,763 (1,500)  (31.5)%
Sales and marketing.......... e L. 18,126 {7,318 808 4.7%
General and administrative . .............. U 8,652 7,264 1,388 19.1%
| ‘ - 32,046 Ble64 382 1.2%
Operating income/(loss) .......... e $14,744 3,606 - $11,138 308.9% -
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W :l»ll“\ L -y . ‘ . L TriPath Oncology

2 ' ) L ooe i i Changé V8§ '
, RTINS ca O - 2004 T 2003 2003 % Change :
LA h L SIS Ce ‘ L (In thousands) °
 Revenues". .i;.".' e ieecioo a0 $-6420 08 133078 509 382 7%
2 COit of reVeinbies ..ol IS8 160 142 88T.5%
o Gross proﬁt ..... e e i 484 - 1T 367 313.7%
Operatlng expenses: o ' g D ; . '
Research -and' development . . ... :vL L 19,275 6,542 2,733 41.8%
Regulatory ........... 619 - 671 - 52) (D%
Sales'and marketmg .............. e 514" 1,006 (492) (48.9)%
o General and administrative e R 4,486 4423 63 14%
T I B | 14804 12642 2252 17.8%
T Operatmg 1ncome/(loss) ..... R N $(14 410) $(l2,525) " $(1,885) - 15.0%
ReVenues

Total Revenues Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $68.5 million, a 27.4%
1ncrease from revenues of $53. 8 million for 2003. Compared with 2003, this net increase in total revenues was
prlmarlly due to (1) an increase in reagent sales of $13 7. mrlhon or 35. 0%, (ii) a net decrease in instrument
sales of $499; 000 or'6.6%, (iii) a net increase of $1.1 mrlhon in other revenues, "which consisted primarily of
fee-per-use sales service on system placements, and frerght and (iv) an increase in revenues recorded at
Tr1Path Oncology of $509 000.

Commerczal Operatzons Revenues. Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 from the Commer-
c1al Operatlons segment were $67.9 million, a 26.5% increase frorn revenues 6f $53. 6 million for 2003. In 2004,
reagent sales 1ncreased $13.7 million worldw1de compared with 2003. Domestic sales of our SurePath and
PrepStam reagents 1ncreased $10.1 m1111on or 33.3%, while 1nternat10nal sales increased $3.6 million, or
41 3% As a percentage of total revenues, reagent and dlsposable sales’ increased from 72.6% in 2003 to 76. 9%
in 2004 Worldwrde wé'acquired in excess of 80 new SurePath laboratory customers, 37 in the U.S. Net
realizéd revenue per test in 2004 decreased domestically 5% from - 2003. This resulted from a decline’in -
average price per test that was predominantly attributable to a shift in our revenue mix as a significantly larger
percentage ‘of revenues resulted from sales to'the large commercial laboratory segment in the U.S. The large
cominercial laboratory segment-accounted for 24.1% of all SurePath cervical cytology test kits sold in the
US. ‘in 2004 as.compared to 16.1% in 2003. The increase in business from large commercial laboratory
customers is 4 result of our growing relatlonshlps with Quest LabCorp, AmeriPath and LabOne and
1ncreas1ng focus of our sales and marketing efforts on thelarge commer01al laboratory segment. As we shifted
our. focus to the large commercral laboratory segment, we did expenence a deceleration in the rate of growtl of
our. trad1tlonal and more fully penetrated custoimer base. Our SuréPath Test Pack share of the domestic Pap
smear’ testmg market in the U.S. was approxrmately 15% at the end of 2004 versus approx1mately 12% at the
end of 2003. .

Sales of mstruments decreased $499,000, or 6.6%, during 2004 compared t02003. Worldwide sales of
PrepStain instruments for preparation of thin-layer slides for the SurePath liquid- -based Pap test decreased by
approxrmately $1.1 m1lhon or 32.0%, dunng -2004, 1nclud1ng a domestlc decrease of $281,000, or 32.8%.
Revenues related to the sale of PrepStam 1nstruments decreased $824, 000 or 31. 8% internationally compared
with 2003. This’ decrease occurred most notably in England as & srgmﬁcant number of instruments were
acquired in 2003 by our dlstnbutor in ant1c1pat10n of the UK’s adoptlon of liquid- -based Pap methodology. We
placed 76 PrepStam instruments in the U.S., ‘66 under reagent rental agreements and 46 outside the U.S., 2
under reagent rental agreements, during 2004. This compares with'103 PrepStain units placed in the U.S., 87
under reagent. rental agreements, and 64 units placed outside the U.S., 2 under reagent rental agreements, in
2003. Worldwrde sales of FocalPoint systems mcreased apprommately $507,000 during 2004. In the U. S,
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revenues generated from- the sale of FocalPoint systems decreased $917,0¢0 while revenues generated from

fee-per-use agreements increased $295,000 (revenues generated from fee-
Other Revenue). The 2003 FocalPoint system revenues included non-recu

er-use agreements are considered
ing revenues from a large sale of

instruments to Kaiser Permanente. Revenues generated from the sale and reftal of FocalPoint systems outside

the U.S. increased $1.4 million, primarily due to increased sales in Europe.

returns in the U.S., 5 under fee-per-use agreements net of returns, and so

In 2004 we placed 11 units net of
ld 10 units outside the U.S. This

compares with 17 units in the U.S., 11 under fee-per-use agreements, and 4 units sold outside the U.S., in

2003. In 2003, 27 units were returned in total, of which 25 were from U.S.

customers, as part of our ongoing

efforts to rationalize the use of systems originally placed for screening of cgnventional Pap-smears. Revenues
recorded for SlideWizard system sales increased $99,000 between 2004 and 2003. We placed 13 SlideWizard

units in 2004 compared with 8 in 2003.

Other revenues, consisting pnmanly of fee-per-use sales, service op system placements, and freight

increased approximately $1.1 million during 2004. FocalPoint fee-per-usg

t revenues increased $296,000 in

2004 compared to 2003, while service revenues worldwide increased $811,0Q0 over 2003. Freight revenues also

increased $203, 000 from 2003 to 2004. Other net decreases were $251,000.

TriPath Oncology Revenues. Revenues recorded at TriPath On
$133,000 in 2003 to $642,000 in 2004, an increase of 382.7%. This increase
of non-recurring revenues recorded in 2004 and resulted primarily from an
the sale of an imaging research system. Although the sale of products t
Oncology did not materially impact revenues in 2004, we do expect to gener
of these reagents and instruments in 2005 and continue to expect that sale]
TriPath Oncology may significantly impact our growth in 2006.

Gross Margin

Total Gross Margin. Gross margin improved from 65.8% in 2003 t
Operations segment is primarily responsible for the increase in gross marg
higher margin reagent and disposable sales and lean-based efficiencies in oy
includes tools such as Value Stream Mapping, One-Piece Flow, Kanban N

implementation methodology. Additionally, TriPath Oncology recorded in¢

~ recurring imaging related fee.

Commercial Operations Gross Margin. Gross margin in our Comme
from 65.8% in 2003 to 68.9% in 2004: Gross margin increased as the re
margin reagent and disposable sales and lean-based efficiencies in our many
above.

. TriPath Oncology Gross Margin. Gross margin in our TriPath Ong
compared with 75.4% in 2004, The gross margin recorded in our TriPa
minimal impact on the overall gross margin due to the relatively small amo
gross margin recorded in 2004 was primarily attributable to non-recurri
from an imaging related fee resulting from the sale of an imaging researq

cology increased $509,000 from
is largely attributable to $500,000
imaging related fee resulting from
hat we are developing in TriPath
ate revenues from the sale of some
5 related to products developed by

69.0% in 2004. Our Commercial
in because of continued growth in
r manufacturing operations, which
daterials Management and Kaizen
reased gross margin due to a non-

Feial Operations segment improved
ult of continued growth in higher

facturing operations, as mentioned

ology segment was 88.0% in 2003
h Oncology segment in 2003 had

hint of gross profit contribution. The

g revenues and resulted primarily

h system.

Research and Development

Total Research and Development. ~Research and development expe

ses includo salaries and benefits of

scientific and.engineering personnel, testing equipment, relevant consulting and professional services, compo-

nents for prototypes and certain facility costs. Consolidated research and

velopment expenses for 2004 were

$11.3 million, a 27.3% increase from $8.9 million in 2003. We believe that our research and development

expenses will continue to increase, primarily in our TriPath Oncology seg
commercialize molecular diagnostic products.

Commercial Operations Research and Development.
research and development expenses of $2.3 million and $2.0 million in 200
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ent as we continue to develop and

Our Commgrcial Operations segment incurred
3 and 2004, respectively, a decrease




o

of .13. 5% Research and development expenditures relating to our Commerc1al Operations segment reflect
résearch activity related to our cervical cytology product line and the development of manufacturing
capabilities for new molecular tests that we are developing. As manufacturing operations are managed through
our Commerc1al Operations segment, cost related to the manufacture of our new molecular tests will be
ass1gned to our Commercial Operations segment. The reduction in Commercial Opera’uons research and
development costs was primarily attnbutable to reduced personnel expenses.

TrzPazh Oncology Research and Development. - Our TriPath Oncology segment incurred research and
development ‘expenses of $6.6 million and $9.3 million for 2003 and 2004, respectively, an increase of 41.8%.
These expend1tures reflect the redirection of imaging research and development activities to the development
of 1nstrument platforms for our molecular diagnostic programs and the incremental expenses related to the
development of our molecular diagnostic markers, reagents and assays. The increase in expenses incurred in
2004 versus. 2003 largely reflects the loss of the amortization of a deferred credit that we had been recording as
an offset to research and development expense over the 30 months ‘ended January 2004, when this credit
explred Wheteas 2003 contained a credit of nearly- $2.5 million offset against research and development
expenses, 2004 reflected only $207,000 of this expense credit, resulting in an increase to expenses of
$2.3 million related to this item. The balance of the net increase in these expenses was related to ‘the
aceeleratlon of! eﬁ'orts on our ex1st1ng molecular dlagnosnc programs.

Regula‘tory n
‘ Total Regulatory Regulatory expenses include salaries and beneﬁts of regulatory and quality personnel,
costs related to clm1cal studies and submissions to the FDA, and relevant consulting services. Regulatory

expenses “for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $3.9 million, representing a 28.6% decrease from
approx1mately $5 4 m1ll1on in 2003.

| lCommerczal Operatzons Regulatory. - Regulatory expenses were $3.3 million in the Commercial Opera-
tions segment in 2004, compared with $4.8 million in 2003, a decrease of $1.5 million, or 31.5%. This
reduction . in regulatory expense primarily reflected the winding down of clinical trials, in particular, the

FocalPomt GS'and HPV related clinical trials that were initiated in 2003. In addition, costs were higher in
2003 as the result of activities related to the European IVDD compllance initiatives.

TrzPath Oncology Regulatory There were $619,000 of regulatory expenses incurred by the TriPath
‘Oncology segment in 2004 versus $671,000 in 2003. While we experienced this modest decrease, as efforts to
complete several clinical trials in our Commercial Operations segment were a primary focus, we expect
tegulatory expenses will likely be higher in 2005 than in 2004 as we increase efforts surrounding our cervical
assay, and other clinical trials.

AR

Sales and Marketlng

‘ Total Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses include salaries and benefits of sales,
marketlng, sales support and service personnel, and their related expenses, as well as non- personnel-related
expenses related to marketing our products. Sales and marketing expenses for 2004 were $18.6 million. This
represented al. 7% increase from $18.3 million in 2003. :

‘ Commerczal Operatzons Sales and Marketing. 'Sales and marketing expenses for 2004 incurred by the
Commer01al Operat1ons segment were $18.1 million. This represented a 4.7% increase from $17.3 million in
2003.. This year-over-year increase predommantly reflects the beginning of our sales force expansion in the
third quarter of 2004 and to the reintroduction of a number of targeted marketing programs during late 2003
and the first half of 2004

T riPath Oncology Sales and Marketmg Sales and marketmg expenses for 2004 incurred by the TriPath
Oncology segment were $514,000. This represented a 48.9% decrease from $1.0 million in 2003 and was
largely attributable to-a redirection of efforts aimed to support the early stage reorganization and expansion of
our sales .and’ marketlng activities targeted primarily towards our pursult of additional business under our
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agreements with large commercial laboratories, as well as in anticipation of t
molecular diagnostic products.

General and Administrative

Total General and Administrative. General and administrative expense

he potential launch of our future

include salaries and benefits for

administrative personnel, legal and other professional fees and certain facility costs. General and administra-
tive expenses were $13.1 million in 2004 compared with $11.7 million in 2003. This reflects a net increase of

approximately $1.4 million, or 12.4%, between 2003 and 2004 and is largely

httributable to increases in costs

related to professional fees, principally litigation and costs incurred to comply with the requirements of

Section 404 and 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (which relate to

reporting and certification of disclosure), corporate insurance, and consulting
somewhat by lower personnel-related expenses, including lower incentive co

internal controls over financial
fees. These increases were offset
pensation expenses, and a lower

provision for doubtful accounts. Professional fees increased by approximately $1.9 million between 2003 and
2004, largely attributable to litigation costs. We recorded increases in corporgte insurance costs between 2004

and 2003 of approximately $154,000, while consulting costs related to B
approximately $126,000. In total, these expenses increased by about $2.2

decreased in 2004 by approximately $600,000. Additionally, we experienced

doubtful accounts of approximately $180,000 from 2003 to 2004. Other n
individually, and collectively, insignificant.

Commercial Operations General and Administrative.
the Commercial Operations segment increased $1.4 million, or 19.1%
$7.3 million to $8.7 million. This increase is largely attributable to increase
fees, principally litigation and costs incurred to comply with the requiremen
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, corporate insurance, and consulting fees as dis

General and adr

bard of Director fees increased
million. Personnel-related costs
a decrease in our provision for
5t increases and decreases were

hinistrative expenses incurred by
between 2003 and 2004, from
5 in costs related to professional
s of Section 404 and 302 of the
cussed above. Also, as discussed

above, these increases were offset somewhat by lower personnel-related expenses and a lower provision for

doubtful accounts.

TriPath Oncology General and Administrative. General and adminis
TriPath Oncology segment increased $63,000, or 1.4% between 2003 a
$4.5 million, This increase largely reflected increases in professional fees ar
requirements of Section 404 and 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200
decreases in personnel-related incentive expenses.

Operating Income/ (Losé)

Total Operating Income/(Loss). Operating income from operation
$9.3 million improvement compared with an operating loss of $8.9 millio
operating income largely reflects incremental gross profit on new sales of T
profit contributed $11.9 million to the net improvement in operating income if
increase in gross profit was partially offset by an increase in operating expg
described above.

Commercial Operations Operating Income/(Loss). Operating incoq
Commercial Operations was $14.7 million, an $11.1 million, or 308.9%, imp

rative expenses incurred by the
hd 2004, from $4.4 million to
d costs incurred to comply with
P and insurance costs offset by

during 2004 was $334,000, a
n in 2003. The improvement in
pagents. Total increases in gross
) 2004, compared with 2003. The
nses of $2.6 million or 5.9%, as

ne during 2004 attributable to
rovement from operating income

of $3.6 million in 2003. The improvement in operating income largely reﬂect&;incremental gross profit on new

sales of reagents. Total increases in gross profit contributed $11.5 million to
income in 2004, compared with 2003. The increase in gross profit was p
operating expenses of $382,000, or 1.2%, as described above.

TriPath Oncology Operating Income/(Loss). Net operating loss dur
Oncology was $14.4 million, a $1.9 million, or 15.0%, larger operating loss
2003. The larger net operating loss reflects increased operating expenses of $2
above, offset in part by modest gross profit, attributable mainly to a non-
$367,000.
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¢ net improvement in operating
artially offset by an increase in

ng 2004 attributable to TriPath
compared with $12.5 million in
.3 million, or 17.8%, as described
recurring imaging-related fee of




Interestl Inc‘omeland Expense

«Total Interest Income and Expense. . Interest i income for 2004 was $289,000, a 30.0% decrease from the
$4l3 000 earned durrng 2003, primarily attributable to lower average cash and cash equivalents balances in
2004. The lower-ayerage cash and cash, equrvalent balances reflected.our net decrease.in cash and cash
equrvalents Jbalances ‘averaged approximately $167,000 per month dunng 2004, though we did generate
posmve cash flow’ durrng both the third and fourth quarters of 2004 for the first time in our history. Interest
expense for: 2004 was $18,000 compared to $32,000 during 2003. This decrease is due to reduced balances
outstandmg resultlng from principal repayments under our debt facrlrt1es

S . N B . . . i
" : -

Net Income/ (Loss)

‘T otal Net Income/ (Loss) We recorded net income in 2004 of. $605 000 which compares with a net
loss of $8.5, million in 2003, and improvement of $9.1 million, or 107.1%. Although we recorded net income in
2004, We, had consohdated federal income tax losses in all periods presented

Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

The “table below summanzes our segment results for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.
Comments made throughout this drscuss1on related to our segments refer to the figures in these tables:

0 t v‘,»‘:l»,z,rf . . . . L ; Commercial Operations
T ‘ . . - A ' e Change vs
o .,Y‘ s . ’ 2003 12002 2002 % Change
| - (In thousands)
'Revenues . | ; L. 853,631 $37485  $16,146 43.1%
Cost of revenues..'f.‘.l.....ﬁ.L ..... e 183617 14922 3439 23.0%.
o .Gross proﬁt .................. PRI L. 35270 22,563 12,707 56.3%
Operatrng expenses - I i S ) L ;
Research‘ afid dévelopment .4 .. ... Ll T 2319 . 1,764 . 555 31.5%
‘ ‘Regulatory.;-:’. diei P el L4763 0 2,206 2,557 115.9%
:Sales and- marketrng. T S Lo 17,318 18,864 (1,546) (8.2)%
General and adrmmstratrve ................ o 7,264 6,245 1,019 16.3%
S . 31,664 . 29,079 : 2,585 8.9%
e Operat1ng 1ncome/(loss) ...... e S $ 3606 $(6 516) $10,122 - NM

NM‘-NQ{ méanl‘h‘gfur?

" TriPath Oncology

Change vs
2008 . - 2002 2002 % Change
. o L C e . A (In thousands)
, "Revenues e R PR ... %8 133§ — $133
~Cost of revenues,. e PR 16 . = 16
i Grossproﬁtr...;....\.;_...‘.‘...._._._’..‘ ...... R S A — 117
‘ ;;Operatmg cxpenses: R E " o o e 3 '
Research and development ..... e coe o 6542 0 5770 772 13.4%
‘ Regulatory .......... S LR TRy L 6T 519 152 .29.3%
LT A‘VSales and: marketmg ...... ‘..?;;; B . . 1,006 986 20 2.0%
e ‘Generalzand administrative .ot .o 442307 - 4,691 (268) (5.1%
ST e e 11966 676 T S5.6%
K Operatmg mcome/(loss) ........ . $(12,525) '$(11,966) . $(559) 4.7%




Revenues

Total Revenues. Total revenues for the year ended December 31,
increase from revenues of $37.5 million for 2002. Compared with 2002, thi
primarily due to (i) an increase in reagent sales of $14.3 million, or 57.89
sales of $1.0 million, or 15.9% and (iii) a net increase of $963,000 in other
of fee-per-use sales, service on system placements, sales of non-instrum
revenues at TriPath Oncology and various international consumable prod

Commercial Operations Revenues. Revenues for the year ended Deg
cial Operations segment were $53.6 million, a 43.1% increase from revenue.
reagent sales increased $14.3 million worldwide compared with 2002. D
PrepStain reagents increased $12.5 million, or 70.0%, while internation
25.7%. As a percentage of total revenues, reagent and disposable sales incr
in 2003. Net realized revenue per test in 2003 increased 11% from 2002, a
SurePath consumable domestic customers during the year.

Sales of instruments increased $1.0 million, or 15.9%, during 2003 co]
PrepStain instruments for preparation of thin-layer slides for the SurePath
approximately $1.9 million, or 117.0%, during 2003, including a domest
Revenues related to PrepStain instruments increased $1.6 million, or 152
2002. This increase was seen most notably in England, but also in Europe 4
more instruments to meet developing demand. We placed 103 PrepStair
internationally during 2003. This compares with 76 domestic PrepStain
2002. Worldwide sales of FocalPoint systems, net of a partially offsetting in
systems placed under rental agreements, decreased approximately $324
FocalPoint system revenues increased $626,000, primarily due to the sale o
earlier in 2003, while internationally these revenues decreased $1.2 million,
Asia. In 2003 we placed 17 domestic units and 4 international units. This ¢
2002 and 16 international units in 2002. Revenues recorded for SlideWiza
between 2003 and 2002, We placed 8 SlideWizard units in 2003 comparyg

Other revenues, consisting primarily of fee-per-use sales, service on)
instrument related SlideWizard products, various international consuma
approximately $830,000 during 2003, mostly attributable to FocalPoint
freight. FocalPoint fee-per-use revenues increased $218,000 in 2003 comp4
worldwide increased $403,000 over 2002. Freight and royalty revenues als
2003. We saw a slight decline in sales of non-instrument related SlideWiza
~increases were $113,000. '

TriPath Oncology Revenues. Revenues recorded at TriPath Oncolog

2003. The revenues recorded in 2003 were all attributable to services sold.

Gross Margin

Total Gross Margin. Gross margin improved significantly from 60.2
margin increased as the result of continued growth in higher margin re
product prices to new accounts, the gradual phase out of third-party leasi

2003 were $53.8 million, a 43.4%
s net increase in total revenues was
b, (ii) a net increase in instrument
Fevenues, which consisted primarily
ent related SlideWizard products,
hets, and freight.

ember 31, 2003 from the Commer-
s of $37.5 million for 2002. In 2003,
bmestic sales of our SurePath and
hl sales increased $1.8 million, or
eased from 66.0% in 2002 to 72.6%
hd we acquired in excess of 80 new

npared to 2002. Worldwide sales of
liquid based Pap test increased by
¢ increase of $295,000, or 52.6%.
1%, internationally compared with
nd Asia as our distributors ordered
1 instruments domestically and 64
units and 39 international units in
crease of $284,000 in revenue from
D000 during 2003. Domestically,
finstruments to Kaiser Permanente
primarily due to decreased sales in
ompares with 11 domestic units in
rd system sales decreased $505,000
d with 19 in 2002.

system placements, sales of non-
ble products and freight increased
fee-per-use revenue, service and
red to 2002, while service revenues
b increased $222,000 from 2002 to
rd revenues of $126,000. Other net

y increased $133,000 from 2002 to

% in 2002 to 65.8% in 2003. Gross
hgent and disposable sales, higher
ng ‘arrangements which have lower

margins, and the introduction of lean-based efficiencies in our manufacturing operations, which includes tools

such as Value Stream Mapping, One-Piece Flow, Kanban Materials Mar]
tion methodology. The total gross margin was almost entirely attributable
and totally attributable to Commercial Operations in 2002. The gross
Oncology segment in 2003 was 88.0% but had minimal impact on the overal
small amount of gross profit contribution. There was no gross profit recor|
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lagement and Kaizen implementa-
to Commercial Operations in 2003
margin recorded in our TriPath
|1 gross margin due to the relatively
Hed in TriPath Oncology in 2002.




Research an‘d;;.Devé‘lbpment

‘ j‘T}‘ozdl Ké&eérch ‘and Development. i Rpsearch and development expenses include salaries and benefits of
scientific and engineering personneél, testing equipment, relevant consulting and professional services, compo-
‘nents for prototypes and certain facility costs. Consolidated research and development expenses for 2003 were

$8.9 million, a,17.:6% increase from $7.5 million in 2002.. -

Commercial Opérazions Research and Development. - Our Commercial Operations segment incurred
résearch’ and 'development expenses of $1.7 million and $2.3 million in 2002 and 2003, respectively, an
incréase;of3'3 1‘-.5%."'}These expcnditures¢rcﬂect research- activity related to the cervical cytology line (then
known.as thei’ Series products line), and development of manufacturing facilities for new molecular tests that
we ‘aTe‘ldé‘:vélb;Sinéé;;‘ s : oo : ‘ C

" TriPath Oncology Research and Development.  Our TriPath Oficology segment incurred research and
development expenses of $5.8 million and $6.6 million for 2002 and 2003, respectively, an increase of 13.4%.
These” ¢xpenditures, ‘reflect the redirection of all imaging “rescarch and development activities to the
development: of instrument platforms for ‘our molecilar diagnostic programs and the incremental expenses
related 16 the develdpment of our molecular diagnostic markers, reagents and assays. The increase reflects the
raﬁin'up of activity ds marker selection and assay development activities continued for selected cancer targets.
The research and development expenses related to TriPath Oricology for 2003 and 2002 include $2.5 million
- pér year of amiortization, against expénse, of a deférred research‘ar_ld development credit arising out of the
accounting from our collaboration with BD. We accounted for this transaction in accordance with Statement
of Findncial A¢counting Standard No. 68, “Research and Development Arrangements”. We began amortizing
the 'credit ijn”'Auél‘is'i: 2001 and continued the amortization at $207,000 per month against research and
development expenses through January 2004. o '

i
t

Regulatory .
i T otal Ré‘éﬂa‘torj}. _ Regulatory expenses iﬁcludg‘:’ salaries and benefits of regulatory and quality personnel,
costs related to clinical studies and submissions to the’FDA and foreign counterparts, and relevant consulting
seryi‘céjéf.’ Regulétory‘éxpenses' for the year ended Décember 31, 2003 were $5.4 million, representing a 99.4%
ih‘crjcgs“el‘from"gp'pré:ximatcly $2.7 million in 2002. , o _
Cb’rhm‘e.rlcial Opérazz‘ons Regulatory.. Regulatory expenses wcfc $4.7 million in the Commercial Opéra-
tions ‘ségment .in. 2003, .compared with $2.2 million+in 2002. This change was primarily attributable to the
activities surrounding several clinical trials, particularly the FocalPoint GS and Alternative Collection Device
(ACD) ifﬁals? and to efforts surrounding compliance with the European IVDD.

o lTrzPath ‘Onco‘lg")zgy; Regulatc;ry. There' were $671,000 of relgurl"a‘tpry expenses incurred by the TriPath
Oncology segment in' 2003 versus $519,000 in 2002. This was primarily attributable to the building of a
reghlatdry function to facilitate the-initiation of‘the process of seeking regulatory approval and clearance of our

cervical and breast staging assays being developed. by TriPath Oncology and the imaging platformi to which
these assays may be: linked. ... SR S ; ‘
R :
Sales and Marketing

To‘ta‘l Sales and Marketing.” Sales and marketing e'xper‘lsé's'i"include salaries and’ benefits of sales,
marketing, sales support and service personnel, and their related expenses, as well as non-personnel-related
expenses related to marketing our products. Sales and marketing expenses for the year ended December 31,

2003 were $18:3 million. This represented 2 7.7% decrease overall; from $19.9 million in 2002.
( 1me Dperations Salés and. Marketing.. Sales _anclil‘iﬁarket'in'g expenses for the year ended
Deceniber 31,2003 incurred by the Commercial Operations segment were $17.3 million. This represented an
- 8.2%detiease overall from $18.9 million in 2002. This year-over-year decrease predominantly reflects savings
that resulted from our termination of our agreement with Nelson Professional Sales in mid-2002 after which
we sethployed: the. majority of the, physician sales. representatives engaged under that arrangement. We
cxb{aricncéd some attrition of the sales force throughout the latter half of 2002 and the early part of 2003,

s ot
Commercial
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further adding to the overall decrease. By the fourth quarter of 2003, howevdr, we had fully staffed the sales
force. Additionally, we reorganized the sales force into six divisions, as opposed to three, to better divide the
country into manageable territories enabling us to better control travel costs|

or the year ended December 31,
esented a modest 2.0% increase

TriPath Oncology Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses f
2003 incurred by the TriPath Oncology segment were $1.0 million. This repy
from $986,000 in 2002.

General and Administrative

'include salaries and benefits for
costs. General and administra-
D. This reflects a net increase of

Total General and Administrative. General and administrative expenseq
administrative personnel, legal and other professional fees and certain facility
tive expenses were $11.7 million in 2003 compared with $10.9 million in 200

approximately $751,000, or 6.9%, between 2002 and 2003 and is largely a
related to corporate insurance, personnel-related expenses, and depreciation
were partially offset by reductions in costs related to our provision for dou

liability. We recorded increases in corporate insurance costs between 20

$613,000. Personnel-related costs increased in 2003 principally due to increa

approximately $306,000, severance of $202,000 and additional costs relatg

expenses increased. by about $1.2 million. Additionally, general and admi

tributable to increases in costs
of assets acquired in 2002 that
btful accounts and a contingent
D3 and 2002 of approximately
es in incentive compensation of
d to new hires. In total, these
istrative expenses were further

increased by $374,000 due to depreciation on assets acquired in 2002. There were other net increases of
$81,000. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in our proyision for doubtful accounts of
approximately $870,000 from 2002 to 2003 and a decrease in expense of $§85,000 attributable to amounts
recorded under a contingent liability in 2002 which was settled in January 3003.

Commercial Operations General and Administrative.
the Commercial Operations segment increased $1.1 million, or 16.3%
$6.2 million to $7.3 million. This increase largely reflected increases in cost
personnel-related expenses, professional fees and depreciation of assets acqy
offset by reductions in costs related to our provision for doubtful accounts
recorded increases in corporate insurance costs between 2003 and 2002 of apy

related costs increased in 2003 principally due to increases in incentivg

additional costs related to new hires. In total, these expenses increased by
general and administrative expenses were further increased by $501,000 due
due to depreciation on assets acquired in 2002. There were other net increal
were partially offset by a decrease in our provision for doubtful accounts of aj
to 2003 and a decrease in expense of $585,000 attributable to amounts record
2002, which was settled in January 2003. ' )

TriPath Oncology General and Administrative. General and adminis

General and adninistrative expenses incurred by

petween 2002 and 2003, from
5 related to corporate insurance,
ired in 2002 that were partially
and a contingent liability. We
roximately $306,000. Personnel-
compensation, severance and
about $1.0 million. Additionally,
o professional fees and $374,000
kes of $295,000. These increases
proximately $870,000 from 2002
ed under a contingent liability in

rative expenses incurred by the

TriPath Oncology segment decreased $268,000, or 5.7% between 2002 and 2003, from $4.7 million to
$4.4 million. This decrease largely, reflected decreases in professional fees an{l facility costs offset by increases
in personnel-related expenses and insurance costs. Professional fees decreas¢d by $475,000 and facility costs
by $209,000 between 2002 and 2003. These decreases were offset in part pr increases in personnel-related
costs of $110,000 and corporate insurance costs of $306,000.

Operating Income/ (Loss)

D million, a 51.7% improvement
s incremental gross profit on new
he net improvement in operating
bffset by an increase in operating

Total Operating Income/(Loss). Operating loss during 2003 was $8,
from $18.5 million in 2002. The improvement in operating loss largely reflect
sales of reagents. Total increases in gross profit contributed $12.8 million to §
loss in 2003, compared with 2002. The increase in gross profit was partially
expenses of $3.3 million or 7.9%, as described above. ‘

pperations during 2003 attributa-
m a loss of $6.5 million in 2002.

Commercial Operations Operating Income/{Loss). Net income from
bie to Commercial Operations was $3.6 million, a 155.3% improvement fro
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The 1mprovement in operatmg income largely reflects incremental gross profit on new sales of reagents. Total
ihcreases in 'gross profit contributed $12.7 million to the net improvement in operating income in 2003,
¢compared with 2002. The increase in gross margm was partlally offset by an increase in operating expenses of
$2 6 million, or 8. 9%, as described above L

TrzPazh Oncology Operatmg Income/ (Loss). Operating loss during 2003 attributable to TriPath
Oncology was, $12.5 million, a 4. 7% decline from $12.0 million in 2002. The increased operating loss largely
‘ reﬁects mcreased operating expenses of $676,000, or 5.6%, as descrlbed above, offset i in part by modest gross
proﬁt attnbutable to sales of services of $117 000.

Interest Income and Expense

Interest Income and Expense. Interest income for 2003 was $413,000, a 57.4% decrease from the
$969 000 earned during 2002, primarily attributable to lower average cash balances in 2003 and to the
'contmued depressed interest rate environment during 2003. The lower average cash, cash equivalent, and
short-term ‘investment balances reﬂected our net cash used during 2003 which averaged approximately
$968 000 monthly, though our use of cash rate dufing the fourth quarter of 2003 averaged $511,000 per
month. Interest expense for 2003 was $32,000 compared to $551,000 during 2002. This decrease is due to
reduced balances outstandmg resulting from pnn01pa1 repayments under our debt facilities.

qumdlty and Capltal Resources

-~ Since our: formation and until 2004, our expenses have s1gmﬁcantly exceeded our revenues, resulting in an
accumulated -deficit of $232.4 million as of December 31, 2004. We have funded our operations primarily
through' the private placement and public sale of equity securities, debt facilities and product sales resulting in
cumulat1ve net proceeds of $285.1 million as of December 31, 2004. We had cash and cash equivalents of
‘approx1mately $l8 9 million at December 31, 2004,

We funded ‘our operations in 2004 from cash and cash equivalents on hand and revenues from both our
Commermal Opera’uons and TriPath Oncology segments.

0

The table below summarizes certain key components of our cash flow and working capital for 2004, 2003
and 2002 as well as changes between 2004 and 2003 and changes between 2003 and 2002. Comments made
throughout thls dlscuss1on refer to the figures in this table i ‘
IR ‘ o : 2004 vs, 2003 2003 vs. 2002

Lo 2004 03 . 2000 . §Change % Change S Change % Change
) (In thousands)

‘Cash Flow Type | ‘ ; ' ‘
Operatmg e $(1,900). $(12,534) $(18,127) $10,634  84.8% $ 5,593 30.9%

Investmg...,;,;.:..‘.1.........., - (1,541) 50 253 (1,591) NM (203)  (80.2)%
Financing ..« oo 1,186 843 (3,050) 343 40.7% = 3893 NM

Cash and cash equwalents . 818949 $ 20,954 $ 32,571 $(2,005)  (9.6)% $(11,617) (35.7)%

NM — not meamngful

3 \“' "H j." o b
Operatlng T 3 S

Cash used in our operatrons was $1.9 mﬂhon in 2004 $12 S mﬂhon during 2003 and $18.1 million during
2002 Negatlve operating cash flow during 2004 was caused in large part by investments in customer use asset
placements of $3.7 million, included in inventory changes, and reductions in accounts payable and accrued
expenses of $4 5 million. These uses of cash were partially offset by non-cash items, primarily depreciation of
$4.1 ‘million, 'amortization of intangible assets of $841,000 and amortization of non-cash sales discount of
$519, 000. Addmonally, we generated net income of '$605,000-in 2004. Negative operating cash flow during
2003"was caused primarily by operating losses of $8.5 million and the settlement of a contingent liability of
$2 4 million, a.nd in 2002 primarily by cperating losses of $18.1 million. The net improvement in cash used in
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operations between 2004 and 2003 was $10.6 million and was largely att

%

butable to improved earnings

(reduced net loss) of $9.1 million from 2003 to 2004. This improvement inl earnings was augmented by a

further $1.5 million, comprising an increase in non-cash items of $3.3 m
$1.8 million in the use of cash in operating assets and liabilities between 2003

cash items of $3.3 million was primarily due to an increase in depreciation of

cash sales discount of $519,000, and a decrease in the amortization of defe
credits of $2.3 million. The primary factors affecting the increase in the use

fllion, offset by an increase of
and 2004. The increase in non-
$558,000, amortization of non-
rred research and development
of cash in operating assets and

liabilities between 2003 and 2004 were decreases in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $8.4 million,
primarily attributable to decreased incentive compensation and clinical trial gccruals, offset by funding from

accounts receivable of $4.4 million, as we held receivables essentially flat
revenues, and $2.4 million attributable to the payment of an amount in settle
2003.

in 2004 in spite of increasing
ment of a contingent liability in

The net improvement in cash used in operaﬁons between 2003 and 2002 as $5.6 million and was largely

attributable to improved earnings (reduced net loss) of $9.5 million in 2003

This improvement in earnings

was partially offset by a reduction in non-cash items of $563,000 and an increase of $3.3 million in the use of

cash in operating assets and liabilities between 2002 and 2003. The reductioy
was primarily attributable to a reduction in non-cash debt issuance costs of $21
of $885,000, partially offset by an increase in depreciation of $495,000. The
increase in the use of cash in operating assets and liabilities between 2002 and
receivable of $4.4 million attributable primarily to increased revenues, increas
attributable to prepaid items, and $2.4 million attributable to the payment
contingent liability. Offsetting these negative operating cash flow elements we
and accrued expenses of $4.7 million, primarily attributable to increased incq
trial accruals.

We recorded $3,000 of additional bad debt expense in 2004, compared w
2003 and 2002, respectively. We experienced another strong year of collecti
During 2004, cash collected on receivables was $68.8 million compared ¥
$37.9 million in 2002. We continue to collect amounts on some of our o
continue to routinely monitor them. We believe that our accounts receivable
losses that may be realized. In both 2002 and 2001, we built our allow
consideration of collectibility concerns related to certain international and dof
in light of the strong collections of receivables we experienced, and in light
allowance for doubtful accounts recorded in our records, we decreased th
recorded. In 2004 we recorded $3,000 of additional bad debt expense based
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts and notes receivable we hag
Further, our revenue mix has continued its shift throughout 2004 toward a
margin consumable sales and away from a historic, significant depende
instrumentation. This has contributed to the improvement in our cash collecti
we experienced throughout 2003 and 2004. This not only has contributed to
sales of our products, but it has further shortened the length of time our cust
While revenues increased 27.4% between 2003 and 2004, net inventories de
This is in large part due to lean-based efficiencies in our manufacturing opera
to actively manage. inventories and exploit lean-based efficiency initiatives
During 2003 and 2004 we increased reserves for certain slower-moving raw
that our reserves are adequate to cover any potential losses that might arise

Investing

Cash used in investing activities in 2004 was $1.5 million compared
activities of $50,000 in 2003 and $253,000 in 2002. Our capital expendit
$146,000 in 2003, and $2.3 million in 2002, with expenditures primarily
machinery and equipment. We have no material commitments for future
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i ,
anticipate higher capital expenditures in 2005 as we expand -and upgrade our manufacturing capabilities. In
2004; we acquired rights to certain intellectual property in connection with our work at TriPath Oncology for
©ant 1n1t1a1 payment of $319,000. In 2002, short-term investment maturities, which were purchased in 2001,
prov1ded cash of $2 5 million. ‘

Fmancmg

SRR Cash prov1ded by ﬁnancmg activities ‘was $1.2 million in 2004 and $843,000 in 2003. The primary reason

for the"$343 000 net improvement in cash provided by financing activities between 2003 and 2004 was
$990 000 of lower debt and lease payments as we paid off our term debt in early 2003. Partially offsetting this
‘ 1mprovement were less proceeds from debt of $268 000, as we did not finance insurance premiums as heavily
in 2004, s in 2003 and less funds were received from the exercise of stock options and purchases made by
T employees under our employee stock purchase plan, by $379, 000 in 2004 versus 2003.

il Companng 2003 to 2002, net cash from financing activities improved by $3.9 million, with cash provided
by findncing activities of $843,000 in 2003 compared with' cash used in financing activities in 2002 of
$3.1 mllhon Cash received from the exercisé of stock options and purchases made by employees under our
employee sto¢k purchase plan in 2003 exceeded that from 2002 by $1.4 million. Additionally, payments on
debt decreased by'$1.9 million between the years as we paid off our'term debt early 2003. Proceeds from debt
qmbunted to. $633,000 in 2003, attributable to financing insurance premiums, with none in 2002.

- ' During 2003, the continued depressed interest rates in the U.S. impacted amounts earned on our invested
funds. This had been contrary to the fixed-rate nature of our borrowings and other term debt, though our most
expenswe term debt was retired during 2003. Dunng 2004 the Federal Reserve began a policy of increasing its
Federal funds interest rates from 46-year lows of 1.0%. By December 31, 2004, the Federal Reserve had
1ncreased thrs ’key interest rate to'2.0% with additional increases in early 2005, to 2.75% in March 2005. While
thls 1ncreas1ng interest rate environment, if it continues, will positively impact earnings on our invested cash, it
w111 also negatively affect our earnings and our cash if we are required to incur additional debt.

thzgatton

s We compete with Cytyc Corporatlon (Cytyc) w1th respect to the sale of our FocalPoint and Cytyc’s sale
of its ThmPrep Imaging System. We believe Cytyc’s ThinPrep Imaging System infringes our patents and, on
June 16, 2003, we filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina
seekmg damages and 1njunct1ve relief to stop such infringement.

On J anuary s, 2004 the district court in Massachusetts entered an order consohdatlng this lawsuit into a
single action’ with a lawsuit that Cytyc had filed in Massachusetts. On April 30, 2004, the district court granted
us leave to amend our complaint and answer in the consolidated action to assert infringement against Cytyc’s
: ThmPrep Imaglng System under two additional patents. On October 14, 2004, a scheduling conference was
held 'in this consolidated action. At this conference, the court scheduled the deadline for the close of fact
dlscovery at January 31, 2005, and the close of expert discovery at April 29, 2005. The court also set another
schedulmg conference for May 5, 2005. At present, the court has not scheduled a Markman hearing to hear
‘a‘rgument on the patent claim construction issues. We anticipate that a trial will be scheduled sometime in late
2005 or early‘ 2006 based on the current case schedule. We are unable to predict the ultimate outcome.
‘Slrrnlarly, we are unable to predict the potential eﬁect on our business and results of operations that any
outcome may ultlmately have. :

The case number for the action transferred from North Carolina to Massachusetts is 1:03-CV-12630-
DPW and the case number for the consolidated Massachusetts action is 1:03-CV-11142-DPW. The case
numbers - ‘are” for reference only and the correspondlng pleadmgs are expressly not incorporated into this
document by reference

F mancmg‘Arrangements

- In J anuary 2005 we renewed our $7.5 million working capital facility with Silicon Valley Bank. We also
extended the term of the line of credit to 15 months with an exp1ratron date of April 27, 2006. The entire
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amount of the line is available as long as certain financial covenants are met
the available balance is limited to an amount equal to 80% of eligible accou
2004, we were entitled to borrow the full amount of the line, less amounts

;-,LIH these covenants are not met,

s receivable. At December 31,
secured by the letter of credit

referred to below. The renewed line offers either a prime-based (prime plus 0.25%) or LIBOR-based (LIBOR

plus 2.0%) pricing option for advances made under it and is collateralized b
The line of credit carries customary covenants, including the maintenance of a
minimum tangible net worth, and other requirements. We had no outs
agreement at December 31, 2004, though the availability under the line of
funding if needed.

substantially all of our assets.
minimum modified quick ratio,
anding borrowings under this
credit could provide additional

In April 2003 we obtained a one-year commitment for a $2.5 million lgase line of credit with General

Electric Capital Corporation (GE Capital). This commitment, which carried
acquired under it, was used to secure operating leases for assets, primarily equi
was renewed for $2.0 million (in addition to amounts for assets already lease]
new line were substantially the same as the expiring line. The primary differey
new line range from 30 to 36 months. The interest rates on the various sched
from 2.85% to 3.45%. As of December 31, 2004, assets with an original cost o
this lease line. Future minimum lease payments under this lease line are $1

During August 2002, we secured a $1.5 million lease line of credit fy
America assigned the leases under this line to GE Capital in 2004. This ling
against our line of credit with Silicon Valley Bank (see Note 5 to the Co
Statements). This lease line of credit, which carries three-year lease terms for
used to secure operating leases for assets, primarily equipment. The interes
under this lease line range from 2.75% to 2.90%. As of December 31, 2004
$1.3 million were leased under this lease line. As this line has expired, no fu
this line of credit. Future minimum lease payments under this lease line arg

Contractual Obligations

Contractual obligations represent future cash commitments and liabilit
parties, and exclude contingent liabilities which we cannot reasonably predic]

three-year lease terms for items
ment. In March 2004, this line
4 under the line). Terms of the
ce is that lease terms under the
ules under this lease line range
[ $1.7 million were leased under
6 million.

pm Bank of America. Bank of
is secured by a letter of credit
ndensed Consolidated Financial
items acquired under it, is being
rates on the various schedules
L assets with an original cost of
Fther assets will be leased under
$429,000.

es under agreements with third
t future payment. The following

chart represents our contractual obligations, aggregated by type (in thousangs):
) Payments Due by Period
) Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Yeafs Years 5 Years
Short-term debt .................... $ 19 $ 19 $ $ — $ —
Operating lease obligations ........... 13,057 1,915 3,307 1,653 6,182
Inventory purchase commitments. ... .. 295 295 — - —
Total contractual obligations.......... $13,371 $2,229 $3,307 $1,653 $6,182

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no other long-term debt commitments and no off-balance shg

Outlook

Our performance in 2005 and beyond will depend on our ability to take 3
growth that we created in 2004, our ability to continue to balance the costs a
development, marketing and selling programs with revenue growth, and the e3
leverage our operating infrastructure.

We estimate that full year revenues for 2005 will be in the range of $90.
continued growth in our cervical cytology business as well as revenues gener.
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zat1on of some of our molecular d1agnost1c reagents and molecular imaging systems. Given that we expect to
complete expansion of our sales force in'the U.S. in the first half of 2005 and that we anticipate that Ventana
will launch a:Vientana branded version of our interactive histology imager in the second quarter, we believe
‘that our, sequentlal growth in the first half of 2005 iwill be similar to what we experienced in the latter half of
2004 and that our rate of growth should accelerate in the second half of 2005. In addition, revenues for any
partlcular penod will also depend significantly upon the timing of certain deferred sales discounts that we will
amortize over a six-month period if and when it becomes-apparent that any of four currently unexercisable
tranches of warrants held by Quest Diagnostics may vest upon achievement of certain sales-based milestones.
Whrle not certam it is possible that certain sales-based milestones w1ll be achieved by Quest Diagnostics that,
‘1f met w1ll result in addltlonal non- cash sales dlscounts of up to $1 9 million in 2005.

o 1As in 2004, we expect that our growth in revenues in 2005 will be primarily driven by the sale of SurePath
reagents and disposables. We believe that worldwide sales of SurePath reagents and disposables will account
for approxrmately 70% to 75% of revenues in 2005. We believe that the growth in SurePath sales will be driven
by three factors: 1) accelerated penetration of the large commercial laboratory segment in the U.S. as well as
‘contmued growth from our traditional customer: base; 2)° expansmn of our sales force in the U.S.; and
3); accelerated market penetratlon outsrde the US. |

o

, We expect that approx1mately 10% to, 15% of our growth from 2004 to 2005 will result from revenues
: generated from the early commercialization of some of our molecular diagnostic reagents and molecular
irmagmg systems We believe that the sales of molecular d1agnost1c reagents and molecular imaging systems
will beé driven by four factors: 1) introduction and. market acceptance of our ProEx C-and ProEx Br ASRs;
29 1ntroduct1on and market acceptance of our cervical cancer staging reagents and molecular cytology imaging
system outs1de ithe UL S.; 3) FDA 510K clearance for processing of Ventana assays on our interactive histology
imaging system and; 4) introduction and market acceptance of the Ventana branded version of our interactive
h1stology 1mag1ng system (VIAS)

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (rev1sed 2004), “Share- Based Payment”
SFAS 123(R)” _ which is a revision of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensatton The adoptlon of SFAS 123(R)’s fatr value method will have a significant impact on our
results of operatxons although it will have no impact on our overall financial position or overall cash flow. The
tlmpact of adoptlon of SFAS 123(R) cannot be predicted at this time because it will depend on levels of share-
based payments granted in the future. However, had we. adopted SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of
that’ standard wotild have approxrmated the impact of SFAS 123 .as described in the disclosure of Pro forma
net 1oss and loss per share in footnote 3 (Stock Based Compensation) of our financial statements.
SFAS 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess. of recognized compensation cost to be
reported as a ﬁnancmg cash flow, rather than as an operating cash ﬂow as required under current literature.
~ This requlrement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase ret financing cash ﬂows in periods after
adoptron ‘We cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the future {because they depend on, among other
thmgs Fwhen employees exercise ‘stock options and our ability to generate taxable income in the future),
however no, such operating cash flows for excess tax deductions ‘were recognized in any of the penods
. presented “This 1s dlscussed further below under “Recently Issued Accountmg Standards

Lookmg beyond 2005 we believe that sales related to-our molecular diagnostic products will srgmﬁcantly
impact our revenues in 2006 and beyond. To accomplish this, we believe that the future sales of our molecular
d1agnost1c products will be driven by five factors in 2005: 1) the results of in-house and external research
studies on the analyt1cal and clinical performance of our cervical and breast staging assays; 2) completion of
the development of our cervical screening assay and our molecular cytology imaging system; 3) initiation of
clinical trials ,tha_t could support future Premarket Approval applications to the FDA for our cervical screening
and breast staging assays; 4) release of research use only (RUO) reagents for ovarian cancer screening, and,
5) identification ‘of a high-volume testing platform for our blood based screening assays. .

Given our ant1c1pated revenue mix, we expect that’ our gross marglns should fall into a range of between
66%:-and 70% ini12005. As we shift our focus to-the large commercial laboratory ségment, we expect a
correspondmg deceleratmn in the relative growth of business within our traditional and more fully penetrated
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customer base. As sales to large commercial laboratories increase, there mayj
gross margin as the selling prices of our tests to higher volume customers,
laboratories, tend to be lower than selling prices to our other laboratory
downward trend may be somewhat offset as continued improvements to o
higher volumes and efficiencies from our lean-based manufacturing progran
cost of goods sold. The extent to which gross margin is affected as the result o
relative number of tests sold to the higher volume laboratories at any point

be some downward pressure on
kuch as these large commercial
customers. We anticipate this
ur manufacturing costs, due to
s, continue to favorably impact
F this trend will depend upon the
n time.

The structure of our agreement with Ventana relating to the sale of a Ventana branded version
(VIAS) of our interactive histology imager may also impact our gross mjargin in 2005. Pursuant to the
agreement we will receive a fixed payment for each imager manufactured for [Ventana and usage fees for each
Ventana test processed on each imaging system after placement with a Ventana customer. The instrument
transfer price includes a small premium over our cost of manufacture and, as a result, will generate a gross
margin for each instrument sold that is lower than is typical for our instrunjent sales. The anticipated gross
margin associated with the usage fees approaches 100%. Since most of the]activity in the first year of this
agreement will logically relate to the initial placement of imaging systems, We anticipate that most revenues
generated from this relationship in 2005 will reflect the lower gross margin| associated with the instrument
transfer price. We expect that this downward trend will be offset by the higher gross margin generated over
time from usage fees. The extent to which the overall gross margin is aﬁ"ecli]:,d will depend on the extent to
which Ventana is successful in placing instruments and generating tests from €ach instrument placed.

million in 2003. We expect our
60.0 million, in large part due to
uarter of 2004. Our Commercial
erating income of approximately
significant operating income and
nt has been, and will continue to
We anticipate that the TriPath
tory, sales and marketing, and
bur approximately $1.4 million to
ernal and external studies related
reening assay and our molecular
cal screening and breast staging
p our RUO reagents for ovarian
nging product, and initiate the
molecular imaging systems. We
ture of our molecular diagnostic
rt. )

Our 2004 operating expenses were $46.9 million, compared to $44.3
operating expenses to increase in 2005 to be in the range of $57.0 million to §
the expansion our sales and marketing activities that we initiated in the third ¢
Operations segment has been profitable for over two years and generated op
$14.7 million in 2004, We expect that this segment will continue to generate
cash. The excess cash flow generated from the Commercial Operations segmg
be utilized in part to fund the operations of our TriPath Oncology segment
Oncology segment; which includes all research and development, regulg
administrative expenses relating to our molecular diagnostic programs, will in
$1.6 million of expeénses per month during 2005 as we await the results of int
to our breast and cervical assays, complete the development of our cervical s
cytology imaging system, prepare for clinical trials with respect to our cerv
assays, select the final marker panel for screening for ovarian cancer, develd
cancer screening, continue clinical studies related to our melanoma st;
commercial introduction of some of our.molecular diagnostic reagents and
have completed the preparation of our facilities and operations for manufag
products, and further expenses are not expected in connection with this eff¢

ced for additional outside sources
sh flow from the business during
t half of 2004 was an important
flow prior to becoming cash flow
5 may range from $2.5 million to
ay borrow from our line of credit
. We have remaining availability

zed for equipment placed under
h[‘ated in our operating expense

tinuing to generate positive cash
ng for internal use assets, rental
nts will be sufficient to enable us

We believe that we can continue to manage our cash to minimize the n
of cash in 2005. For the first time in our history, we experienced positive ca
the third and fourth quarters of 2004. While our positive cash flow this lag
milestone, we may experience one or two additional quarters of negative cash|
positive on an ongoing basis. We expect that our capital expenditures for 200
$5.0 million as we expand and upgrade our manufacturing operations. We m
with Silicon Valley Bank to finance part, or all, of those capital expenditures
under a commitment for a $2.0 million lease line of credit that will be uti
operating leases. The expenses associated with these leases are antici
projections for 2005. We believe that our existing cash, our expectation of co
flow for the full-year 2003, anticipated additional debt and/or lease financ
placements of PrepStain and fee-per-use placements of FocalPoint instrume
to meet our future cash obligations for at least the next 12 months.

continued SurePath commercial
ossible that, capital expenditures

While it is expected that marketing and sales expenditures for the
rollout for gynecological uses in the United States will increase, and it is p
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associated w1th .placements of PrepStaln units and FocalPoint fee-per-use instruments, and expenditures
rélated to clinical trials, manufacturing, the TriPath Oncology segment and other administrative costs may
‘mcrease we anticipate that our future sales growth and the cost control measures we have implemented
should allow us to avoid raising additional funds for operating purposes in the near future. If, however, our
ex1stmg resources prove insufficient to satisfy our liquidity requirements, or if we need cash for any non-routine
purpose we may ‘need to raise additional funds through bank facilities, the sale of additional equity or debt
secuntles or other sources of capital. In addition; we may opportunistically take advantage of favorable
condmons in the caprtal markets and raise debt or equity publicly if such conditions are present and such
financing is advisable. The sale of any equity or debt securities, if required, may result in additional dilution to
our. stockholders. We cannot be certain that additional financing will be available in amounts, or on terms,
acceptable to us, if at all. Our failure to participate in such financing, if needed, could have a material adverse
effect on our hquldlty and capital-tesources, business, financial condition and results of operations.

* This Outlook " section contains forward-looking statements and should be read in conjunction with the
forward -loking statements disclosure at the beginning of this “Management ] Dlscussron and Analysis of
Financial Condmon and Results of Operations” above.

Income Taxes and Tax Loss Carryforwards

We have not" generated any taxable income to date and, therefore, have not paid any federal income taxes
since 1ncept1on Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable earnings, if any, the timing
and amount of which are uncertain. Accordingly, we have established valuation allowances, in amounts equal
to the net: defer‘red tax assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 in each period-to reflect, these uncertainties.

At December 31, 2004, we had net tax losses of approximately $218.8 million that may be carried forward
t6 offset future taxable income. These net tax loss carryforwards ‘have an expiration period that begins in 2005
and ‘ends in 2024 for federal incoimetax purposes.” In addition, we had research credits available for
earryforward of $4.2 million that have an explratton period that begms in 2006 and ends in 2024. Utilization of
net tax losses and ‘any tax credit carryforwards are subject to complex treatment under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, :as ‘amended (the “Code”) Pursuant to Section 382 of the Code, prior issuance and sale of
shares of preferred stock, the change in ownershlp resultmg froni our initial public offering in September 1997,
the: Merger in 1999 changes in owuershlp generally and any other future sale of stock may limit utilization of
future losses 1n any one year : ‘ ‘ . :

Il

Cntlcal Accountmg Pohcres S o

The preparanon of our Consohdated Financial Statements which have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the U.S,, requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the réported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements; revenues and
expenses as of the date reported; and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going
basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to sales of our products, bad debts, inventories,
investments, intangible assets, warranty obligations, and legal issues. Since not all of these accounting policies
require. management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates, they are not all
cons1dered critical" accountmg pol1c1es Actual results may differ from these estlmates under different
assumptlons ; deo o

' We beheve the followmg crmcal ‘accounting policies 1nvolve our more s1gn1ﬁcant ]udgments and estimates
used in the preparatlon ‘of our consohdated ﬁnancral statements. We rev1ewed our policies and determined that -
those pOllCleS 1dent1ﬁed below as our cr1t1cal accountmg policies remain our most critical accounting policies
for the year "ended December 31, 2004. We did not make any changes in those policies during the year.

Revenue Recognmon ‘

We record revenue from the- sale rental and/or lease of our systems and from the sale of related
consumables. Addltlonally, we record revenue from service contracts,on our systems.

’ Inf‘tth case :of ‘system sales to end-users, revenue recognition on system sales occurs at the time the
instrument ds installed and accepted at thé customer site. In the case:of instrument sales to distributors,
revenue recognition on system sales occurs based upon the contract governing the transaction, typically at the
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time the instrument is shipped from our facility. This is the predominant velicle for international instrument
sales. If, however, we sell an instrument directly to an international end uger, we record the revenue upon
installation and acceptance of the instrument, consistent with our treatmenj in the U.S.

For system rentals, systems are placed at the customer’s site free of chafge and the customer is obligated
either to purchase reagent kits for a fixed term, or are charged fees based pn monthly minimum, or actual,
usage. Under these transactions, revenue recognition occurs at the time of shipment of the reagent kits or on a
monthly basis based on the actual or minimum usage. There is no capital equipment revenue recognized under
these transactions. ’ ‘

We also offer leasing alternatives. Under these transactions, we may, ¢r may not, recognize revenue on
system hardware depending on the particular details of the lease. We respgnd to customer needs by offering
both capital and operating lease alternatives. Under the capital lease alternatjve, revenue is recognized initially
as an instrument sale with part of the lease payments being allocated to intefest income, and service revenues,
if applicable, over the lease term. Under operating leases, we do not recqgnize any revenue related to the
instrument sale, but recognize revenue as rental income over the lease terg.

In 2004 we entered into an agreement that contained multiple efements with respect to revenue
recognition. For that agreement, as well as any others that we may enter ipto in the future, we research the
relevant authoritative literature related to the various elements contained within the agreement and document
our interpretation of the relevant GAAP within the quarter we first recogifize revenue from the agreement.

We consider the accounting policies regarding revenue recognition to be critical for several reasons. The
first is due to the distributed nature of our sales network. We sell through al direct sales force in the U.S., and
the issues related to revenue recognition are essentially clear-cut domesticdlly. Abroad, however, we sell both
through various distributor networks and directly to end-user customers. [This requires us to examine each
sales transaction to ensure that we properly and consistently apply the| appropriate accounting guidance
covering revenue recognition. Further, as is typical with many companies thht sell durable equipment, we often
experience increased sales activity near, or at, the end of fiscal quarters. This requires us. to closely examine
each equipment sale to ensure the requisite terms have been met to allow [revenue recognition under GAAP.
Additionally, certain of our equipment sales contracts may contain terms|that would grant certain “evalua-
tion,” or “free-use” periods, or terms that would allow the customer to retpirn equipment. These terms, when
present, are considered prior to our recording revenue. Finally, because of the multiple elements in one of our
agreements, and the potential for additional agreements with multiple elements, we believe that the
complexity of these agreements warrants a heightened scrutiny on th¢ part of accounting and finance
management.

Sales of consumable products are recorded at shipment. Billings and gosts related to shipping products to
customers are included in both revenues and cost of revenues, respectively. ‘

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Notes Receivable

We continually monitor amounts due, and payments from our custorL[\l'A‘ers and maintain an allowance for
doubtful accounts and notes receivable for estimated losses resulting fromn the inability of our customers to
make required payments. When we evaluate the adequacy of our allowarjce for doubtful accounts and notes,
we take into account various factors including our accounts and notes|receivable aging, customer credit-
worthiness, historical bad debts and current economic trends. We age rgceivables from customers based on
contractual terms, From time to time, customers are slow in paying amdunts due us. '

We closely monitor delinquent accounts with past due balances outstanding, and will continue to do so, to
determine the need, if any, to further increase our allowance for doubtful §ccounts and notes receivable. If the
financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an fmpairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required. If reimbursement frong third party payors to our laboratory
customers was to be reduced or otherwise changed substantially, our abjlity to collect outstanding accounts
receivable could be impacted significantly as the laboratory would have to look to other sources (like the
patient) for payment, and that could complicate the laboratory’s billing and coliection efforts by increasing the
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number, :and decreasingthe size, of customers from whom they would need to collect amounts. If a trade
recejvablg ‘ages past one year, our policy is to consider the receivable balance non-performing if there has been
no measuTable contact or dialogue with the customer. These receivables would typically be fully reserved for
by this point. Once a receivable is classified as non-performing, then we consider whether to charge-off the
receivable balance against our allowance for doubtful accounts. Factors. that figure into this determination
include’ the extent and nature of dlalogue we have with the customer and whether the customer is still in
busmess c

~In ‘assessi‘n‘g the adequacy of otr allowance for doubtful accounts and notes, finance management meets,
typically weekly, with individuals responsible for collecting outstanding accounts and notes receivable
balances. ‘Management reviews the work undertaken during the course of the week by those responsible for
collections ‘and gmdes activities for the following week’s actions intended toward collections of outstanding
accounts and notes receivable. Accounts are discussed specrﬁcally, and to the extent they show potential for
aging beyond acceptable limits, adjustments to our allowance for doubtful accounts and notes are discussed
and made If requlred accounts are placed on credit hold status to stimulate payments on aging accounts. We
ensure the sales organization is aware of collection-related actions we take on individual accounts, including
placmg accounts on credlt hold, so that they can mtervene in the collectlon process as well.

i

At December 31 2004 and 2003, our accounts receivable balance, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
and notes recelvablc of $1.3 million and $2.3 million, respectively, was $13.6 million and $13.7 million. See
additional commentary under “Ligquidity and Capital Resources — Operating’ above for further discussion of
.our allowance for doubtful accounts and notes receivable and related bad debt expense.

I
I :
.

Inventory o ,

Inventory is'stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value on a ﬁrst -in, first-out basis. If we determine
that net realizable value is less than cost, then we write down the related inventory to market value. We review
net reahzable value of inventory in detail on an on-going basis, with consideration given to deterioration,
obsolescence, and other factors. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by
management and our est1mates prove to be inaccurate, additional write-downs or adjustments to recognize
addmonal cost of goods for overvalued inventory may be required.

Over half approx1mately 52%, of our inventory is related to our FocalPomt product. Of that FocalPoint
mventory, much -of it is classified as raw material, or component parts A significant reason we consider
accounting pohcres around inventory as critical is due to the relatively slower moving nature of the FocalPoint
instrument.,We continue to monitor actual demand for the product and the economic environment into which
we will be selling it during 2005. We have been ‘Tecording additional expense during 2003 and 2004 to build a
reserve for this 1nventory After reviewing these factors, we do not believe that it is necessary to record any
further adJustments to mventory, however, we will continue to monitor this inventory during 2005.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, our total inventory balance, net' of reserves for obsolescence of
$3.1 million, and $2. 3 million, respectively was $10.7 million and $10.9 million.

Valuation. ‘of lohg-lived and intangible assets

We review the value of our long-lived assets, including patents and other intangible assets, for impairment
whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be
fully recoverable or that the useful livés of these assets are no longer appropriate. If we determine that the
carrying value of 1ntang1bles and long-lived assets may not be recoverable based upon one or more indicators
of 1mpa1rrnent the: asset' is written down to its estimated fair 'value based on a discounted cash flow basis.
There was no 1mpa1rment loss recorded in eithér 2004 nor 2003.

We consrder long lrved and intangible assets to warrant the desrgnatlon of critical for several reasons. One
is tied to the issue ‘mentioned in “Inventory”™ above, the relatively slower moving nature of the FocalPoint
instrument. One of our ways of selling FocalPoint instruments is under usage-based arrangements (fee-per-
use). We have a‘number of FocalPoint instruments recorded on the balance sheet in the account “Customer
use assets.” We continue to monitor actual demand for the product and the economic environment into which

i
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we will be selling it during 2005. Should these instruments be returned prior to the term of the agreements,
there could be possible impairment issues surrounding these assets. The sgcond reason we consider long-lived
and intangible assets a critical accounting area is due to the nature of our feliance on our intellectual property.
Should competitors develop and market products that would render ours rddundant or obsolete, then we would
face impairment issues surrounding our intangible assets as well.

After reviewing the relevant factors affecting our assets in these catggories, we do not believe that it is
necessary to record any further adjustments to our long-lived and intangfble assets.

Income taxes and valuation allowances

We account for income taxes using the liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and|liabilities are determined based on
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and ligbilities. We have not generated any
taxable income to date and, therefore, have not paid any federal income [taxes since our inception. We have,
however, generated significant deferred tax assets, the realization of whidh is dependent on the generation of
future taxable income. Until 2004 we had not generated any earnings gnd the generation of future taxable
income will be predominantly dependent on our ability to generate futurq earnings, the timing and amount of
which are uncertain. Due to the uncertainty of our ability to generate takable income to realize our deferred
tax assets, a valuation allowance has been established for financial reporiﬂng purposes equal to the amount of
the net deferred tax assets. We will evaluate and review the need to rpduce our valuation allowance on a
quarterly basis, primarily based on our estimates of future taxable incomg, beginning in 2005. Changes in our
assessment of the need for a valuation allowance could give rise to a credi} to income tax expense in the period
of change. A portion of the deferred tax valuation allowance attributed fo the deduction for stock options, if
released, will be reflected as a direct increase to stockholder’s equity and will not impact the consolidated
statement of operations.

At December 31, 2004, we had net tax loss carryforwards of approximately $218.8 million, which have an
expiration period that begins in 2005 and ends in 2024 for federal income tax purposes. We also have
approximately $4.2 million in research and development carryforwards| that have an expiration period that
begins in 2006 and ends in 2024. Utilization of net tax losses and any t4x credit carryforwards are subject to
complex treatment under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Pursuant to
Section 382 of the Code, prior issuance and sale of shares of preferred stdck, the change in ownership resulting
from our initial public offering in September 1997, the Merger in 1999] changes in ownership generally and
any other future sale of stock may limit utilization of future losses in apy one year.

We consider the accounting around this area to be critical for two|primary reasons: first, the size of the
valuation allowance we have in our financial statements is significant anid, second, utilization of net tax losses
and any tax credit carryforwards are subject to complex treatment undgr the Code and may expire unused.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2003, the FASB issued a revised FASB Interpretatign No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51” (“FIN 46),| which requires a new approach in
determining if a reporting entity should consolidate certain legal enfities, including partnerships, limited
liability companies, or trusts, among others, collectively defined as vafiable interest entities, or “VIE's.” A
legal entity is considered a VIE if it does not have sufficient equity at ripk to finance its own activities without
relying on financial support from other parties. If the legal entity is a VIE, then the reporting entity that is the
primary beneficiary must consolidate it. Even if a reporting entity is not obligated to consolidate a VIE, then
certain disclosures must be made about the VIE if the reporting entity has a significant variable interest.
Certain transition disclosures are required for all financial statements [issued after December 15, 2003. The
adoption of FIN 46 had no impact on our results of operations or our flnancial position as of and for the year

ending December 31, 2004. :
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 In"November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs — an Amendment of ARB
No. 43, Chapter 4” (“SFAS 1517}, to clarify the accounting for abriormal amounts of idle facility expense,
freight; handling costs; and wasted material (spoilage). Paragraph 5 of ARB 43, Chapter 4, previously stated
that . .. undet some circumstances, items such as idle facility expense, excessive spoilage, double freight, and
ré-handlingi costs may be so abnormal as to require treatment as current period charges. . . .”. SFAS 151
requires'that those items be recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion
of “so abnormal.” In addition, SFAS 151 requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of
conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. The provisions of SFAS 151 will be
effectlvc for inventory 'costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005, with earlier adoption
permltted The provisions of SFAS 151 shall be applied prospectively. We had not adopted SFAS 151 at
December 31, 2004 but we beliéve that its adoptlon will have no matenal impact on our results of operations
or on our ﬁnan01a1 condition. , :

RS In December 12004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 152, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing
‘Transactlons — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 66 and 677 (“SFAS 152”). SFAS 152 amends
FASB Statement No. 66, “Accountlng for Sales of Real Estate, * 10 reference the financial accounting and
‘repqrtmg gutdance for real estate time-sharing transactions that is provided in AICPA Statement of Position
‘(SOP) :04-2, “Accountmg for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions”. SFAS 152 also amends FASB
'Statement No. 67, “Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects”, to state that
the guldance for (a) incidental operations and (b) costs incurred to sell real estate projects does not apply to
real estate time-sharing transactions. The accounting for those operations and costs is subject to the guidance
in SOP 04 2. SFAS 152 is effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. Its
pr0v1510ns are not expected to have any 1mpact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flow.

" n December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets — an
Amendment of APB Opinion No! 29” (“SFAS 153”). The guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting
for Non-monetary Transactions”, is based on the principle that exchanges of non-monetary assets should be
measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. The guidance in that Opinion, however, included
certain’ exceptions to. that principle. SFAS 153 amends Opinion 29 to eliminate the exception for non-
monetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a-general exception for exchanges of non-
monetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A non-monetary exchange has commercial substance
if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. The
provisions of SFAS: 153 will be effective for non- monetary exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning
after, June 15, 2005; with earlier adoption permitted. The provisions of SFAS 153 shall be applied
prospectlvely We had not adopted SFAS 153 at December 31, 2004, but we believe that its adoption will have
no materlal 1mpact on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flow.

‘In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”
(*SFAS . 123(R)”, which is a revision of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.”; SFAS 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ-
ees,” and amends FASB Statement No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” SFAS 123 (R) establishes standards
for the:accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It
also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based
on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity
instruments. SFAS 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains
employee services im share-based payment transactions. SFAS 123(R) does not change the accounting
guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees provided in SFAS 123 as
onglnally issued and EITF Issue No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other
Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.” Generally, the approach
in SFAS 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123. However, SFAS 123(R) requires all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the
incorhe statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. SFAS 123 (R)
requlres a pubhc entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on:the grant-date fair value of the award. (with limited exceptions). That cost will be
recognized over the. period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the
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~ We operate in several foreign countries and are subject to fluctuations in ford

award — the requisite service period (usually the vesting period). No conf
equity instruments for which employees do not render the requisite service
" will not result in recognition of compensation cost if certain conditions are m
same as the related conditions in SFAS 123. A public entity will initiallj
services received in exchange for an award of liability instruments based on it
of that award will be remeasured subsequently at each reporting date througl
fair value during the requisite service period will be recognized as compen
grant-date fair value of employee share options and similar instruments will

models adjusted for the unique characteristics of those instruments (unless
same or similar instruments are available). If an equity award is modified

compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of thd
over the fair value of the original award immediately before the modificatio
by SFAS 123(R), will be recognized as an addition to paid-in capital. Cash r
tax benefits will be presented in the statement of cash flows as financing cash
' tax assets relating to unrealized tax benefits associated with recognized com
. as income tax expense unless there are excess tax benefits from previous awar
which it can be offset. The notes to financial statements will disclose infor
information to understand the nature of share-based payment transactions an
on the financial statements. SFAS 123(R) must be adopted no later than J
SFAS 123(R) on July 1, 2005, as required.

pensation cost is recognized for
Employee share purchase plans
bt those conditions are much the
measure the cost of employee
k current fair value; the fair value
 the settlement date. Changes in
ation cost over that period. The
be estimated using option-pricing
observable market prices for the
hfter the grant date, incremental
fair value of the modified award
. Excess tax benefits, as defined
ctained as a result of those excess
inflows. The write-off of deferred
pensation cost will be recognized
ds remaining in paid-in capital to
hation to assist users of financial
1 the effects of those transactions
uly 1, 2005. We expect to adopt

The adoption of SFAS 123(R)’s fair value method will have a signJiﬁcant impact on our results of

operations, although it will have no impact on our overall financial position of
adoption of SFAS 123(R) cannot be predicted at this time because it will
payments granted in the future. However, had we adopted SFAS 123(R) in|
standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS 123 as described if
. loss and loss per share in Footnote 3 (Stock Based Compensation abovs
SFAS 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of rec
reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as 1
This requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase net finaj
adoption. We cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the future (beca
things, when employees exercise stock options and our ability to generate
however no such operating cash flows for excess tax deductions were rd
presented.

Item 7A. Qitantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We do not participate in derivative financial instruments, other financi

overall cash flow. The impact of
depend on levels of share-based
prior periods, the impact of that
the disclosure of Pro forma net
) of our Financial Statements.
gnized compensation cost to be
equired under current literature.
hcing cash flows in periods after
use they depend on, among other
taxable income in the future),
cognized in any of the periods

hl instruments for which the fair

value disclosure would be required under SFAS No. 107, or derivative cofumodity instruments. All of our

investments are in short-term, investment-grade commercial paper, corpord
and agency securities that are carried at fair value on our books. Accor
information concerning the market risk of participating in such investments

Our primary market risk exposures are in the areas of interest rate risl
rate risk. Our financial results and cash flows are subject to fluctuation d
primarily from our investment of available cash balances in highly rated
policies, we do not use interest rate derivative instruments to manage expos
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ai
“Liquidity and Capital Resources’ for further discussion of the impact of inte

Ite bonds and U.S. Government
Hingly, we have no quantitative

¢ and foreign currency exchange
ue to changes in interest rates,
institutions. Under our current
pre to interest rate changes. See
d Results of Operations” under
rest rates on our financial results.
ign currencies to a minor extent.

We have no foreign exchange contracts, option contracts, or other foreign hedging arrangements. However,

the impact of fluctuations in foreign currencies on our financial results has n

t been material and are unlikely

to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or resylts of operations in the future.
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Item 8 Ftnanczal Statements and Supplementary Data : S

The 1nformat10n requrred by this item may be found begmmng on page F-1 of this Form 10-K.

Item 9 Changes In and Dtsagreements with Accountants on Accounttng and Financial Disclosure

l '

There have been no changes in or disagreements wrth accountants.on accountmg or financial disclosure
matters in the last fiscal year.

Item 9A Controls and Procedures '
ERIE '*‘l

Concluszon Regardmg the Eﬁ"ecttveness of Dtselosure Controls and Procedures

Our management with the pamclpatron of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13 . 15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the “Exchange Act”) as of the end of the period
covered b ithrs annual report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Ofﬁcer concluded that these disclosure controls and, procedures are effective and designed to ensure that the
1nformatlon requrred to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed summanzed and reported within the requisite time periods. .

i

Management s Report on Internal Control over Ftnanaal Reporting

e 0urJ management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reportmg, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)_ under the Exchange Act. Our management assessed the
effectlyeness of. t.he Company s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. In making
this' assessment, ' the. Company’s management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organlzatlons of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on
our assessment, ‘management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s internal control
over ﬁnancral reportlng is effective as of December 31, 2004. Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered
public accountmg firm ithat audited the Company’s financial statements included in this annual report, has
issued. an'‘attestation report on management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial
reportmg This report is included in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

The company s management iricluding our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not
expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent
or detect: all error and all fraud. A control system, no'matter how.well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not' absolute assurance that the control system s objectives will be met. The design of a control
system must reﬁect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered
relative to their ‘costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can prov1de absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company’ have been detected. These inherent
llm1tat10ns 1nclude the realities that judgments in dedision-making can'be faulty and that breakdowns can
occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some
persons; by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any
system of. controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can
be no assurance ‘that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
PTO]CCUOIIS of any evaluation of controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls
may become madequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with
polreres or procedures .

HEN B e ,
“

Changes in Internal Control

There Wwas no lchange in our internal control over financial reporting’ (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under
the Exchange Act) 1dent1ﬁed in conrection with the evaluation of our internal control that occurred during our
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fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 1
over financial reporting.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The response to this item is contained in part under the caption “Exeg
Part I, Item 1A hereof and the remainder is incorporated herein by refere
thereto under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Election of Directors
and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy §

aterially affect, our internal control

utive Officers of the Registrant” in -
nce from the discussion responsive
.— Board and Committee Matters,”
ptatement relating to our Annual

Meeting of Stockholders scheduled for May 24, 2005 (the “Proxy Staterpent”).

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “code
directors, officers and employees. The code of ethics is filed as an exhibit t
the text of the code of ethics on our website which can be accessed at |
addition, if we make any substantive amendments to the code of ethics
implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to any of our executive officq
nature of such amendment or waiver on a Form 8-K.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The response to this item is incorporated herein by reference from the
the captions “Election of Directors,” “Director Compensation,” and “Exe
Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Manage
Matters

The response to this item is incorporated herein by reference from the
the captions “Share Ownership” and “Securities Authorized for Issuance T
in the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The response to this item is incorporated herein by reference from the
the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Pro

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The response to this item is incorporated herein by reference from the
the caption “Information Concerning Our Auditor” in the Proxy Statemg

PART IV

Item 15. ' Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) 1. Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements are listed under Part II, ]
2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedules have been omitted because the information requin
applicable or is shown in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
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of ethics”) that applies to all of our
b this Report and we intend to post
ttp:/ /www.tripathimaging.com. In
br grant any waiver, including any
rs or directors, we will disclose the

discussion responsive thereto under
tutive Compensation” in the Proxy

pnent and Related Shareholder

discussion responsive thereto under
Under Equity Compensation Plans”

discussion responsive thereto under
ky Statement.

discussion responsive thereto under
nt.

tem 8 of this report.

ed to be set forth therein is not
Ntatements.




3. Exhzbzts ‘ L
The exhlblts are listed under Part IV Item 15(b) of thls report :
(b) Exhlbzts : D ‘ ,

:3 ‘ Restated Certtﬁcate of Incorporatton of the Company Ftled as Exhtblt 3.1 to our Form 10-Q for the
‘ ‘ quarter ended June 30, 2002 (File, No. 0-22885) and 1ncorporated herein by reference.

3.2 Amended and, Restated By-laws of the Company. Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to our Form 10-Q for the
o ‘quarter ended June 30, 2002 (File No. 0-22885) and 1ncorporated herein by reference.

4.1 _ Spemmen of Common Stock Certificate, Filed as Exhibit 4.1, to our Registration Statement on
e Form S-1 (File;No. 333-30227) and incorporated herein by reference.

10.1* Amended and Restated 1996 Equity -Incentive .Plan. Filed . as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
! Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 (File No. 0-22885) and 1ncorporated herein by
. reference.

10.2% 4 Amended and Restated 1997 Director Stock Option Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.3:to the Company’s
ST Form 10- -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 (Flle No 0 22885) and incorporated herein by
- reference. -

10.3*  Form' of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and its Dlrectors and Executtve Ofﬁcers
.+, Filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Registration’ Statement on Form S 1 (File No 333-30227)
"' and 1ncorporated herein by reference.

10.4 . . Lease Agreement dated as of July 28, 1997 by and between Carohna Hostery Mills, Inc. and the
, \Cornpany Filed as Exhibit’10.12 160 the Company’s Regrstratton Statement on Forrn S-1 (File
/ i b No 333-30227) and incorporated herein by reference.

10.5 [ Lease Agreement dated June 12, 1998 by and between Carolina Hosiery Mills, Ihe. and AutoCyte,
Inc Filed as. Exhibit 10.1 -to the Company’s Eorm-:10-Q-for the quarter ended June 30 1998 (File
"No. 0 22885): and incorporated herein by: -reference. - :

10.6 Amendment dated March 2, 1999 to Lease Agreement dated’ July 28, 1997 by and between Carolina
Hostery Mills; Inc. and AutoCyte, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 1999 (File No. 0-22885): and mcorporated herein by reference.

10.7 -1 Intellectual PropertyPurchase Agreement dated as of April 24, 1999 by and between NeoPath, Inc.
andi AutoCyte Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Amendmerit- No 210 the Company s S-1 (File
No 333- 82121) :and incorporated herein by reference. - :

10. 8‘ ‘ rLoan and’ ‘Security Agreement dated as of January 31, 2000 (the “Loan and Security Agreement )
by and "between™ Silicon Valley Bank and TriPath:Imaging; Tnc. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
' Company’s. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2000 (Flle No. 0- 22885) and 1ncorporated

“ 4. herein by refererice.: :

10.9 .+ 'Securities Purthase Agreement dated as of July 31, 2001 by and between the Company and Becton,
-+Dickinson and' Company. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
: ‘June 30, 12001 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by  reference.

10. 10 i Llcense and Intellectual Property Access Agreement dated as of July 31, 2001 by and between the
Company {and Becton, Dickirson and Company. Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q
" for'the quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 0- 22885) and mcorporated herein by reference.

10. 11 Development and License Agreement dated as of July 31, 2001 by and among the Company, Becton,
Dtcktnson and Company and TriPath’ Oncology, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Form
10 Q for 'the .quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File’ No. 0- 22885) and'incorporated herein by reference.

10. 12 i Subhcense 'Agreement dated as of July 31, 2001 by and among the Company, Becton, Dickinson and
Company and TriPath Oncology, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
ﬂ‘ ’j quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by reference.

10.13 Lease Agreement between NeoPath, 'Inc. and Teachers Insurance & Annutty Association dated

' October L, 1994 (the “Lease Agreement ’) and alf amendments thereto. Filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the

; Company s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated
herern by‘reference

63




10.14

10.15
10.16+

10.17

10.18
10.19

10.20
10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24*
10.25*
10.26*

10.27*

Sixth Amendment dated September 30, 2003 to Lease Agreemd
(as successor-ini-interest to NeoPath, Inc.) and Teachers Insurg
October 1, 1994. Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s
December 31, 2003 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein

Sublease Agreement by and between NeoPath, Inc. and Ay
August 31, 1999. Filed as Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s
December 31, 2001 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein]

nt between TriPath Imaging, Inc.
nce & Annuity Association dated
Form 10-K for the year ended
by reference.

tioch Bible Church dated as of

Form 10-K for the year ended
by reference.

OEM Supply Agreement dated November 1, 2001 by and betveen Tecan Schweiz AG and the

Company. Filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Company’s Form 10-K
2001 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by reference.

for the year ended December 31,

Amendment dated December 1, 2001 to Lease Agreement dated June 12, 1998 by and between

Carolina Hosiery Mills, Inc. and TriPath Imaging, Inc. Filed 4

s Exhibit 10.29 to the Company’s

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (File No. 0422885) and incorporated herein by

reference.

Lease Agreement dated as of February 6, 2002 by and betweer

December 31, 2001 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herei

TBC Place Partners II, LLC and

by reference.

TriPath Oncology, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Comparlty’s Form 10-K for the year ended

Lease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2002 by and between Banc

f America Leasing & Capital, LLC

and TriPath Imaging, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.24 to the Compdny’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated heriilF by reference.

Fourth Loan Modification Agreement to the Loan and Securi
ary 31, 2003 by and between Silicon Valley Bank and TriPath In

the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December
incorporated herein by reference.

y Agreement effective as of Janu-
aging, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.25 to
B1, 2002 (File No. 0-22885) and

Fifth Loan Modification Agreement to the Loan and Security Algreement effective as of January 28,

2004 by and between Silicon Valley Bank and TriPath Imagin
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
herein by reference.
Lease Agreement dated as of March 13, 2003 by and between ¢
and TriPath Imaging, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 1
2003 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by reference
Addendum No. 1, dated September 1, 2003, to Sublease Agreg
and Antioch Bible Church dated as of August 31, 1999. Filed

b, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the
File No. 0-22885) and ncorporated

General Electric Capital Corporation
-Q for the quarter ended March 31,

ment by and between NeoPath, Inc.
as Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. §-22885) and incorporated herein by

reference.

Form of the Company’s Incentive Stock Option Certificate
Restated 1996 Equity Incentive Plan for all its employees, in

knder the Company’s Amended and
g

uding its executive officers. Filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quartey ended September 30, 2004 (File

No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of the Company’s Non-Statutory Stock Option Certificatg under the Company’s Amended and
Restated 1996 Equity Incentive Plan for all its employees, including its executive officers, and its

directors. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended September 30,
2004 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of the Company’s Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreem

tor Stock Option Plan for its directors, Filed as Exhibit A tof

Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Commission on A

ent under the Company’s 1997 Direc-
Appendix D to our Definitive Proxy
pril 22, 2004 (File No. 0-22885) and

incorporated herein by reference. _
Form of Director Option Agreement Amendment dated as of August 3, 2004 between the Company
and Haywood D. Cochrane, Jr., Robert E. Curry, Ph.D., (Richard A. Franco, R. Ph., Arthur
King, Ph.D. and Robert L. Sullivan. Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1998 (File No. 0-22885) and incorpgrated herein by reference.
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10.28* Change of Control Agreement dated as of- August 3, 2004 between the Company and Paul R.
o Sohmer, M.D. Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septem-
' ber 30, 2004 . (Flle No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by 1 reference

10.29* Form- of Change of Control Agreement dated as of August 3 2004 between the Company and
. Stephen- P. Hall, Johnny D. Powers, Ph.D. and Ray W. Swanson, Jr. Filed herewith. Filed as
- Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 (File

i ‘No. 0- 22885) and incorporated herein by reference.

10.30* TrtPath Imagmg, Inc. 2005 Bonus Plan, adopted by the Compensatron Committee of the Board of
+. Directors on January 26, 2005. Filed herewith. ‘

10.31* Director, Compensatron at March 31, 2005. Filed herewith.

10.32 | Amendmient to Lease dated August 1, 2004 between Carolina Hos1ery Mills, Inc. and the Company.
+ . - Filed herewith.

10.337“ Tripath Imagmg, Inc. 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Filed as Appendix B to the Company’s
© .| Definitive Proxy| Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Commission on April 24, 2001 (File
.‘No 0- 22885) and 1ncorporated herein by reference.

10. 34 Warrant Purchase Agreement between the Company and Quest Diagnostics Incorporated, dated as
IR § May. 5,-2004. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended-June 30,
o ‘: 2004 (Flle No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by reference.

14.1 ‘ ‘Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of the Company. Filed as Exhibit 14.1 to the Company’s Form
: *‘»_10 K for. the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 0-22885) and incorporated herein by
:ureference IR )

21100 Lrst of all’ sub51d1ar1es of the Company Frled herewith.
231 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, 1ndependent registered pubhc accounting firm. Filed herewith.

31 Certrﬁcatron of |Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to § 240. 13a-14 or § 240.15d-14 of the Securities
‘ Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Filed herewith.

31.2; Certrﬁcatlon of .Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to § 240. 13a-14 or § 240.15d-14 of the Securities
‘ Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Filed herewith.

32 o Certrﬁcatlon ‘pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. Filed herew1th
99.1 Factors Affectlng Future Operating Results. Filed herewith. }

* Indic‘étes a managernent contract or compensatory plan.

t Certam conﬁdentlal ‘material contained in the document has been omitted and filed separately with the
Secuntles and Exchange Commission pursuant to both Rule 406 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
and Rule 24b- 2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as applicable. Omitted information is
1dent1ﬁed wrth astensks in the appropriate places in the agreement :

n
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the und¢rsigned, thereunto duly authorized,

in the City of Burlington, State of North Carolina, on March 31, 2005.

TRIPATH IMAG

By: . /s/

ING, INC.

PauL R. SOHEMER

P
Chairman, Pre

aul R. Sohmer, M.D.
sident and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below

by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities i
2005. :

hdicated on this 31st day of March,

Signature Title
/s/ PauL R. SOHMER President, Chief Hxecutive Officer and Director
Paul R. Sohmer, M. D. ' (Principdl Executive Officer)
- /s/ STEPHEN P. HALL B Senior Vice-Presidgnt and Chief Financial Officer
Stephen P. Hall (Principal|Financial Officer and
k ‘ Principal [Accounting Officer)
/s/ HaywooD D. COCHRANE, JR. Director
Haywood D. Cochrane, Jr.
/s/ ROBERT E. CURRY Director
Robert E. Curry, Ph.D.
/s/  RICHARD FRANCO Director
Richard Franco
/s/  ARTHUR T. KING Director
Arthur T. King, Ph.D.
/s/ ROBERT L. SULLIVAN Director

Robert L. Sullivan
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TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TriPath Imaging, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TriPath Imaging, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of TriPath Imaging, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

We also have audited, in accordance with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of TriPath Imaging, Inc. internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 24, 2005 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
March 24, 2005




. 'REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
i ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

We havc audlted management s assessment, included in Item 9a of TriPath Imaging, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed
with: the Secuntles ‘and Exchange Commission, that TriPath Imaging, Inc. maintained effective internal

control,over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — o

Integrated“FrarnéWOrk- issued by the Committee of Spbnsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(the!COSO criteria). TriPath Imaging, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control' over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. .Our respon51b111ty is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectweness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit,

We conduCted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board «(Uhited—‘States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s! aSSessment testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing. such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audlt prov1des a, reasonablc basis for our opinion.

A company’s i‘nternal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of ﬁnanc1al statements for external purposes
in accordanee with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
leportlng 1ncludes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detaﬂ ‘accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
) provrde reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are' being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial -
statements : C

Because of :its «inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that -
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our ‘opini'on; management’s assessment that TriPath Imaging, Inc. maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion, TriPath Imaging, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over ﬁnancial ‘reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audlted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) the consolidated balance sheets of TriPath Imaging, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2004'and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 of TnPath Imaging, Inc. and our report dated .
March 24, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. '

S /s/ Ernst & Young LLP

RaIeigh,‘NC ‘
March 24, 200‘53' e
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TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS -

December 31,
2004 2003

(In thousands, except share
and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............ ... .. ... i ittt $ 18949 § 20954
Accounts and notes receivable, net . ... ... ... . 13,643 13,650
Inventory, met .. ... e 10,723 10,896
Other CUITENT ASSEES . . . .\ vt vttt e e e 1,582 1,495
Total current assets . ............ e 44,897 46,995
CUSTOMET USE ASSES, NMET . ..\ o\ttt t ettt et e e et 7,688 6,634
Property and equipment, net. ....... ... . e 3,290 3,418
Oher A888T8 . oo it 3,777 488
Patents, less accumulated amortization of $3,752 and $3,085 at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively ... ... ... 5,792 6,459
Other intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of $1,229 and $1,066 at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively . ..., . 2,090 1,934
Total assets . ...... P $ 67,534 § 65928

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable ... ... $ 3,668 $ 4425
ACCTUEA BXPOMSES . . o o vttt e ettt e e e e 3,750 7,378
Deferred revenue and customer deposits .. ....... ... 1,551 1,499
Deferred research and development funding................ ... .. ... .... — 207
Current portion of debt . ... ... . . 19 40
Total current Habilitles . ...ttt e e 8,988 13,549
Long-term debt, less current portion ............ oo — 8

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and
OULSIANGING . . ot ettt : — —

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 98,000,000 shares authorized; 38,127,501 and
37,855,967 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003,

TESPECHIVELY L .ttt e 381 379
Additional paid-in capital ...... ... .. . e 290,114 285,035
Deferred COMPENSAtION . ... .o ittt ettt et e e et (11) (52)
Accumulated deficit. ... .. i e (232,415)  (233,020)
Accumulated other comprehensive income. .......... ... 477 29

Total stockholders’ equity ....... ... o i e 58,546 52,371
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ........... ... ... ... $ 67,534 $§ 65928

See accompanying notes.
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R © TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.
" ' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

i (In thousands, except share.

i , L B PR ‘ ‘ o and per share amounts)
Revenues O S N DD e $68,504  $53,764 $ 37,485
Cost of TeVenUes . ... i . ...t I eeeoel.. 21,2300 18377 14922
Gross profit .1..\;1.’.;"; e 41274 35387 22,563
Operatmg expenses ’ - o - C -

Research and development ... e 112800 8861 7,534
Regulatory . .;.?;:1; R T e e e i i, 3,882 5434 2,725
Sales and marketlng S SR S o ro. 18,640 18,324 19,850
General and admlmstratlve ...................... R e ... 13,138 11,687 10,936
s - C 0 46940 44306 - 41,045
Operatmg income/ (1088) ... ..o S e e 334 (8919)  (18482)
Interest i 1ncome S e LTI 289 413 . . 969
Interest expense e O PR SR (18)  (32) (551)
Net 1ncome/(loss) L .‘ .................. PUU R $ 605  $(8,538) .$(18,064)

Earnmgs/ (loss) per common share” - - . '
Bas1c N A R T I I A ... $ 002 $(023) $ (0.48)

Dlluted $ 002 $ (0.23) $ (0.48)

See accompanyi_r'xg‘fnotes-. ‘
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TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Paid-In Deferred  Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders’

Common Stock Capital Compensation Deficit Income/ (Loss) Equity
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Balance at January 1, 2002 ........ $373 - $283,395 $ — $(206,418) $(59) $ 77,291
Exercise of options and warrants . . .. 2 . 150 v— : — — 152

Issuance of common stock under ' A ) ‘ .
employee stock purchase plan .. .. — 84 — — — ‘ 84
Re-pricing of warrants issued as

consideration under term loan’ ‘ L ,
agreement..................... — (350) — — - (350)

Deferred compensation related to .

grant of stock options ........... — 152 (152) - . = —
Adjustment to deferred '

compensation ... ............... — (35) 35 — — —
Amortization of deferred ' L

compensation ............... L — ) — 39 T © 39
Foreign currency translation. .. ... .. , — — = —_ 25 © 25
Netloss ....ovotieianan .. — —_ = (18,064) —  (18,064)
- Comprehensive loss............. o (18,039)
Balance at December 31, 2002 ..... 375 283,396 (78) (224,482) . (34) . 59,177
Exercise of options and warrants . . .. 3 1,232 — -_— — 1,235
Issuance of common stock under ‘

employee stock purchase plan . . .. 1 358 — — — 359
Re-pricing of stock options......... L — 49 — — — 49
Amortization of deferred

compensation .. ................ — — 26 — — 26
Foreign currency translation. . ... ... — — — — 63 63
Netloss .................. N — : — — (8,538) — (8,538)

Comprehensive loss. . ........... (8,475)
Balance at December 31, 2003 ... .. 379 285,035 (52) (233,020) 29 52,371
Exercise of options and warrants . . . . ' 2 ’ 967 — — — 969
Issuance of common stock under h

employee stock purchase plan . ... — 246 — — — 246
Issuance of warrants as consideration '

under incentive sales agreement . . - 3,896 _— — — 3,896
Adjustment to deferred . _

compensation .................. - (30) 30 = — —
Amortization of deferred ‘

compensation . ................. — . — i1 — — 11
Foreign currency translation........ — — — —_ 448 448
Netincome ..................... — — — 605 - - . 605

Comprehensive income . ......... . ' ' 1,053
Balance at December 31, 2004 ... .. $381 $290,114 $ (11)  $(232,415) $477 $ 58,546

See accompanying notes.
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TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(In thousands, except share and
per share amounts)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES . ‘ ‘
Net mcome/(loss) .................................................. $ 605 $ (8,538) $(18,064)
Ad_]USthI'ItS to reconcﬂe net mcome/ (loss) to net cash used in operatmg :
+ activities:” L
- Depreciation ..., SO U RO 4,097 3,539 3,044
. Amortization of intangible assets ......... ... o i i 830 817 817
! ‘Amortlzanon of 'deferred compensation > ....... ............ e 11 26 39
' Non- cash equ1ty COMPENSATION - ...\t vme i e e e e P — 49 —
Amortization of non-cash sales discount ......... e P 519 — —
Amortization of deferred research and development .................. (207) (2,479) (2,479)
Amortization:of non-cash debt issuance costs.................. S, .= — 225
Loss (Galn) on dlsposal of fixed assets ............. .. e T 24 13 (3)
Other non-cash ftems. ... T . P — — 885
Changes in operatmg assets and liabilities: - :
Accounts recelvable ...................................... PRI 199 - (4,183) 233
Cdnventory ... .oiiiiii. .. e e Lo (3,513) . (3,122) (3,005)
‘Othier current assets . .............. o P 702 (1,011) 603
‘Otherdong-term assets . ...t e (692) 443 (28)
"Accounts payable and accrued expenses ............... T (4,521) - 3,927 (767)
gDeferred revenue and customer deposits .................... L 46 - 395 373
“Othercurrenthabxhtles....................................‘..7... — (2,410) —
-Net cash used in-operating activities . . ... U (1,900)  (12,534). - (18,127)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES P : ' ‘
-Purchases of property;and equipment ... (1,215) (146) (2,251)
‘Dlsposals of property and equipment ... L. ... P — — S
Additions to other intangible assets ................. e (319) — )
Salesofshort termmvestrnents.....'.'..’.'.w....‘....‘.'...-....'...-.....~... — C— 2,499
i KNP ’ (7) 196 —
: Net cash (used: m_) prov1ded by investing’ act1v1t1es - (1,541) 50 253
FINANCING ACTIVITIES o
Issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan .......... 246 359 84
Proceeds from exercise. of stock options and warrants .............. I 969 1,235 152
Proceeds. from debt,..oooL S P 365 b 633 —
‘Payments on debt and leases.......... P o {394) (1,384) {3,286)
Net cash' prov1ded by (used in) financing actlvmes ........... PO 1,186 843 (3,050)
Eﬂect of exchange rate changes oncash ......... ... ... . oL 250 24 18
Net decrease n eash and cash equlvalents ............................. (2,005) (11,617)  (20,906)
.Cashiand cash equivalents at beginning of YEAL .ot e 20,954 32,571 53,477
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yedr........ P $18,949 $ 20,954 $ 32,571
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION ‘ :
Cash pald for interest............... e e i, 8188 32 % 326
NON CASH INVESTIN G AND FINANCIN G ACTIVITIES
Re-pncmg of warrants issued as con51derat1on under term loan _ '
- agreement ,....: R U PO .8 — 8 — 8 (350)
Issuance of’' warrants as cons1derat10n under incentive sales agreement . . . " 3,896 o — —

o k : Coe .. $38% § — $ (350)
See accorhpanyi_ng notes.
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TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Background

We create solutions that redefine the early detection and clinical management of cancer. Specifically, we
develop, manufacture, market, and sell proprietary products for cancer detection, diagnosis, staging, and
treatment selection. We are using our proprietary technologies and expertise to create an array of products
designed to improve the clinical management of cancer. We have developed and marketed an integrated
solution for cervical cancer screening and other products that deliver image management, data handling, and
prognostic tools for cell diagnosis, cytopathology and histopathology. We have created new opportunities and
applications for our proprietary technology by applying recent advances in genomics, biology, and informatics
to our efforts to develop new molecular diagnostic products for malignant melanoma and cancers of the cervix,
breast, ovary, and prostate.

We are organized into two operating units: (1) Commercial Operations, through which we manage the
market introduction, sales, service, manufacturing and ongoing development of our current products; and
(2) TriPath Oncology, our wholly-owned subsidiary through which we manage the development and market
introduction of molecular diagnostic products for cancer.

Information on our operations by segment and geographic area is included in Note 8.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consoclidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2004 presentation. These reclassifica-
tions had no effect on previously reported net loss or financial position.

Revenue Recognition

We record revenue from the sale, rental and/or lease of our systems and from the sale of related
consumables. Additionally, we record revenue from service contracts on our systems.

In the case of system sales to end-users, revenue recognition on system sales occurs at the time the
instrument is installed and accepted at the customer site. In the case of instrument sales to distributors,
revenue recognition on system sales occurs based upon the contract governing the transaction, typically at the
time the instrument is shipped from our facility. This is the predominant vehicle for international instrument
sales. If, however, we sell an instrument directly to an international end user, we record the revenue upon
installation and acceptance of the instrument, consistent with our treatment in the U.S.

For system rentals, systems are placed at the customer’s site free of charge and the customer is obligated
either to purchase reagent kits for a fixed term, or are charged fees based on monthly minimum, or actual,
usage. Under these transactions, revenue recognition occurs at the time of shipment of the reagent kits or on a
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TRIPATH IMAGING, INC. .
S NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contmued)

monthly basis based-on the actual or minimum usage. There is no capital equipment revenue recognized under

' these transactlons

We also offer leasmg alternatives. Under these transactions, we may, or may not, recognize revenue on
system hardware depending on the particular details of the lease. We respond to customer needs by offering
both ¢apital and operating lease alternatives. Under the capital lease alternative, revenue is recognized initially
as an instrument sale with part of the lease payments being allocated to interest income, and service revenues,
if apphcable over the lease term. Under operating ledses, we do’ not recognize any revenue related to the
1nstrurnent sale, but recognize revenue as rental income over the lease term,

Sales of consumable products are recorded on shipment. Billings and costs related to shipping products to
customers are included in both revenues and cost of revenues, respectively.

,Deféri‘éd Revenue ' o : .

Deferred revenue principally consists of up-front cash receipts related to FocalPoint and PrepStain
service and equlpment contracts and the revenue portion subject to contingencies under capitalized leases. The
deferred revenue subject to contingencies under capitalized leases will be recognized once those contingencies
have been met. Revenue related to serv1ce and equipment contracts is recogmzed ratably over the life of the
contract L L

|
}M‘

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We con51der all hlghly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equ1va1ents ‘
I .alJ,' .

T rade{’]iecéivables

Trade receivables are stated at outstanding principal less our allowance for doubtful accounts. We charge
off- uncollectlble recelvables against our allowance when the likelihood of collection is remote. We generally
extend credlt terms for 30 days domestically and for 90 days internationally, but may, depending on the
circumstances, extend credit terms for longer periods of time. Amounts outstanding beyond our credit terms
are considered past due. We generally grant credit without requiring collateral. We maintain an allowance for
doubtful accounts, which is determined based on various factors, including our accounts receivable aging,
customer credit-worthiness, historical bad debts and current'economic trends.

B . . Lt
[ o T

. Notes Récéiva];le o

Notes receivable are stated atoutstanding principal less unearned discounts for interest receivable and
our allowance for doubtful accounts. Notes receivable are generally entered into in connection with sales-type
lease transaction for periods ranging from three and. a half to five years. Our policy for uncollectible notes
receivable and our accounting treatment of the allowance for doubtful accounts is the same as that noted
under Trade Receivables above. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, uneamed discounts for interest receivable
amounted to $235 and $99 respectively.

;
Lotk

Inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value (ﬁrst—ln first-out basis). Net realizable
valie ‘of 'inventory ‘is feviewed in detail on an on- gomg ‘basis, with consideration given to deterioration,
obsolescence movement and other factors
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TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Customer-Use Assets

PrepStain and FocalPoint systems manufactured for fee-per-use or operating lease placements are carried
in inventory until the systems are shipped, at which time they are reclassified to customer-use assets (non-
current assets). Movements of $3,728, $3,198, and $2,473 occurred between customer-use assets and
inventory during 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. Customer-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over an estimated useful life of four years. Depreciation expense of customer-use assets amounted to
$2,715, $2,103, and $1,516 during 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line meéthod over
the estimated useful lives (typically three to seven years) of the individual assets. Depreciation expense of
property and equipment amounted to $1,382, $1,436, and $1,251 during 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Patents

Patents consist of patents. and core technology acquired from Neuromedical Systems, Inc. Such assets
are amortized using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 14 to 20 years. Included
in operations in 2004, 2003 and 2002 is $667 of amortization expense attributable to patents, which annual
amortization rate is expected to continue until the patents are fully amortized.

Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consist of acquired rights to certain intellectual property surrounding our
pathology workstation products, our location-guided screening technology and our molecular diagnostic
products. Such assets are amortized using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 10
to 20 years. Amortization expense of other intangible assets amounted to $163, $150, and $150 during 2004,
2003, and 2002, respectively. An annual amortization rate of $182 is anticipated from the 2005 year onwards
based on our other intangible assets in existence at December 31, 2004,

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Recoverability of Intangibles

We periodically review the value of our long-lived assets, patents and identifiable intangible assets to
determine if any impairment has occurred. We consider historical performance and anticipated future results
in our evaluation of potential impairment. If this review indicates that the assets will not be recoverable, as
determined based on an analysis of these assets in relation to the operating performance of our business and
estimated future undiscounted cash flows over the remaining amortization period, we would reduce the
carrying value of the assets accordingly. If a write-down is required, we would prepare a discounted cash flow
analysis to determine the amount of the write-down. No such losses were recognized in 2004, 2003 or 2002.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. We have not generated any
taxable income to date and, therefore, have not paid any federal income taxes since our inception. Realization
of deferred tax assets is dependent on future earnings, the timing and amount of which are uncertain.
Accordingly, we have established valuation allowances, in amounts equal to the net deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, in each period to reflect these uncertainties (seec Note 6).
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Research and Development Costs

‘ Research and development costs are charged to operanons ag mcurred

Stock Based Compensatwn

We account for stock options issued to employees.in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for. Stock Issued ‘to Employees” (“APB 25”). Under - APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized for
stock ‘'or stock optlons issued with an exercise price equivalent to the fair value of our Common Stock. For
stock options granted at exercise prices below fair value, we record deferred compensation expense for the
difference between the exercise price of the shares and the fair value. Any resulting deferred compensation
expense 1s amomzed ratably over the vesting period of the individual options.

In; lOctober 1995, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123; “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”
(“SFAS 123”). For companies that continue to account for stock based compensation arrangements under
'APB 25, SFAS 123 requires disclosure of the pro forma effect on-net income/ (loss) and earnings/ (loss) per
share as if the fair value based method prescribed by SFAS 123 had been applied.

“In. December 2002 the FASB issued SFAS No. 148 ,"“Accounting for Stock Based ‘Compensation —
Transmon and Dlsclosure — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123” (“SFAS 148”), which amends the
dISclosure requlrements of Statement 123 to require -prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
ﬁnanc1al statements about the method of accountmg for stock based employee compensation and the effect of
the method used on reported results (see below)

' Had compensatlon cost for our stock optlons been determined based on the fair value at the date of grant
consistent with the provisions of SFAS 123: and 148, with respect to our Equity Incentive Plan and our
Employee Stock, Purchase Plan (see Note 7), our pro forma earnings/ (loss) and earnings/ (loss) per share

would‘ have been as follows:
L ! a o ' ' a " Year-Ended December 31,

e

o . v 2004 2003 - 2002
Net 1ncome/(loss), as reported. B ‘. e % 605 $ (8,538) $(18,064)
‘ Stock~based compensatlon included in reported net
- mcome/(loss) .......... e 1L : 26 39
)S‘t‘ock -based compensation expense under fair value based Co
o method for all plans ....................... SR oo (5,145) (3,536) (2,969)
;Pro forma netloss.; ........ .................. $(4,529) $(12,048) $(20,994)
‘ Earmngs/ (loss) per common share ' . » ‘
‘ ‘Bas1c b ! ‘ ‘
- As reported e T ... 8 002 $ (0.23) $ (0.48)
Pro forma.: ...................................... $ (0.12) $ (032) $ (0.56)
D1luted. r
 ASTEPOTtEd .. $ 002 $ (023) $ (048)
L PIOMOIMA e . $(012) $ (032) $ (0.56)

See also Recently Issued Accounnng Standards below

[T
i ‘:‘v!“ I 'v Kl

Earmngs/ (Loss) Per Common Share

‘ We follow the prov151ons of SFAS No. 128 “Earnings Per Share whlch requires us to present basic and
diluted earnmgs/ (loss) per share. Basic earnmgs/ (loss) per share 1nformat1on is calculated by dividing the net
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income/ (loss) by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during all periods
presented. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of
shares of common stock outstanding after giving effect to all potentially dilutive shares of common stock, as if
they had been issued at the beginning of the period presented. Potentially dilutive shares of common stock
result from our outstanding stock options and warrants. Certain potential shares, attributable to certain stock
options and warrants, were excluded from diluted earnings per share because their impact was antidilutive.
The calculation of diluted loss per share for 2003 and 2002 excludes all potential shares because their effect
would be antidilutive (see Note 7).

Advertising Expense

The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred. Advertising and marketing expense, including expenses
related to participation in trade shows, amounted to $1,354, $793, and $1,044 during 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and branches have been translated into U.S. dollars in
accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.” All balance sheet accounts have been
translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income statement amounts have been
translated using the average exchange rate for the year. The gains and losses resulting from the changes in
exchange rates has been reported in other comprehensive income/ (loss). The effect on the consolidated
statements of operations of transaction gains and losses is insignificant for all years presented.

Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)

We follow SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” which requires that we display an
amount representing comprehensive income/ (loss), which represents total net income/ (loss) and all other
non owner changes in equity including foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax, for the year in a
financial statement, which is displayed with the same prominence as other financial statements. We elected to
present this information in the Statement of Stockholders’ Equity.

Concentration of Credit Risk and Financial Instruments

Our principal financial instruments subject to potential concentration of credit risk are cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, principally trade receivables and notes receivable, and accounts payable and
accrued expenses. We invest our funds in highly rated institutions and believe that the financial risks
associated with cash and cash equivalents are minimal. We limit our exposure in any individual receivable and
financial instrument. We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated losses to be
incurred in the collection of trade receivables and notes receivable and discount our notes receivable for
unearned interest receivable. The fair values of our financial instruments approximate their carrying values due
to their relatively short maturity and our discounting of unearned interest receivable.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2003, the FASB issued a revised FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Varable
Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51”7 (“FIN 46”), which requires a new approach in
determining if a reporting entity should consolidate certain legal entities, including partnerships, limited
liability companies, or trusts, among others, collectively defined as variable interest entities, or “VIE’s.” A
legal entity is considered a VIE if it does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its own activities without
relying on financial support from other parties. If the legal entity is a VIE, then the reporting entity that is the
primary beneficiary must consolidate it. Even if a reporting entity is not obligated to consolidate a VIE, then
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cettain’ d1sclosures must be made- about the VIE if the reporting entrty has a significant variable interest.
Certain transition disclosures are required for all financial statements issued after December 15, 2003. The
adoption of FIN 46 had no impact on our results of operat1ons OT OUr ﬁnanmal posrtron as of and for the year
endmg December 31 2004 ‘ ;

P

In November 2004 the FASB issued SFAS No lSl “‘Inventory Costs — an Amendment of ARB
No 43 Chapter 4” (“SFAS lSl”) to clanfy the accountmg for, abnormal amounts of idle facility expense,
fre1ght handhng costs and wasted material (spoilage): Paragraph 5 of ARB 43, Chapter 4, previously stated
that © under some c1rcumstances items such as idle facrhty expense, excessive spoilage, double freight, and
re- handlmg costs. may be so abnormal as. to require treatment-as current period charges. ...”. SFAS 151
requires that those items be recognized as current- perlod charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion
of “so abnormal » In addition, SFAS 151 requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of
convers1on be based on the normal capacity of the productron facilities. The provisions of SFAS 151 will be
effective for 1nventory costs incurred during fiscal years begmmng after June 15, 2005, with earlier adoption
perm1tted The prov1srons of SFAS 151 shall be appl1ed prospectlvely We had not adopted SFAS 151 at
December 31, 2004 but we believe. that its adopt1on will have no. material impact on our results of operations
or on our ﬁnancral cond1t1on

i

: In December 2004 the FASB 1ssued 'SFAS No. 152, “Accountmg for Real Estate Time- Shanng
Transactrons — an ‘amendment of FASB Statements No. 66 and 677 (“SFAS 152”). SFAS 152 amends
FASB! Statement No. 66, “Accountmg for. Sales of Real Estate,” to reference the financial accounting and
reporting: gurdance for real estate time-sharing transactions that is provided in AICPA Statement of Position
(SOP) .04-2, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions”’. SFAS 152 also amends FASB
Statement No: 67; “Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations. of Real Estate Projects”, to state that
the gui‘dance for (), incidental operations and. (b) costs incurred to sell real estate projects does not apply to
real estate t1me sharmg transactions., The accounting. for those operations and costs is subject to the guidance
in SOP 04-2. SFAS 152 is effective for financial statements for fiscal:years beginning after June 15, 2005, Its
prowsrons are not expected to have any impact on,our results- of operations, financial position or cash flow.

In December 2004 the FASB issied SFAS No 153, “Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets — an
Amendment of APB Opmlon No. 29” (“SFAS 153”) The' guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, “Accountmg
for Non monetary Transactions”, is based on the principle that exchanges of non-monetary assets should be
measured basedt on' the fair value of the assets exchanged. The. guidance in that Opinion, however, included
certam exceptrons to that principle. SFAS 153 amends Opinion 29 .to eliminate the exception for non-
monetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of non-
monetary-assets that do: not have commercial substance. A non-monetary exchange has commercial substance
if the future cash flows .of the entity are expected to-change significantly as a result of the exchange. The
provrsrons of SFAS 153 w1ll be effective: for non-monetary exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning
after; June lS 2005, with earlier adoption permitted. The provisions of SFAS 153 shall be applied
prospectively. We ‘had not adopted SFAS 153 at December 31, 2004, but we believe that its adoption will have
no. materlal 1mpact on:our results of operatrons financial condition or cash flow.

. December 2004 the FASB issuéd SFAS No 123 (reyrsed 2004), “Share-Based Payment”
(“SFAS 123(R)”, which is a revision of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Comipensation!” SFAS 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ-
ees,” and amends FASB Statement No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” SFAS 123(R) establishes standards
for the’ ‘ac“counting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It
also’ addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based
on: thewfa1r value.of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity
mstruments SFAS 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains
employee. servrces in ‘share-based payment transactions. SFAS: 123(R) does not change the accounting

Do
oo
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guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees provided in SFAS 123 as
originally issued and EITF Issue No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other
Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.” Generally, the approach
in SFAS 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123. However, SFAS 123(R) requires all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the
income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. SFAS 123(R)
requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). That cost will be
recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the
award — the requisite service period (usually the vesting period). No compensation cost is recognized for
equity instruments for which employees do not render the requisite service. Employée share purchase plans
will not result in recognition of compensation cost if certain conditions are met; those conditions are much the
same as the related conditions in SFAS 123. A public entity will initially measure the cost of employee
services received in exchange for an award of liability instruments based on its current fair value; the fair value
of that award will be remeasured subsequently at each reporting date through the settlement date. Changes in
fair value during the requisite service period will be recognized as compensation cost over that period. The
grant-date fair value of employee share options and similar instruments will be estimated using option-pricing
models adjusted for the unique characteristics of those instruments (unless observable market prices for the
same or similar instruments are available). If an equity award is modified after the grant date, incremental
compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the fair value of the modified award
over the fair value of the original award immediately before the modification.

Excess tax benefits, as defined by SFAS 123(R), will be recognized as an addition to paid-in capital.
Cash retained as a result of those -excess tax benefits will be presented in the statement of cash flows as
financing cash inflows. The write-off of deferred tax assets relating to unrealized tax benefits associated with
recognized compensation cost will be recognized as income tax expense unless there are excess tax benefits
from previous awards remaining in paid-in capital to which it can be offset. The notes to financial statements
will disclose information to assist users of financial information to understand the nature of share-based
payment transactions and the effects of those transactions on the financial statements. SFAS 123 (R) must be
adopted no later than July 1, 2005. We expect to adopt SFAS 123(R) on July 1, 2003, as required.

The adoption of SFAS 123(R)’s fair value method will have a significant impact on our results of
operations, although it will have no impact on our overall financial position or overall cash flow. The impact of
adoption of SFAS 123(R) cannot be predicted at this time because it will depend on levels of share-based
payments granted in the future. However, had we adopted SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of that
standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS 123 as described in the disclosure of Pro forma net
loss and loss per share (see Stock Based Compensation above). SFAS 123 (R) also requires the benefits of tax
deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an
operating cash flow as required under current literature. This requirement will reduce net operating cash flows
and increase net financing cash flows in periods after adoption. We cannot estimate what those amounts will
be in the future (because they depend on, among other things, when employees exercise stock options and our
ability to generate taxable income in the future), however no such operating cash flows for excess tax
deductions were recognized in any of the periods presented.
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3. Balance Sheet Informatlon

Select detalled balance sheet information is as follows:
; December 31,

2004 2003
L B .
Acco’u‘nts receiyable ‘
Trade accounts receivable ................. e S $ 13,477 $ 12,081
Current portlon of notes receivable, net of unearned discounts for
_interest receivable of $122 and $57, respectively ............ PP 11,251 2,697
Other accounts recelvable e e e U C177 1,149
AR | | Y 14,905 15,927
. Allowance for doubtful accounts . ..... PR P I (1,262)  (2,277)
ST | ' o $ 13,643 $ 13,650
Inventory ‘ |
1 Stage:of production: : N ]
‘ _.:“"Raw materlals. e A S [ PR $ 9067 $ 8528
' ‘Work in- process ........................... P B S. 1,747 1,925
‘F1n1shed goods ........... e P . 3,014 2,745
e | | 13,828 13,198
. I}eserves ;for obsolete and slow moving inventory............... e (3,105) (2,302)
e e : _' e - $ 10,723 $ 10,896
Categories‘ -
‘ Instruments ............. Ve . e R A $ 12,2931 $ 12,060
Reagents‘and consumables .. ... Ll o SRR . 1,535 1,138
M - | ) S - 13,828 13,198
ReserVes for obsolete and slow moving inventory. . ....... el L (3,105) (2,302)

$ 10,723  § 10,896

,}.

Other eurrent assets..

Current portlon of deferred sales dlscount e P T 7 B —
Other assets S SR LA S 803 1,495
L 1 oo U$.1582 § 1,495

Customer use assets‘ ‘ - ‘
Customer-use systems...',.................,...., ........ e $ 14,696 § 11,667

:,/‘&ccumula‘ted depreciation. . ........:...... e S o (7,008) (5,033)
A | P % 7688 § 6634
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December 31,

2004 2003
Property and equipment

Machinery and equipment .............. i § 4051 $ 3,189
Demonstration qUIPMEnt . . .. ... ...ouiri it 908 857
Furniture, fixtures and improvements ......................c. ..., 1,696 1,696
Leasehold improvements . ........... ... ... . 1,362 1,316
VERICIES . e T e 10 10
Computer equipment and software ... e . 1,839 7,991

Total property and eqUIPMENt ... ........oouoeereennnnennnen... 15,866 15,059

Accumulated depreciation. ...... ... ... i (12,576)  (11,641)

$ 3290 § 3,418

Other assets
Notes receivable, less current portion and net of unearned discounts for

interest receivable of $113 and $42, respectively .................. $ 1,153 § 4359
Deferred sales discount, less current portion....................... . 2,597 —
Deposits and other assets .............. N 27 29

$§ 3777 § 488

December 31,

2004 2003

Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related benefits ........ ... ... L. oL $2,488  $4,719
Accrued clinical trHal COSES .. .\ v vttt e et — 1>,074
Accrued taxes (other than INCOME taXES) . . ..o\ even e, 681 706
Accrued warranty Costs .. ... .. 159 387
" Other accrued expenses. ................... S 422 . 492

$3750  $7.378

4. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

A summary of the allowance for doubtful accounts activity is as follows:
December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Balance, beginning of year. ... ................coiiiiiiii.... $ 2‘,:27>7 $ 3,554 $3,285
Amounts charged toexpense............... ... . ..., 3 180 1,050
Amiounts charged to allowance .............. ... i, (1,018)  (1,457) (781)
Balance, end of YEAr . . ...\ vvor et '$ 1,262 $2277  $3,554




TRIPATH IMAGING, INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

5. Long-Term Obllgatlons and Commitments
Long- Term Debt o

In connectlon wrth a term loan, which was fully repard in 2003, we issued to the lenders warrants to
purchase 223,253 shares of our common stock. Using a Black-Scholes pricing model, the warrants were valued
upon’ 1ssuance at’ $675 which represented non-cash debt issuance costs. These warrants, which expire in 2007,
were recorded as.additional paid-in capital and the resulting debt issuance costs were amortized on a straight-
line basrs to interest .expense over the three-year term of the loan. That amortization has been completed The
warrants were exerc1sable upon issuance. In January 2004, 100,583 of these warrants were exercised using the
net issuance 'feature contained in such warrants resulting in the issuance of 41,677 shares of common stock.
The remaining 122,670 warrants outstanding have a weighted average exercise price of $4.28.

W(}rking“Ca,)imt Facility

In January 2005 we renewed our $7, 500 working capital facility with Silicon Valley Bank. We also
extended the term of the line of credit to 15 months with an expiration date of April 27, 2006. The entire
amount of the line i is available as long as certain financial covenants are met. If these covenants are not met,
the avaﬂable balance is limited to an amount equal to 80% of eligible accounts receivable. At December 31,
2004, we were entltled to borrow the full amount of the line. The renéwed line offers either a prime-based
(prime plus 0. 25%) or LIBOR- based (LIBOR plus 2.0%) pricing option for advances made under it and is
collaterahzed by substantlally all of our assets. The hne of credit carries customary covenants, including the
marntenance of a minimum modified quick ratio, minimum tangiblé net worth, and other requirements. We
had no outstandmg borrowrngs under this agreement at December 31, 2004.

At December 31 »2004, maturities of other outstanding short- term debt raised to fund working capital
were $19, all rcpayable in the first quarter of 2005.

Leases and Lease Lines of Credtt

]Durrng Apr11 2003, we obtained a $2,500 lease line of credit from General Electric Capital Corporation
(“GE: Capital”)./Individual operating Jease schedules under this lease line carry three-year terms. Financing
chargesiare based on ‘the fixed basic term lease rate factor. The interest rates on the various schedules which
are incorporated into the lease payments under this lease line, which are incorporated into the operating lease
payments, range from 2.85% to 3.45%. The lease line is being used as'an alternative source of capital to secure
operating leases for assets, primarily equipment: In March 2004, this line was renewed for $2,000 (in addition
to amounts, for ‘ass‘ets'a'l‘ready leased under the line). Terms of the new line are substantially the same as the
expiring line. The primary difference is that lease terms under the new line range from 30 to 36 months. As of
December 31 2004 and 2003, respectively, assets with ‘an original cost of $1,707 and $820 were leased under
our lease lines w1th GE Capital. Future minimum lease payments under this lease line are $1,579 as of
December 31 2004 ’

' Durmg August 2002 we obtained a $1,500 lease line of credit from Bank of America. Bank of America
assigned the leases,under this line to GE Capital in 2004. Amounts used under this lease line are secured by a
letter of credit against our line of credit with Silicon Valley Bank discussed above. Assets leased under this
lease line - carry three -year lease terms. Financing charges are based on three-year constant Treasury
Maturltres The 1nterest rates on the various schedules under this lease line, which are incorporated into the
operatlng lease payments, range from 2.75% to 2.90%. The lease llne was used as an alternative source of
caprtal to secure operating leases for assets, primarily equipment. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, assets
with an,original cost of §1,286 were leased under this lease line. Future minimum lease payments under this
lease line are’ $429 as.of December 31, 2004. As the lease line has expired, no further assets will be leased
under this line of credit. ~

il s -!
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We also lease our office and manufacturing facilities and certain other office equipment under operating
leases, with various renewal options, expiring at various times through 2018,

At December 31, 2004, future minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows:

2005 o $ 1,915
2006« e 1,836
2007 o 1,471
2008 .\ 891
2000 762
Thereafter .......... ... ... ... S 6,182

‘ $13,057

Rent expense amounted to $2,066, $2,280 and $1,656 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Other Liabilities and Commitments

On July 31, 2001, we entered into a series of agreements with Becton Dickinson and Company (“BD”) to
develop and commercialize tests for malignant melanoma and cancers of the cervix, breast, ovary and prostate
using genomic and proteomic markers identified at Millennium Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Millennium”). We
have accounted for the transaction in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 68, “Research and
Development Arrangements.” In connection with the transaction, we recorded $6,198 in deferred research and
development (“R&D”) funding, which was amortized against such expenses over thirty months on a straight-
line basis. During 2004 and 2003, respectively, we recorded $207 and $2,479 of amortization against R&D
expenses. This deferred R&D funding was fully amortized as of January 31, 2004.

During 2001 we entered into a contract with a vendor in Switzerland to purchase a minimum of 300 and
up to 525 base units for our PrepStain instrument. In terms of the original contract we committed to purchase
at least 300 complete units by December 31, 2004, and to the extent that we purchased less than 525 complete
units, we would have been obligated to purchase component parts for the balance by the end of 2005. In late
2004 and early 2005 we negotiated a favorable conclusion to this contractual agreement with the supplier. We
now have no further obligation to purchase a balance of component parts and are only committed to purchase
a further 25 base units in 2005. Our remaining commitment in terms of the negotiated settlement
approximates $295 based on the exchange rate in effect at December 31, 2004.

6. Income Taxes

At December 31, 2004, we had net tax loss carryforwards of approximately $218,835, which have an
expiration period that begins in 2005 and ends in 2024 for federal income tax purposes. We also have
approximately $4,171 in research and development carryforwards that have an expiration period that begins in
2006 and ends in 2024. Due to the prior issuance and sale of shares of preferred stock, the Merger in 1999 and
changes in ownership, we have incurred “ownership changes” pursuant to applicable regulations in effect
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. ‘

Our use of losses incurred through the date of these ownership changes may be limited, thereby
negatively impacting the ultimate utilization of these losses. To the extent that any single-year loss is not
utilized to the full amount of the limitation, such unused loss is carried over to subsequent years until the
earlier of its utilization or the expiration of the relevant carryforward period.

Approximately $6,446 of the net tax loss carryforward is attributed to the deduction for stock options, the
tax effect of which will be credited to equity when and if recognized.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets
and liabilities and. the corresponding financial statement amounts. Significant components of our deferred
income tax assets (hab1ht1es) are as follows:

| : . o o December 31,
c 2004 2003

Net tax loss carryforwards . ........... B S $ 83340 §$ 75,581
Research and development credits ... ................. SO NI 4,171 3,831
Accruedvacatron.'................................._...‘....‘ ....... 149 177
" Accfued warranty COSES oot SRR U e 60 136
Allowance for doubtful accounts ................. ... e DU . 480 797
Chantable contnbutron carryforwards e e B 22 11
Deferred research and development............. .. ... o .., — 72
Intanglble assets, net of amortization .............. ..o 1,902 2,691
Inventory ...... e e e e 1,694 1,291
‘Other . .. O N SRRSO 358 1,044
Property and equipment ............. B (208) (89)
Valuat1on allowance ......... P (91,968)  (85,542)
‘ 2 $ — 3 —

k Due ‘to the ‘uncertainty of our ability to generate taxable income to realize our deferred tax assets, a
valuation allowance has been established for financial reporting purposes equal to the amount of the net

deferred ‘tax assets. Our valuation allowance was $91,968 and $85,542 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.’

A reconc‘lli‘a‘tion ‘of the federal statutory rate to our.effective income tax rate is as follows:
B ' - ' ‘ 2004 2003

Income tax provision at federal statutory rate . e 350% 35.0%
Statemcometax net........ RS T e 3.0 —
Permanent items and other.................. e e ... 1270 17.4
Change in ‘valuation allowance . ........... ... .. o i (165.0) (52.4)

v

i Effective tax rate

7. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred S‘tock )

Pursuant to our- amended and restated Certificate of Incorporat1on the Board of Directors has the
authorlty, w1thout further vote or action by the stockholders to'issue up-to 1,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock
in one or 'more Series and to fix the relative rights, preferences privileges, qualifications, limitations and
restrictions thereof, 1nclud1ng dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of
redemption, redemptlon prices, liquidation. preferences, sinking fund terms and the number of shares
constituting any series or the designation of such series, any or all of which may be greater than the rights of
Common Stock At December 31, 2004 there were no.shares of. Preferred Stock outstanding.
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Common Stock

On July 31, 2001, we completed a private placement of securities under Regulation D of the Securities
. Act with BD pursuant to which BD acquired 2,500,000 shares of our common stock for $10.00 per share. We
accounted for a portion of these proceeds in accordance with the provisions of FASB SFAS No. 68, “Research
and Development Arrangements” and recorded $6,198 thereof as deferred research and development funding,
which was amortized against such expenses over thirty months on a straight-line basis. The transaction with
BD provided us with an additional $25,000 in cash. In a separate agreement, in July 2001 we entered into a
research license for our evaluation of certain patents in the area of colon cancer with Millennium. In
consideration of this agreement, we issued to Millennium 400,000 shares of our common stock. We also paid
$1,000 in connection with other aspects of the transaction. In May 2003, we decided not to exercise our rights
to the colon cancer license and not to develop technology related to colon cancer through our collaboration
with BD,

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share

The following table represents a reconciliation of the weighted average shares used in the calculation of
basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share:

2004 2003 2002
Basic . 38,005,626 37,626,268 37,437,952
Assumed conversion of:
Stock Options ... i 1,084,074 — —
o Warrants ... 61,058 — —
Diluted ... e 39,150,758 37,626,268 37,437,952

The following table summarizes the potential common shares not included in the computation of diluted
carnings/ (loss) per share because their impact would have been antidilutive: '

2004 2003 2002
Stock options . ... 1,931,148 ' 3,827,347 3,766,983
WarTants .. oot v e e 800,000 223,253 5,302,283

2,731,148 4,050,600 9,069,266

Equity Incentive Plans

We have stock option plans (the “Plans”) under which incentive and non-statutory stock options, stock
appreciation rights and restricted stock may be granted to our employees, directors or consultants.

In November 1996, we adopted the 1996 Equity Plan. Pursuant to the 1996 Equity Plan, our employees,
employees of our subsidiaries, directors and consultants may receive options to purchase common stock and
other common stock awards. The 1996 Equity Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee. A
maximum of 7,996,325 shares have been authorized to cover grants and awards under the 1996 Equity Plan.

In June 1997, we adopted the 1997 Director Plan. Pursuant to the 1997 Director Plan, eligible directors
may receive options to purchase common stock. Additionally, each time an eligible director is elected or re-
elected to the Board of Directors, the eligible director is automatically granted an option to
purchase 30,000 shares of our common stock. The 1997 Director Plan is administered by the Board of
Directors. A maximum of 450,000 shares have been authorized to cover grants and awards under the
1997 Director Plan.

F-20




TRIPATH IMAGING, INC:
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

We also have two plans from NeoPath, Inc., the NeoPath 1989 Stock Option Plan and NecPath 1999
Plan..No further'shares of common' stock are -available for grant or award under. these plans, which have
balances of unexerc1sed shares of 104,441 and 51,801, respectively as of December 31, 2004.

For years covered by this report, stockoptions are the only instrument granted or 1ssued under these
plans. Generally, except for eligible directors, where the vesting period is ratably over 36 months, option grants
vest ratably ovet'a 48- month term. Stock options expire ten years from the date of grant. The exercise price of
options granted, as determined by the Compensation Committee or Board of Directors, approximates fair
market value of our common stock at the time of the grant.

A surnmaryjof activity under the Plans is as follows:

i ‘ . Options Outstanding
i k o " " Numberof  Weighted-Average

S N o ‘ Shares iExercise Price
Outstandmg at December 31, 2001 . R UL 3,487,462 $ 7.26
- Options granted . .......... C O ... 897850 478
. Options exercised ............... P e ceeses (127,354) 1.19
Optrons canceled/ expired................... PRI S0 (490,975) 77 8.23
‘jiOutstandmg at December 31, 2002 ............ i 3,766,983 $ 6.74
Optlons granted ........... PR P e L 594,400 ‘ 4.04
Optlons exercised ......... . i Lo (233,493) T 534
. Options canceled/explred ......... P I oo (300,543) 7.19
Outstandmg at December 31,2003........... P ... 3,827,347 - $ 637
Optrons granted e e 1,315,849 9.02
Uy Optrons exerc1sed ...... e R A e (197,197) 4.95
Opt1ons canceled/explred. e A ST Lo (372,361) 10.10
Outstandmg at December 31,2004, ........... T S, 4,573,638 - $6.89
“& . . . Options O,utstunding ' o v * Options Exercisable
b Number Weighted-Average : R Number ]
o ;. + . Outstanding at Remaining ' i ‘ Exercisable at’
pe . * December 31, ‘Contractual Life: - Weighted-Average December 31,  Weighted-Average
Price ‘Range” ‘ L ‘: . 2004, . (Years) - .. Exercise Price 2004 Exercise Price .
$020-%020...... \ 65,556 19 8020, 65,556 $0.20
1.72 - ;;,‘;2.55‘. ...... i 357,672 . 8.0 .. 249 160,254 2.48
2.63‘- 143850 81,496 67 - 3353 68,647 - 3.52
~3.98 - 5 89 4.‘. 1,604,833 - 5.6 e 407 1,434,302 4.80
6’60 5 900 . 1426376 0 82 . 801 567,643 7.08
904 - 10 94 S 939,149 S22 | 10.26“‘ 819,527 10.37
16. 45 - 116. 45 cital 98,»5'56 3.2 : 16.45" 98,556 16.45
$ 020 $16 45 4,573,638 : 6.8 C$ 6.89 : 3,214,485 $ 6.74

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

kP

In 2002 we mtroduced our TnPath Imagmg, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan with 1,000,000 shares
of common ‘stock, for authorized issuance. The plan qualifies as an ‘employee stock purchase plan” under

1
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Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code and permits substantially all employees to purchase a limited

number of shares of the Corporation’s stock at 85% of market value. We issue shares to employees semi-
annually in June and December of each year. A summary of shares issued is as follows:

2004 2003 2002
June ... ... e e 20,964 50,631 24,142
_ December................... e 13,235 22,940 51,157

34,199 73,571 75,299

SFAS 123

We have adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123 and presented the relevant disclosures in
Note 2. In accordance with SFAS 123, the fair value of each grant under its plans was determined by using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions: .

Year Ended December 31,

o 2004 2003 2002
Risk-free interestrate . . ....... ... . ... ... .. 3.23% 2.45% 3.86%
Expected dividend yield . ........................ 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected lives .. ............. ... ... L, .... 48 months 48 months 48 months
Expected volatility .......................... ... 0.85 0.93 1.02
Weighted-average fair value of grants . ............ $9.02 $4.04 $4.78

Warrants

On February 9, 1999, we completed a $14,500 private equity transaction. In connection with the
financing, we issued to a related party five-year warrants to purchase 79,030 shares of common stock at an
exercise price of $7.45 per share. These warrants were exercised during November 2003 using a net issuance
provision resulting in the issuance of 12,997 shares.

On February 8, 2000, we closed a $7,000 subordinated term loan with a syndicate of lenders to finance
operations (see Note 5). We issued warrants to the lenders to purchase 223,253 shares of common stock at a
weighted-average exercise price of $4.70 per share. The warrants were exercisable upon issuance. In January
2004, 100,583 of these warrants were exercised using the net issuance provision contained in such warrants
resulting in the issuance of 41,677 shares: The remaining 122,670 warrants outstanding have a weighted
average exercise price of $4.28 and expire in January 2007.

On November 14, 2000, we completed a $43,000 private equity transaction with a subsidiary of
Hoffmann-La Roche (“Roche”) in terms of which Roche acquired 5 million shares of our common stock for
$8.00 per share. Additionally, Roche simultaneously acquired, for an aggregate purchase price of $3,000,
warrants to purchase an additional 5 million shares at strike prices ranging from $10.00 to $15.00 per share.
The proceeds from the sale of these warrants were recorded as additional paid-in capital. The warrants were
not exercised and expired in November 2003 pursuant to their terms.

In May 2004, we entered into a new multi-year agreement with Quest Diagnostics Incorporated (“Quest
Diagnostics™) in terms of which Quest Diagnostics uses our SurePath and PrepStain products. In connection
with the new agreement, we issued Quest Diagnostics incentive warrants with respect to an aggregate of
4 million shares of our common stock as follows: a three-year warrant exercisable immediately for
800,000 shares at an exercise price of $9.25 per share; a three-year warrant exercisable upon achievement of a
certain milestone for 200,000 shares at an exercise price of $10.18 per share; a three-year warrant exercisable
upon achievement of a certain milestone for 500,000 shares at an exercise price of $10.64 per share; a four-
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year, warrant exermsable upon achievement of a certain milestone for 1 million-shares at an exercise price of
$11.56 per share and a four-year warrant exercisable upon ach1evement of a certain milestone for 1.5 million
shares at, an exercise pnce of $12.03 per share. The rmlestones all are based on the volume of SurePath tests
purchased by Quest Diagnostics wrthm spe01ﬁed time, penods In addition, the warrants permit exercise on a
net issuance basis and are subject to a lock- up provision, whrch prohrbrts sales and other transfers of the
underlymg shares for a period of two years : and sub]ects sales for an additional one year thereafter to certain
limitations. When andifiit becomes apparent that any ¢ of the four tranches of currently unexercisable warrants
held by Quest may< .vest ipon ‘the achievement of the' applrcable sales-based milestone, we will amortize the
resulting deferred sales discounts over the related number of tests.in the six-month period for which the
warrants were earned In connectron with this agreement the initial 800,000 warrants were valued using a
Black-Scholes 'pricing miodel upon. issuance at $3,896, which represented a deferred sales discount. These
warrants, which. exprre in. 2007, were recorded as addltlonal paid-in capital and the resultitig deferred sales
discount is. berng amortrzed on a straight-line basis against revenues over the five-year term of the agreement.
During 2004, we recorded $519 of amortization as a reductron of revenues. Included in ‘other current assets’
and other assets at December 31 2004 are the unamortrzed balances of $779 and $2,597, respectively.

“As of December 31 2004 there were a total of: 922 670 common stock warrants outstanding with a
welghted average exermse price of $8 59. These warrants -expire in January and May 2007.

Common Stock Reserved Sfor Future Issuance

At December 31, ‘2004 we have reserved authonzed shares of common stock for future issuance as
follows . \ N

o December 31,
Outstandlng stock opt1ons ...... . J.' ........ ST U P ... 4,573,638
Possrble future 1ssuance under equlty incentive plans ... ...... R 1,848,583

‘ Pos51ble future i 1ssuance under Employee Stock Purchase Plan................... 816,931
Common stock warrants ...... e PETRT e el 922,670

Total shares reserve_d_, .......... RERT LTERTERP e R e 8,161,822

| ' 1
|

Deferred Compensatzon .

'

In accordance with APB 25, for stock’ options and restrrcted stock'grants granted at exercise prices below
fair value we record deferred compensation expense for the difference between the exercise price of the shares
and the, fair value The amounts are amortized to compensatron expense over the vesting period of the
1nd1v1dual optrons geneérally 48 months. Amortization of deferred compensation amounted to $11, $26 and
$39 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We adjusted the deferred: compensation amount by $30 and $35
in 2004 and 2002 respectrvely, to reﬁect the cancellatlon of optlons granted to terminated employees.

8. Operatlons by Industry Segment and Geographic Area

Descrtptton of Products and Servzces by Segment

We currently:}» erate in two busrness segments: Commercral Operatlons and TrrPath Oncology (see

AT : CF-23




TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Measurement .of Segment Profit or Loss and Segment Assets

* We evaluate performance and allocate resources based on operating profit or loss. The accounting policies
of the reportable segments are the same as those described under the summary of significant accounting
policies (see Note 2 above). Inter-segment transfers are recorded at cost.

" Factors Management Used to Identify the Company’s Reportable Segments

Our reportable segments are business units that offer or seek to develop different products and services.
The reportable segments are each managed separately because they do or seek to develop and commercialize
distinct products. The segments operate as separate entities.

Results by Seément R
The results, by segment, for 2004, 2003 and 2002 follow:

2004
Commercial )
Operations TriPath Oncology Total
‘Revenues.............. S TR $67,862 $ 642 $68,504
Cost Of FEVeNUES. ...t i e e 21,072 158 21,230
Gross profit. . ... e 46,790 484 47.274
Operating expenses: : ‘ : '
Research and development ............ EE TP 2,005 9,275 11,280
Regulatory ....... ... i, 3,263 619 3,882
Sales and marketing ................ ... .. ... 18,126 514 18,640
General ‘and administrative ... .................... 8,652 4,486 13,138
‘ _ 32,046 _ 14,894 46,940
Operating income/ (loss) . .. .. ..... P e $14,744 $(14,410) $ 334
2003
Commercial
Operations TriPath Oncology Total
Revenues................... EERTTR e $53,631 $ 133 $53,764
Cost Of revenues. . ...t et 18,361 16 18,377
Gross profit . . ........coeiiiiiiiiin, . 35,270 117 35,387
Operating expenses: )
Research and development . . ... .. S 2,319 6,542 - 8,861
Regulatory .......... i 4763 671 5,434
Sales and marketing .................. .. ... ..., 17,318 . 1,006 18,324
General and administrative . ................... . 7,264 4,423 11,687
31,664 12,642 44,306

‘Operating income/ (loss) . . . . ... . .. T  $ 3,606 $(12,525)  $(8,919)
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. 2002
Commercial
. ‘ Operations TriPath Oncology Total
‘ Revenues...‘.‘....'.‘......A....- ....... . L $37,4$Si $ — $ 37,485
Costlof revenues. e PR SN FE DS 14,922 — 14,922
Gross proﬁt ..................... SN S 22,563 = 22,563
Operatmg expenses o : R
Research and development ......... S I I W [ 5,770 7,534
: Regulatory ........ ST SOOI L 2,206, 519 2,725
Sales and marketmg ........................... 18,864 .. 986 19,850
General and administrative . R R Ceaen 6,245 4,691 10,936
S A | . 29,079 11,966 41,045
r Operatmg loss..‘.i’;.;.‘....‘..... e e USRI (6 516). $(11,966)  $(18,482)

All. revenues were from external customers. There were no 1nter-segment revenues. Sales to external
customers for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, include the following: .

‘ ; 2004 2003 2002
Instruments , ‘ ‘
Commerc1al Operatrons ............ T - $ 7,029 § 7,528 $ 6,495
TnPath Oncology ................. e e - 130 — —
‘ Total 1nstruments ................. . ........ L $ 7,159 t$ 7,528 $ 6,495
Reagents ' - . S
Commercral Operatrons e AT Lo $52,683 $39,013 $24,730
TnPath Oncology ................... P . — — —
 “Total reagents ......... SR SUURUURORI L. $52683  $39,013  $24730
“I‘?ee-per-‘useand other ' s e | |
"' ‘Commercial Operations ........... e .. $ 8IS0 $7,090 $ 6260
TnPath Oncology .......... e L 812 133 —
‘ Total fee-per—use and other ,..... e ‘$ 8,662 $ 7223 § 6,260
,, Total revenues _: P . - o
Commerc1al Operatrons R e ool $67.862  $53.631  $37.485
TnPath Oncology A T i . 642 133 —
Total consolrdated revenues . ... ... P . L - 868,504 >$53 764 $37,485

Reagent revenues for 2004 in our Commercral Operations segment are net of $519 of amortization of the
non- cash sales discount related to the: Quest warrants (see Note 7 above)
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The tables below disclose certain other selected segment information:

2004 2003 2002
Depreéiation and amortization
Commercial Operations . ........covviiiiinrininnnree.., $4,698 $ 4,154 § 3,774
TriPath Oncology ... ..o e 240 228 126
Total consolidated depreciation and amortization ............... $4,938 § 4,382 $ 3,900
Amortization of deferred R&D funding from BD recorded as an .
offset to R&D expense for TriPath Oncology ................ $(207) $(2,479) $(2,479)
Purchases of property and equipment ' ‘
Commercial Operations .................... S $1,059 § 61 § 1,430
TriPath Oncology ............. e 156 85 821
Total consolidated purchases of property and equipment......... $1,215 - § 146 § 2,251
Additions to other intangible assets o . . ;
TriPath Oncology ... ..vvvv it eae s $39 $ — § —
2004 2003
Segment assets A
Commercial Operations. ...........ooivuverevineneeans e $100,717 $ 89,861
TriPath Oncology . ... .. e e e 1,035 1,849
Total SeMENt aSSetsS . .. ..ottt ettt et $101,752 $§ 91,710
Reconciling item ’
Inter-segment loan account. ....... ... .. ... ... ... il (34,218)  (25,782)
Total consolidated assets . . ..ottt i B $ 67,534 § 65,928

During 2001, our TriPath Oncology segment received $6,198 in deferred R&D funding from BD, which
was amortized as an offset to R&D expenses over thirty months on a straight-line basis. This deferred R&D
funding was fully amortized as of January 31, 2004 (sec tables above).

Geographic Area Data

Domestic revenues are generated primarily by direct sales activities. We initiated expansion of our field
sales forces in September 2004, targeted primarily towards our pursuit of additional business under our
agreements with large commercial laboratories. International revenues continue to be derived primarily
through distributors, except in Canada where we sell directly to our laboratory customers. Revenues by
geographic area (or country) are reflécted in the table below: ’

. . 2004 2003 2002
United States.............. e L. $49,663 0 72% $39,491  73% $25,520 68%
International ......... ... ... ... oL 18,841 28% 14,273 27% 11,965 32%

Total Revenues .........ccvvvivnvennnn. $68,504 $53,764 $37,485
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A 2004 2003 2002
‘Intern’_ational Revenues . : S : :
Europe ... .. L e Voo $8177 0 $6087 0§ 4938
Canada .o Vo, 6425 5524 4282
ASIA L el 3883 2376 2,585
' Rest; of world .......... e e Cha g ..o 356 - 286 160
‘ Total 1nternatronal revenués. ........ O S R $18 841 $l4 273 $11,965

‘Revenues are, attrrbuted to countnes based on the locat10n of our customers, which include both
drstnbutors and end users :

Our largest customer accounted for 7%, 6% and 8% of total revenues in 2004 2003 and 2002,
respectrvely T : .

9. Related Party Transactlons

We had a temporary arrangement with .BD, a shareholder for leasing a portion of BD s facility in
Research Triangle Park, North Carolina (“RTP”). Total rent paid to. BD amounted to $28, $46 and $130
during, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. This arrangement continued, .primarily for use of BD’s animal
laboratory facilities, though on a much-reduced scale after TriPath Ongcology occupied its new space in the
RTP area of North Carohna in July of 2002. We also recovered certain R&D expenses from BD, which were
incurred by TnPath Oncology on behalf of BD in terms of our arrangement with BD. These recoveries were
set-off against’ R&D. expenses in our TriPath Oncology segment and amounted to $982, $3,156 and $1,480 in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectrvely

'
1 ‘v'r

10. Employee Beneﬁts

We maintain - quallﬁed 401 (k) Retirement Plan covering substantially all employees that provides for
voluntary‘ salary deferral contributions. Total expense. for the plan, including employer contributions,
amounted t0'$405, $435 and $336 during 2004, 2003 and.2002, respectively.

Sincé January 1, 2002, we began offering to employees a qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan
covering substantially all employees that provide for voluntary salary deferral contributions for the purchase of
our stock subject to the provisions of the Plan There was no expense associated with this plan recorded in
2004, 2003 or 2002. ‘

11. Contmgencres ‘

At December 31 2003 we had accounts and notes rece1vable of $2, 036 from a company whrch disclosed
to us its 1ntent1on to ex1t the cervical cytology business. The contract we had with this customer was a multi-
year agreement that'included commitments for reagents ‘and d1sposables As we were unable to reach a
mutually acceptable settlement through negotiations, we ﬁled suit against that company in February 2003 in
state court in North'Carolina to enforce our rights under the agreement. In February 2004, we settled the
dispute pursuant to a‘confidential settlement agreement. As'a result of the payments that we have received and
are entitled to, receive through the terms of the settlement and the reserve that we established when the
dispute arose, we are not required to record any additional charge against revenues. To date, both parties have
complied with, the terms of the settlement agreement.

We. compete with Cytyc Corporation (Cytyc) with respect to the sale of our FocalPoint and Cytyc’s sale
of its ThinPrep Imaging System. We believe Cytyc’s ThinPrep Imaging System mfnnges our patents and, on
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June 16, 2003, we filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina
seeking damages and injunctive relief to stop such infringement.

On January 5, 2004, the district court in Massachusetts entered an order consolidating this lawsuit into a
single action with a lawsuit that Cytyc had filed in Massachusetts. On April 30, 2004, the district court granted
us leave to amend our complaint and answer in the consolidated action to assert infringement against Cytyc’s
ThinPrep Imaging System under two additional patents. The fact discovery period has now been completed.
The expert discovery period runs through April 29, 2005. The court has set a scheduling conference for May 5,
2005. At present the court has not scheduled a Markman hearing to hear argument on the patent claim
construction issues. We anticipate that a trial will be scheduled sometime in 2006 based on the current case
schedule. We are unable to predict the ultimate outcome. Similarly, we are unable to predict the potential
effect on our business and results of operations that any outcome may ultimately have.

The case number for the action transferred from North Carolina to Massachusetts is 1:03-CV-12630-
DPW and the case number for the consolidated Massachusetts action is 1:03-CV-11142-DPW. The case
numbers are for reference only and the corresponding pleadings are expressly not incorporated into this
document by reference.

Furthermore, in the ordinary course of business, we are the subject of, or party to, various pending or
threatened claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, settlement of such claims and htlgatlon will
not have a material effect on our operatlons or ﬁnanc1al position.

12. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

2004 March 31 June 30 . September 30 December 31
REVEMUES . ... eeeeeeeee e $15,510  $16,721  $18,028 $18,245
Grossprofit ............ .. ... 10,598 11,720 12,499 12,457
Net Income/(loss) .................... . (884) 203 978 308

Earnings/ (loss) per common share(1)

Basic.......... ... ol ... $(002) $ 001 $ 0.03 $ 0.01
Diluted . .......... EE R T T $ (0.02) $ 001 $ 0.02 $ 001
2003 ) March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
Revenues ........ ... . il $11,147  $13,252 $14,113 . $15,252
Grossprofit ... ... ... ... il 7,269 8,621 9,308 10,189

Netloss ..o (2,350) (2,655) {1,609) (1,924)

Loss per common share (basic & diluted) (1) $ (0.06) $ (0.07) $ (0.04) $ (0.05)

(1) The sum of per share earnings by quarter may not equal earnings per share for the year due to changes in
average share calculations. This is in accordance with prescribed reporting requirements.
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o - o . Exhibit 31.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 240.13a-14 or 240.15d-14
s of the Securities Exchange:Act of 1934, as amended
L Paul R Sohmer cert1fy that:
1.1 have rev1ewed this annual report on Form 10-K-of TriPath Imagmg, Inc;

2. Based On my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in llght‘of the circumstances under which such
statements’ were r‘nad‘e' not misleading with' respect to the period covered. by this report;

' 3. Based on' my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this
report falrly present in, all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant-as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; '

‘4. "The reg15trants other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
drsclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over ﬁnanc1al reporting’ (as deﬁned in Exchange Act Rules” l3a-lS(f) and 15d 15(f)) for the
reglstrant and have ‘

fee (@) Des1gned such- d1sclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
‘procedures to bei des1gned under our supervision, to ensure -that- material information relating to the

1 reglstrant including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known ‘to us by others w1th1n those entities,
pamcularly during the period in which this report’ is bemg prepared,;

(b) Des1gned such internal control over ﬁnanual -reporting, or caused such internal control over

‘ ﬁnanc1al reportmg to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

rel1ab111ty of financial reporting and the preparation’ of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance w1th generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in'this report ouriconclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the penod covered by this report based on. such evaluation; and ‘

(d) D1sclosedl1n this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during'the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
‘case ‘of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materrally affect, the
regrstrant s 1nternal control over financial reporting; and i

5. The reglstrant s'other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal: control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the andit committee of the registrant’s
board of d1rectors (or persons performing the equivalent functrons)

(a) All s1gn1ﬁcant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operat1on of internal control
over ﬁnanaal reporting which are reasonably l1kely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process summarize and report financial information; and ;

o (b) Any fraud whether or not materlal that involves management or other employees who have a
s1gn1ﬁcant role i in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting:

/s/ Paul R. Sohmer

) | © Paul R. Sohmer, M.D.
' ' Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 3 13,32005“




Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 240.13a-14 or 240.15d-14
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

I, Stephen P. Hall, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TriPath Imaging, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; ‘

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused -such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

- (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and :

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Stephen P. Hall

Stephen P. Hall
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 31, 2005




Exhibit 32

Certification of Periodic Financial Report
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Each of the under51gned officers of TriPath Imaging, Inc. (the “Company ) certifies, under the standards
set forth in and solely for the purposes of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report on Form 10-K' of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2004 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchangc Act of 1934 and information contained in that Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects,
the ﬁnanc1a1 condition and results of operations of the Company.

. : ' A /s/ Paul R. Schmer

Paul R. Sohmer, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

i
T

Dated: March'31, 2005

/s/ Stephen P. Hall

Stephen P. Hall
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: March 31, 2005
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EXHIBIT 99.1

A PR TRIPATH IMAGING, INC.

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE OPERATIN G RESULTS
March 2005 -

From. time’ to time, - TriPath ‘Imaging, - -through its management, 'may make forward-looking public
statements such as statements concerning then expected future revenues.or earnings or concerning projected
plans performance product development and commercialization as well as other estimates relating to future
operat1ons Forward looking statements may be in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, inpress.réleases or in oral statements made with the approval of an authorized executive officer. The
words o“r‘phrases “will likely result,” “are expected to,” “will continue,” “‘is anticipated,” “estimate,” “project”
or similar expressions are intended to identify “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Sec-
tion 21E, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as enacted by
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
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We cautron 'you not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of
the date on which they are made. In. addition, we advise you that the factors listed below, as well as other
factors we have not currently identified, could affect our financial or other performance and could cause our
actual results for future periods to differ materially from any opinions or statements expressed with respect to
future penods or évents in any forward-looking statement

We Wlll not_undertake and specifically decline any obligation to publicly release revisions to these
forward-looking statements to reflect either circumstances after the date of the statements or the occurrence of
events whlch may cause us to re-evaluate our forward- lookmg statements, except as required by law.

In connectlon with the ‘safe harbor” provrs1ons of the Private Securmes Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
we are hereby filing cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause our actual results to
differ materially from those projected in forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf.

S RISKS RELATED TG OUR BUSINESS

Our molecular diagnostic reagents and imaging systems are at an early stage of development and we cannot
assure ‘th'e“succes‘sful development or the commercial success of these products.

Our oncology products mcludmg our molecular d1agnost1c reagents and imaging systems, are in the early
stages of development and significant additional research, development, clinical studies, ﬁnanmal resources
and. personnel w1ll be requlred to develop them into cornrnerc1ally viable products and obtain regulatory
approvals. We are developmg and commercializing molecular diagnostic reagents and imaging systems for a
variety oficancers ‘that incorporate genomic or proteomic markers we received through our collaboration with
Becton; Dickinson and Company, or BD, as part of the strategic alliance between BD and Millennium
Pharmaceutlcals Inc., or Millennium as well as other genomic or proteomic markers that have been or may be
identified mdependently of that agreement. We may farl to successfully develop and commercialize our
oncology products 1f

o .
" i 1

. chmcal research shows our products to be 1neffect1ve
.. they”do not*recelve necessary regulatory approvals or otherwise meet regulatory requirements; or

s are less eﬁect1ve than current or alternauve oncology d1agnostlc methods.
[ S ; i
1fwe fall to develop and commercxahze our molecular oncology products our revenues could be adversely
affected . ! , o




Our products are subject to FDA review, approval and regulation and which may prevent us from
commercializing any of our products currently in development.

The FDA extensively regulates the manufacture and sale of medical diagnostic devices for commercial
use. For example, we must comply with applicable FDA regulations, which can include prospective FDA
approval or clearance of products before we can market and sell them for their intended uses in the United
States.

To obtain FDA approval or clearance of our device products, we must submit a pre-market approval
application, or PMA, or notification for 510(k) clearance, depending on the controls required by the FDA.
This process can be expensive and time-consuming and can take several years. Several factors may affect our
ability to successfully obtain FDA approval or clearance for the commercialization of our products, including
the following:

o failure of the product in pre~clinical studies;
« insufficient clinical trial data to support the safety or effectiveness of the product; or
». unanticipated delays or significant unanticipated costs in our efforts to secure FDA approval.

If we fail to obtain and maintain FDA approval or clearance for any of our future products, if FDA
approval or clearance is delayed, or if we receive FDA approval for our products but labeling restrictions make
the use of the products uneconomical to our customers, our future product sales will be far less than we
anticipate and may be insufficient to sustain our operations. We have no assurance that the FDA will ever
approve or clear our future products for their intended use. In addition to the pre-market approval or 510K
clearance processes, we may face further difficulties in connection with FDA approval of our products for the
following reasons:

» FDA regulations require submission and approval of a pre-market approval application supplement for
certain changes to a product if the changes affect the safety and effectiveness of the product;

+ even if we obtain FDA appfoval of our pre-market approval applications, that approval may still not
allow us to make some of the specific claims for which we sought FDA approval; and

« any FDA approval may include significant limitations on the indicated uses for which we may market
our products, such as warnings, precautions or contraindications, requests for post-market studies, or
additional regulatory requirements.

The FDA may not approve or clear our future products or commercial enhancements to our existing
products on a timely basis, if at all. To the extent our molecular diagnostic products are intended for use as
prognostic tests in selecting subsets of patients most likely to benefit from drug therapies, development and
approval of those products may be dependent upon investigation in drug clinical trials and obtaining approval
to include the device in the labeling of the drug for which its use is intended. Our regulatory applications also
may be delayed or rejected based on changes in regulatory policies or regulations.

Some of our molecular diagnostic reagents will be sold as analyte specific reagents (ASRs). FDA defines
ASRs as antibodies, specific receptor proteins, ligands, nucleic acid sequences, and similar reagents which
through specific binding or chemical reaction with substances in a specimen are intended to use in a diagnostic
application for identification and quantification of an individual chemical substance or ligand in biological
specimens. In simple terms, an ASR is the active ingredient of an in-house laboratory test that is used in
conjunction with other general purpose reagents and general purpose instruments by a laboratory that is
certified as high complexity under the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act of 1998 as amended (CLIA) to
set up an in-house (“home brew”) test or laboratory testing service. While specimens can travel to the lab
setting up this service, the test itself cannot be marketed outside of the single lab setting up this service, nor
can clinical claims be made outside of those validated and communicated by the single lab performing the
“home brew” test. It is the responsibility of the laboratory using the ASR to develop a recipe for the test at
hand and to take responsibility for establishing and maintaining performance. Our interactions with the
laboratories that purchase our ASRs are limited and out interactions with their referring clinicians are
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restrlcted r»therefore the wonus is on the laboratory to develop, 'validate and promote the test as well as
demonstrate 1ts chmcal efficacy. If laboratories are unable to effectively develop, validate and promote “home
brew” tests our abllrty to sell these ASRs will be hmrted '

Our products are subject to revrew, approval and regulation by foreign regulatory agencies which may prevent
us from commercrahzmg any of our products currently in development

Fore1gn regulatory agencies may regulate the manufacture and sale of medical diagnostic devices for
commercial use in‘countries other than the U:S. We miust comply with these foreign regulations, which may
vary, | from country to county and may vary from those required by the FDA. These can include prospective
approval of products before we can market .and sell them.for their, pnn01pal intended uses in certain
1nternat10nal markets

Sales. of our products in the EEA are subject to, strict regulatory requirements and .approval is never
certarn Effectrve December 7, 2003, all of our products are required to comply with the European In Vitro
D1agnost1cs ‘Medical Dévices Directive (IVDD) and bear the CE mark before being imported for sale in the
EEA. The CE:mark is a symbol indicating that the device conforms to'the essential requirements of the
applicable. d1rect1ve and can be commercially distributed. throughout the EEA. The IVDD also subjects our
manufacturmg facilities to compliance inspections, and requires design, manufacturing and quality process
documentatron and controls. Some of our products domot currently bear the CE mark. We cannot be certain
that the CE mark will be granted for all our products, or that' regulatory review will not involve delays that
would adversely impact on our ability-to market and sell our products in the EEA. |

The regulatory"requirements outside the United States usually impose pre-market review or approval
requlrements for our products and cons1derat1ons similar to those in the United States apply

Government regulatron 1mposes significant restrrctrons and costs on the development and commerc1allzatlon
of our products. v

Any products: approved by the FDA ‘or forelgn regulatory agencies are st1ll subject to continual
government. review. andiregulation, so long as. the product is being marketed. Our cervical cytology products,
PrepStain, FocalPoint and the use of PrepStain with FocalPoint, have.received FDA approval, are CE marked
and are approvedifor: sale in the EU under the IVDD. Although we have received regulatory approvals, we are
still sub]ect to contlnual regulatory review and regulation regardmg the ongoing marketing, sale and use of our
cervical ' screemng products Diring this continual review process, any: subsequent discovery of previously
unknown or. unrecognized problems with the product or a failure of the: Company or the product to comply
with any applrcable regulatory Tequirements can result in, among' other thmgs '

. ﬁnes or other 01v1l penaltles

PRI

el the refusal of the FDA to approve further pre-market approval or 510(k) apphcatrons

!
Cath
i B

. suspensront or. w1thdrawal of our FDA approvals or clearances
b product recalls
. customer notlﬁcatron or ordcrs for repalr replacement or refunds, 8

s operatmg restnctlons including total or par’ual suspensron of product1on dlstnbutlon sales and
a marketrng of our products
rcustomer notrﬁcatron or orders for repair, replacement, or refunds

. 1njunctrons or
e product serzures and
. crrmmal prosecutlon of us, our ofﬁcers or our employees

Snrular consrderatrons apply outside the United States. ~ .~ - 7.
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If we are unable to keep up with technological change, our products or services may become obsolete.

Competition in the medical device industry is intense. Our products could be rendered obsolete or
uneconomical because of:

+ technological advances by current or future competitors;
« the introduction and market acceptance of competitors’ products; or
» the introduction and market acceptance of new diagnostic methods and/or treatments for cancer.

We may not be able to successfully compete against companies marketing products based on competing
technologies. Certain of our existing and potential competitors may have several competitive advantages over
us because they:

 possess greater financial, marketing, sales, distribution and technological resources;

+ have more experience in research and development, clinical trials, regulatory matters, customer
support, manufacturing and marketing;

« have received third-party payor reimbursement for their products; or

« they may collaborate or merge with other competitors in our industry and leverage their combined
intellectual property and resources against us.

These competitors may manufacture, market and sell their products or services more successfully than us,
which could adversely affect our product sales.

Our products must remain competitive in clinical impact, accuracy and analytical performance, all-in
cost, including our material charges to the laboratory as well as the laboratory’s labor and overhead costs
related to the adoption of our products, processing speed and reliability, convenience, and perception among
consumers, influential opinion leaders, clinicians, laboratories, payors, regulatory agencies, patient advocacy
groups and clinical governing bodies and associations. To effectively compete, we must keep pace with the
product development and technological change in our industry. Our products must demonstrate clinical
efficacy, analytical performance and cost effectiveness that equals or exceeds that of competing products and
technologies. We cannot guarantee that our products will be competitive in any of these areas.

We depend on a limited number of products and these products may never gain greater market acceptance.

Sales of SurePath reagents and disposables and sales, rentals, and usage fess associated with PrepStain
and FocalPoint currently account for the substantial majority of our revenues. Market acceptance of SurePath,
PrepStain and FocalPoint, as well as their combined use, will depend on our ability to convince clinical
laboratories, physicians, third party payors, other health care providers and consumers that our products can
address the limitations of the conventional Pap smear process and demonstrate clinical efficacy, analytical
performance and cost effectiveness that equals or exceeds that of competing products. We may not be able to
successfully establish that our products are better and more cost effective when compared to the conventional
Pap smear or-our competitors’ products and, as a result the market may not accept our cervical cytology
products as a replacement for the conventional Pap smear or as an alternative to our competitors’ products.
Even if SurePath, PrepStain, and FocalPoint do gain market acceptance , their level of sales will still largely
depend on the availability and level of reimbursement from third-party payors, such as private insurance plans,
managed care organizations, Medicare, and Medicaid and other government healthcare providers. There can
be no assurance that we will achieve greater market acceptance for SurePath, PrepStain, or FocalPoint, and
the failure to do so would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

In addition, the market may not accept any of the molecular diagnostic products or imaging systems that
we develop. While various diagnostic methods for cancer are currently available, few tests offer an integrated
solution for diagnosing cancer at the earliest possible stage that provides individualized predictive and
prognostic information, guides treatment selection for patients with cancer, and predicts disease recurrence.
Market demand for any molecular diagnostic products that we develop will depend primarily on acceptance by
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cl1nlcal laboratorres phys1c1ans and thrrd party payors and endorsement by influential oplmon leaders, clinical
govermng bodres and associations, patrent advocacy groups, and consumers. Commercial acceptance of our
molecular dlagnostrc tests and imaging systerns if any, will depend upon several factors, including:

. therr potenttal chmcal -advantages, including therr impact on patient management, impact on patient
outcome; impact on the costs of patlent care, and cost beneﬁt and ‘effectiveness relative to alternative
- diagnostic; methods ‘

. produict features that facilitate their adoptlon by laboratories, 1nclud1ng accuracy, reproducibility and
other.indicators of analytical performance, all-in cost, including our material charges to the laboratory
as well as the laboratory’s labor and oyerhead costs related to:the adoption of our products, impact on
laboratory organrzatron and-staffing, processing speed and rehab1hty, convenience, complexity of result
1nterpretat10n and cost effectiveness relative to alternative dragnostlc methods;

. ‘?our abrhty o desrgn and execute clinical trials whose results demonstrate the clinical value of our
products, provrde us a basis for communicating the clinical value of our products and translate into
‘ market opportunrty,

* our abthty to compete with similar or superior products developed by our competrtors

. our ablhty to burld and rnatntam or access through third partles a capable sales force; and

i IR

. ‘quallﬁcatron of our products for thlrd party medical insurance coverage and reimbursement.

If any of the molecular dlagnosttc products that we develop do not achreve srgmﬁcant market acceptance,
it could have a materral adverse effect on our business, financial condmon and results of operations.

We have a'h"lstory‘\o‘f operating losses and an accumulated deficit and we may not remain profitable.

We have a hlst"ory of operating losses. While we became profitable for the first time in 2004, we intend to
continue’ to market our products, develop new products and perform additional clinical studies, all of which
will contmue to be a drain on earnings. While our cervical cytology and slide wizard product lines have grown
in acceptance as measured by our revenues, we still operate in a very competitive environment. Additionally,
we have yét to achieve market acceptance of our molecular diagnostic products and product candidates. As of
December 31, 2004, we had cumulative net losses of approximately:$232.4 million. These losses resulted
pnnc1pally from the. costs of our research and development and sales and marketing actrvmes and other
expenses 1n excess of revenues. Our operating expenses have been concentrated in the’ followrng areas:

. research and development actmtles

+ sales and marketmg activities, mcludrng the cost and eﬁ'ect of promotronal drscounts sales and
: ‘marketrng programs and strategies; and.- : ; L !

. regulatory 1ssues including activities in connection with pre-market approval and 510K apphcatrons to
theFDA T o : RN

We expect marketmg and sales expenses, as well as regulatory expenses, associated with our products to
either continue at therr current rate or increase in the future, which could burden our drive toward continued
proﬁtablhty These expenses are a result of our expanded marketing and sales efforts to continue the
commercial rollout of our products and our efforts to obtain FDA and other approvals for our products. Our
continuing proﬁtabrllty is subject to uncertainty and will depend on a number of factors including:

* receipt of regulatory approvals or clearances for future products in a timely manner;
. successful marketrng ‘of our products in the United States and abroad

. the extent to which our products gain market acceptance;

» ability to manufaoture our products at an acceptable cost and w1th acceptable quality;

Ty

1ntroductlon of alternatrve technologies by our competltors
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* the timing and volume of system placements;

+ the timing of certain non-cash sales discounts relating to warrants held by Quest, which depend upon
the achievement of certain sales-based milestones;

¢ availability of reimbursement from third;party payors, and the extent of coverage; and

» ability to establish internal financial controls and other infrastructure necessary to support large-scale
commercial operations.

We expect to continue our profitable performance into 2005 anticipating that product sales and service
revenues sufficiently will fund our operations while our oncology business is developing products that can be
commercially introduced into the market. While we hope that 2005 will be profitable as a whole, we cannot be
certain that we will achieve profitability.

We cannot be certain of our future capltal needs and additional financing may not be available when
we need it,

Since beginning operations, we have financed our operations primarily through the private placement and
public sales of equity securities, debt facilities and product sales. We have had negative annual cash flow from
operations since inception. During the last half of 2004, we experienced positive cash flow from operations for
the first time. At December 31, 2004, we had approximately $18.9 million in cash and cash equivalents. While
we believe that we will continue to achieve overall corporate profitability in 2005, there is no certainty that we
will be able to maintain profitability and/or positive cash flows from operations. In any event, we believe that
our existing cash and existing debt and lease financing wili be sufficient to enable us to meet our future
operating cash obligations for the foreseeable future.

We may be unable to obtain adequate funds, either through financial markets or from collaborative or
other arrangements with corporate partners or other sources, when. we need them, or we may be unable to find
adequate funding on favorable terms, if at all. If we are unable to fund our future capital requirements, it
would significantly limit our ability to continue our operations. ‘

The extent of our future capital requirements depends on several factors, including:

». our-ability to maintain profitability; |

* the tlmlng and costs of product 1ntroduct10ns

« the extent of our ongoing research and development programs, including those at TnPath Oncology;
+ the progress and scope of clinical trials;

« the timing and costs required to receive both United States and foreign governmental approvals for new
products in development;

» the extent to which our products gain market acceptance;

» demand for and sales of our PrepStain and FocalPoint systems for cervical cancer screening and of
FocalPoint GS in the United States, if and when it gains FDA approval;

» the resources required to further develop our marketing and sales capabilities domestically and
internationally, and the success of those efforts;

+ the resources required to expand manufacturing capacity;
+ the costs of training laboratory personnel to become proficient with the use of our products; and

» the cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property
rights.

Many of these factors are out of our control. There is no guarantee that the assumptions underlying our
estimates about our needs for future capital will prove to be accurate.
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Our future ﬁnancmg arrangements may impact the value of your investment or may impact our rights to our
intellectual \property

We may choose t6 raise additional fundmg to meet our future capital requirements through a variety of
ﬁnancmg methods, including lease arrangements, debt or equity financings, or strategic alliances. If we were to
raise additional funding through the sale of equity or securities convertible into equity, your proportionate
ownershlp in TriPath Imaging may be diluted. In addition, if we obtain additional funds through arrangements
with collaborative' partners, we may have to relmqulsh rights to certain of our technologies or potential
products that we would otherwise seek to develop or commercialize ourselves.

If our corporate relationships are unsuccessful, our-earnings growth will be limited.

An important. element of our strategy is to enter into corporate relationships for the research and
development of alternative applications for our extensive body of intellectual property and, where appropriate,
for the market 1ntroduct10n of some of our new products. We currently have a corporate relationship with BD
for the development of diagnostic and’ pharmacogenomrc oncology tests and with Ventana to sell and
dlstnbute a Ventana branded version of our interactive histology imaging system. We ‘may enter into
addltlonal corporate relationships in the future. We believe that recent advances in genomlcs biology, and
informatics ' are prov1d1ng new opportunities to leverage our proprietary technology and that some of our
products appeal 'to markets that are better served by other companies. The success of these arrangements is
largely; dependent on technology and other intellectual property contributed by our collaborators or their
market posmon and selling and distribution strength, as well as their efforts, resources and skills. Our existing
and future corporate relationships are also dependent upon our collaborators™ continued willingness to work
with us, as opposed to our competitors and to prioritize their projects with us. There can be no assurance that

- we will succeed in implementing and finalizing any new corporate relationships to facilitate the exploitation of
our intellectual property estate or to augment our sales and distribution activities. The failure to do so could
have a material adverse effect on our future prospects inside and outside of the cervical cytology or molecular
dlagnostlc markets. and could impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We have. llmrted manufacturmg expenence and capacrty and we may not be able to establish sufficient
manufacturmg capabllrty and capacity, either of whrch could have a material adverse effect on our business.
We manufacture SurePath PrcpStam and FocalPomt and related products as well as our molecular
diagnostic reagents. and imaging systems at either our Burlington, North Carolina, or our Redmond,
Washirigton- facilities. Currently, we have limited manufacturing experience in and capabilities for high-
volume test" k1t manufacturmg While we believe we have sufficient capacity to meet near term customer
demand for our cervical cytology and molecular diagnostic products, and while we have'introduced lean
manufactunng into our Burlington, North Carolina operatxons we may have to substantially increase our
manufacturing capablhtles in the future if our products gain wider market acceptance. We may not be able to
recruit and retain :skilled: manufacturmg personnel to establish sufficient manufacturing capability and
capacity. Even if we are able to establish sufficient manufacturing capability and capacity, we still may be
~ unable to manufacture our products
s in a timely manner'

. ata cost or 1n quantmes necessary to make them commerc1ally viable;

. m\ conformance wrth quahty system requirements; or

«ina ‘rnanner which othcrwise ensures our products’ quality.
B I
If we ‘cannot successfully Increase our manufacturmg capability and capac1ty, if and when needed , or
successfully contract w1th third parties to manufacture our products, our busmess and our profitability w111
suffer. -




We may not be able to manufacture our products in a timely or cost effective manner because we depend on
single and limited source suppliers for our products’ components.

We currently obtain certain components for our products including PrepStain and FocalPoint compo-
nents, on a single source basis from certain suppliers. If any of these sole-source suppliers are unable to
provide an adequate and constant supply of components, we will need to modify any components provided by
additional or replacement suppliers. If we are unable to establish additional or replacement sources of supply
on a cost-competitive and timely basis from these suppliers, we may need to delay or halt our manufacturing
process. If any of the components of our products were no longer available in the marketplace, we could be
forced to further develop our technology to incorporate alternate components. We also may try to establish
relationships with additional suppliers or vendors for components for our products, so long as we are not
prohibited from doing so by any existing contractual obligations. We may not be able to further develop our
technology to incorporate new components or establish relationships with additional suppliers or vendors for
the necessary components of our products.

In addition, use of any new components or replacement components from alternative suppliers into our
products may require us to submit suppiemental submissions to the FDA for its approval or clearance before
we could market our products with new or replacement components. Ultimately, we may not be able to
successfully develop, obtain, or incorporate replacement components into our products. Even if we were able
to successfully incorporate new components into our products, the FDA may not approve or clear these new
components quickly, if at all.

If we do not successfully expand our marketing and sales resources, we may not be able to maintain
profitability.

We are currently expanding our marketing and sales forces to more effectively market our cervical
cytology products. Further, it is our intent to channel our molecular diagnostic products through this expanded
marketing and sales force, when appropriate. Even with the increased size of our sales force, we may not be
able to successfully promote our cervical cytology or molecular diagnostic products to clinical laboratories,
health care providers, including physicians, and third-party payors or penetrate the large commercial
laboratory segment to the extent anticipated. In addition, we must continue to educate health care providers
and third-party payors regarding the clinical benefits and cost-effectiveness of our cervical cytology and
molecular diagnostic products because of the market’s limited awareness. We may not be able to recruit and
retain additional skilled marketing, sales, service or support personnel to help in our achievement these goals
when needed. In addition, we find that our current marketing and sales force cannot effectively market our
molecular diagnostic products forcing us to seek an alternative approach.

Our marketing success in the United States and abroad will debend on whether we can:

« obtain required regulatory approvals;

» successfully demonstrate the cost-effectiveness and clinical-effectiveness of our products;

+ further develop our direct sales capabilities; and

« establish arrangements with contract sales organizations, distributors and marketing partners.

If we cannot successfully expand our marketing and sales capabilities in the United States and in
international markets, we may never become profitable.

We may have difficulty managing the expansion of our operations, and failure to do so will harm our
business.

We have experienced growth in our employee base and in the scope of our operations, and we anticipate
that further expansion may be required to achieve growth in our customer base and to develop and seize
market opportunities. This expansion could place a significant strain on our senior management team and on
our operational and financial resources.




To manage the expected growth of our operations and personnel, we will need to improve existing, and
implement new operational and financial systems, procedures, and controls. We also will need to expand, train,
and manage ‘our growmg employee base as well as expand and maintain' close coordination among our sales
and marketrng, ﬁnance administrative, and operations staff. Further, we may be required to enter into
addrnonal relatlonshtps wrth various suppliers and other third parties necessary to our business. A successful
contlnued expans1on may also require us to further develop expertise in complex joint venture negotiations.
We cannot guarantee that our current and planned systems, procedures, and controls will be adequate to
support our: future operations, that we will be able to hire, train, retain, motivate, and ‘manage the required
personnel ;0r . that we will be able to identify, manage, and benefit from existing and potential strategic
relat1onsh1ps and market opportunities. If we do not effectively manage the budgeting, forecasting, and .other
process-control i issues presented by such expansion, our business will suffer. If we are unable to undertake new
business due-to. a shortage of staff or resources, our growth will be impeded. Therefore, there may be times
when our opportun1t1es for revenue growth may be limited by the capacity of our internal and external
resources rather than by the absence of market demand.

In recent years we made some significant changes to our management team and to our Board of
Drrectors Although we believe that the new members of our management team are currently integrated with
the other membérs. of our management team, we cannot assure you that our management team in its current
form or any future form will be able to continue to work together effectively or manage our growth
successfully. We believe that the successful integration of any new members of management that we may hire,
and cooperatlon of our existing management team is cntrcal to our abtllty to manage our operat1ons effectively
and- supportl our ant1c1pated future growth.

'

We: depend on patents, copyrlghts, licenses and other proprietary rights to grow our business and we may not
be ablé to adequately protect all of our proprietary nghts.

B

Our 1ong-term success largely depends on our ability to market products that are technologically
competitive. If we fail to obtain or maintain these protections, we may not be able to prevent third parties from’
using lour proprietary rights. To protect our proprietary technology, rights and know-how, we rely on a
combinatidn iof patents, trade secrets, copyrights, and confidentiality agreements.

:'We‘:cu‘r'r‘ently“hold over 100 foreign patents and over 110 U.S. patents. These patents will expire from
2004 through 2019, In addition, our molecular diagnostic reagents incorporate genomic or proteomic markers
we received through our collaboration with BD as well as other genomic or proteomic markers that have been
identified. independently of that agreement. Our approach to marker discovery, identification, and prioritiza-
tion i$-based on"correlation with patient, outcome and includes the evaluation of markers that have been
previously identified by others as well as novel markers that have not been previously associated with our
specific product indications. As a result, to ensure our freedom to utilize known markers and integrate them
into our product candidates, we will in certain instances be required to license them from third parties. We are
concurrently ‘pursiting intellectual property protection for the novel markers that we have identified and the
proprietary. formulanons that we are -creating from the combination of either novel or known markers as well
as for molecular imaging systems. However, we .cannot be sure that we will be able to license markers on
acceptable terms, if at all, or establish intellectual property protection of our novel markers, proprietary
forrulations or molecular imaging systems which could make the poss1b111ty of prracy of our technology more
lrkely

Our reliance“on patents poses the following risks:

K

o any patent appllcatrons that we file may not ultlmately issue as patents;
. patents we obtam may not be broad enough to protect our propnetary rights;

. the claJms allowed in any of our existing or future patents may not provide compet1t1ve advantages for
- our products

"
i

. competltors may challenge or circumvent our patents or pendmg applications; and
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+ in certain foreign countries, protection of our patent and other intellectual property may be unavailable
or very limited.

This may make the possibility of piracy of our technology and products more likely. We cannot guarantee
that the steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property will be adequate to prevent infringement or
misappropriation of our technology. In addition, detection of infringement or misappropriation is difficult.
Even if we do detect infringement or misappropriation of our technology, we may be unable to enforce our
proprietary rights, which could result in harm to our business.

- Litigation may be necessary to defend against claims of infringement, to enforce patents, trademarks and
copyrights, or to protect trade secrets and could result in substantial cost to, and diversion of effort by us.
There can be no assurance that we would prevail in any such litigation. In addition, the laws of some foreign
countries do not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent, as do the laws of the U.S. We may engage in
litigation to attempt to:

+ enforce our patents;
* protect 6ur trade secrets or know-how;
"+ defend ourselves against claims that we infringe the rights of others; or
¢ determine the scope and validity of the patents or intellectual property rights of others.

As of March 2005, we are engaged in patent litigation with one of our largest competitors, Cytyc
Corporation. In this proceeding, we are claiming among other things that Cytyc’s ThinPrep Imaging System
infringes certain of our patents. Cytyc is claiming that its product does not infringe our patents and that certain
of our patents are invalid. See “Legal Proceedings” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004, as well as any updated in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on

- Form 8-K for the current fiscal year.

This, or any other litigation could be unsuccessful, result in substantial cost to us, and divert our
management’s attention, which could harm our business.

In addition, we have entered into confidentiality agreements with all of our employees who we believe
should sign such agreements, and several of our consultants and third-party vendors. These agreements also
require employees and consultants to disclose to us ideas, developments, discoveries or inventions they
conceive during employment or consultation. They also must assign any proprietary rights in any inventions
conceived or developed while employed by us if such relate to our business and technology. These agreements
may not provide meaningful protection for our confidential information if there is unauthorized use or
disclosure of our proprietary information. There can be no assurance that the obligations of our employees and
consultants and third parties with whom we have entered into confidentiality agreements to maintain the
confidentiality of trade secrets and proprietary information will effectively prevent disclosure of our confiden-
tial information. There also can be no assurances that our trade secrets or proprietary information will not be
independently developed by our competitors.

The risk of third-party claims of infringement against us is high because our industry depends on patents
and other proprietary rights.

The large role that patents play in our industry in general may pose the following risks for us:

*» we cannot be sure that our products or technologies do not infringe patents of competitors that may be
granted in the future pursuant to pending patent applications;

» we cannot be sure that our products do not infringe any existing patents or proprietary rights of third
parties; and ,

« we cannot be sure that a court would rule that our products do not infringe any existing third-party
patents or that a court would not invalidate any existing patents in our favor.
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Ifa court were 'to uphold any claims of 1nfr1ngement made by ex1strng patent holders against us, we could
then be: . ' ¢

,® prevented from selling our products;

(2 requrred to pay damages
gl i :
. requ1red to obtam hcenses from the owners of the patents or ,

e requlred to redes1gn our products.

“

In the event that a court was to uphold a claim of patent 1nfr1ngement against us, we may not be able to
obtarn’ licenses from the owners of the patents or be able to successfully redesign our products to avoid patent
1nfr1ngement If we were unable to obtain the necessary licenses or successfully redesign our products, it could
senously harm our. abrhty to become a proﬁtable company.

The cost to us, of any htrganon or other proceeding relatmg to mtellectual property rights, even if resolved
in our favor could be. substantial. Such litigation may" also cause a diversion of our management’s time and
attentron from our busrness Some of our competitors may be able to sustain the financial and other costs of
complex patent l1t1gat1on more eﬂectrvely than we can because they have substantially greater resources.
Uncertamtles resultmg from the initiation and continuation of any ht1gat1on could have a material adverse
effect on our ablhty to contlnue our operatlons :

We face specral r1sks related to mternatlonal sales and operatlons because we have limited experience in
conductmg our busmess in other countries.

We are currently sellmg our products to customers in Austraha A51a, Canada, Europe, and South
Americd. While ‘we are evaluating marketing and sales channels abroad, including contract sales organiza-
tions, dlstnbutors and marketing partners, we have very limited foreign sales channels in place and except for
Canada ‘where we: sell- through our own direct sales force, we market and sell our products outside the

“Us. pnmarlly through a network of regional dlstnbutors Our success in most international markets is, to a
large extent) drctated by the performance of our regional distributors: There can be no assurance that we will
successfully develop significant international sales capabilities or that, if we establish such capabilities, we will
be successful in obtaining reimbursement or any regulatory approvals required in foreign countries. There can
be no assurance . that we .will effectively manage our network of independent regional distributors. Our
international sales and operations -may be limited or disrupted by-the imposition of government controls,
export license requ1rements pohtlcal instability, trade restrictions, changes in tariffs, difficulties in staffing and
mariaging 1nternatronal operations, changes in applicable'laws, less favorable intellectual property laws, longer
payment- ,cycles difficulties in collecting accounts receivable, fluctuations in currency exchange rates and
potent1al adyerse tax consequences. Forelgn regulatory agencres often estabhsh product standards d1ﬁ"erent
all, could have a materral adverse effect on our mternatronal ‘business operations. Additionally, if srgnrﬁcant
1nternatlonal Sales occur our business, financial condition’ ‘and tesults of operations could be adversely affected
by ﬂuctuatrpns in currency exchange rates as well as increases in duty rates. There can be no assurance that we
will be able to successfully commercialize our products.or any future products in any foreign market.

Our; stock prlce lS hlghly volatile and the value of your mvestment will lrkely fluctuate.

Our stock pnce has from time to time, expenenced extreme pnce and volume fluctuations. Often these
ﬂuctuatrons are unrelated or disproportionate to our actual operatmg performance. Many factors could cause
the market pr1ce of our stock to decline, 1ncludmg

. fa1lure to successfully 1mplement aspects of our growth strategy;
+ failure to achreve revenue and profitability results-expected among those in the investment community;
] ‘failu‘rewto me“etiresearch and development goals related to our products and services;

. Ite‘c‘hnological‘ infiovations by our competitors or introductions of competing technologies;
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+ investor perception of the biotechnology and medical device industry; and
« general technology or biotechnology trends.

Occasionally, when the market price of a stock has been volatile, holders of that stock have instituted
securities class action litigation against the company that issued the stock. If any of our stockholders brought
such a lawsuit against us, even if the lawsuit was without merit, we could incur substantial costs defending the
lawsuit. The lawsuit would also divert the time and attention of our management from our business.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock could cause the market price of our common
stock to decline.

Future sales of common stock by us or any significant shareholder could adversely affect the market price
of our common stock. For example, the lock-up provision contained in our Securities Purchase Agreement,
our largest shareholder, expired in February 2003. As a result, in addition to 2,950,680 shares owned by Roche
and its affiliates that have no lock-up restrictions, and subject to applicable securities laws, Roche was entitled
to sell up to 2,500,000 shares, the sale of which was previously restricted, during the 12 months following
February 2003, and may sell up to an additional 2,500,000 shares, the sale of which was also previously
restricted, during the 12 months following February 2004. If Roche sells all or a significant portion of these
shares, our stock price may decline. There can be no assurance that Roche will not attempt to sell all or most
of its shares and the value of your investment may fluctuate as-a result of such sales.

In addition, if we sell any equity securities, the market price of our common stock could be adversely
affected. : ,

Our significant stockholders have the ability to influence significant decisions regarding our future.

Roche is our single largest stockholder. As of March 5, 2004, Roche beneficially owned approximately
21% of our outstanding common stock. Roche also has the right to designate one member of our Board of
Directors. In addition; as of March 5, 2004, BD beneficially owned approximately 7% of our outstanding
common stock. As a result, those significant stockholders are able to significantly influence all matters
requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and the approval of significant corporate
transactions. This concentration of ownership could also delay or prevent a change in control of us that may be
favored by other stockholders.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INDUSTRY

We may be unable to attain or maintain the required compliance with regulations governing manvufacturing
of medical diagnostic devices.

Manufacturers of medical diagnostic devices face strict federal, national, state or local regulations
regarding the quality of manufacturing. For example, the FDA periodically inspects the manufacturing
facilities of diagnostic device manufacturers to determine compliance with regulations. OQur current and future
manufacturing and design operations must comply with these and all other applicable regulations, including
regulations imposed by other governments. If we fail to comply with quality systems regulations we could face
civil or criminal penalties or enforcement proceedings. These proceedings may require us to recall a product,
to stop placing our products in service or to stop selling our products. Similar results could occur if we violate
equivalent foreign regulations. We may not be able to attain or maintain compliance with quality systems
requirements. Any failure to comply with the applicable manufacturing regulations would have a material
adverse effect on our business.

If we fail to obtain adequate levels of third-party reimbursement for our products, the commercial success of
our products will be significantly limited.

Our ability to successfully sell our products for cervical cancer screening in the United States and other
countries depends on the availability of adequate reimbursement from third-party payors such as private
insurance plans, managed care organizations, Medicare and Medicaid and government healthcare providers.
Virtually all of our revenues will be dependent on customers who rely on third party reimbursement. Third-
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party; healthcare payors in the United States: and elsewhere are increasingly, sensitive to containing healthcare
costs, and . heav11y scrutinize new technology. as a primary factor in:increased healthcare costs. Third-party
payors may mﬂuence the pricing or perceived attractiveness of our products and services by regulating the
maximum: -amount of reimbursement they provide or by not providing any reimbursement. Medical commu-
nity ot third- party healthcare payors may deny or delay acceptance of our products or may provide
relmbursement at levels that are inadequate to support adoption of our.technologies.

If these thlrdsparty payors do not reimburse for our preparation and screening products, or only provide
relmbursement 51gn1ﬁcantly below the amount laboratories charge patients to perform screening with our
products our potent1al market and revenues will be 51gn1ﬁcantly limited. Use of our products may never
becorne w1de1y relmbursed and the Jevel of relmbursement we obtain may never be sufficient to permit us to
generate substant1a1 revenue. ‘

To successfully market FocalPoint and PrepStain together two Common Procedural Terminology Codes,
or CPT codes, were establlshed covering the combined use of these products by the Center for Medicare and
Medicaid Serv1ces (“CMS”) These CPT codes are applicable to the combined use of our SurePath slides
screened using our’ FocalPomt slide profiler. Alsoincluded in the CMS announcement were tentative payment
determlnanons whrch were finalized-on November 8, 2002. The payment determination for the cytopathology
tests provtdes for an appropriate reimbursement amount by combining current payment amounts for the liquid
based slide preparations and a portion of either of the' two codes that represent the automated screening
system. CMS 1ssued a Program Memorandum with instructions on the 2003 Clinical Laboratory Fee
Schedule to its carriers and intermediaries on November 8, 2002. There can be no assurance, however, that
the laboratorles claiming reimbursement under these CPT codes ' will be successful in obtaining favorable
rermbursement

Convincing th1rd party payors to prov1de relmbursement isa costly and time consuming process because
rermbursement approval is required from each payor individually; and obtaining this approval from the third-
party payor typlcally requires the presentation of scientific and clinical data to support the use of the products.
Whether a: th1rd party payor is willing to provide reimbursement for the use of our products at a level that can
allow our, company to succeed depends on several unpredictable factors including:

. the level of .demand for our products by physicians;

*' the payor’s determination that our products are an improvement over the conventional Pap smear
process and

v

. the payor s determmanon that our products are safe and etTectwe medically necessary, appropriate for
i spemﬁc patlent populations, and cost effective.

We' may face ' particular difficulties convincing thitd- -party payors that our products are cost effective
because ' the' up- front direct costs of using the products will initially be greater than the cost of the
conventtonal Pap'smear. As a result, we will need to convince third-party payors that the use of our products
will result i 1n a net; overall cost savings to the' health care system.

As w1th rour cerv1ca1 cytology products, ,our molecular diagnostic reagents and imaging systems will be
pnmanly purchased by medlcal institutions and laboratories that bill third-party payers such as government
healthcare. admlnlstratlon authorities, private health coverage insurers, managed care organizations and other
similar: orgamzatlons ‘Qur!ability to earn sufficient returns on these products will depend in part on the extent
to which relmbursement for these products and related freatments will be available to our customers from
third-party: payers Allvof our slide based ‘molecular \diagnostic reagents are being formatted as either
1mmunoh1stochem1stry or immunocytochemistry tests that: may be performed either with or without image
analysis. Currently, genenc billing codes and reimbursement schedules exist for these technologies, with and
without image analy51s and the opportunity -exists to enhance third party reimbursement if the-results of
clinical studies support unique and high value clinical claims. For blood based screening assays, we will most
likely be'tequired to work with government healthcare administrative authorities to establish new billing codes
and rermbursement schedules. Under any circumstance where we are applying for new codes, the process is
time consurmng, there can be no guarantee we will obtain the new code, and if and when we do obtain the new
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code, that the majority of our customers will be -successful to obtain reimbursement at the levels specified by
the code from their payer population. Third-party payers are increasingly attempting to limit both the coverage
and the level of reimbursement of products to. contain costs, and if they are successful, our ability to generate
revenue growth and profitability from our molecular diagnostic products will be adversely effected.

We can only sell our products to a limited number of customers.

A significant portion of our product sales will be concentrated among a relatively small number of large,
and medium-sized, clinical laboratories. Moreover, due to consolidation in the clinical laboratory industry, we
expect that the number of potential domestic customers for our products may decrease. These factors increase
our dependence on sales to the largest clinical laboratories and the bargaining power of those potential
customers. OQur market research indicates that nearly 40% of all U.S. Pap smears are processed by the two
largest laboratories. Each of these companies operates multiple laboratory facilities nationwide.

We will have to make this number of potential customers aware of our products and then convince them
to accept and use our products. To gain acceptance of our products within this small customer base, we will
have to successfully demonstrate the benefits of our products over the conventional Pap smear process and
other alternative methods of sample collection, slide preparation and cervical cancer screening. In addition, to
generate demand for our products among these clinical laboratories, we believe that we must:

+ educate clinicians, laboratorians and other health care providers on, and convince them of, the clinical
benefits and cost-effectiveness of our products; and

» demonstrate to clinicians, laboratorians and other health care providers that adequate levels of third-
party payor reimbursement will be available for our products.

Ultimately, we may not be able to successfully sell our products to large clinical laboratories to the extent
that we anticipate. Even if we do successfully sell our products to large clinical laboratories, those sales may
not generate enough revenue to maintain our profitability.

We are at risk of product liability claims and may be unable to maintain adequate insurance against such
liabilities.

The commercial screening of Pap smears in particular has historically generated significant malpractice
litigation. As a result, we face product liability, errors and omissions or other claims if our products are alleged
to have caused a false- negative diagnosis. Although we have product liability insurance, it could become
increasingly difficult for us to obtain and maintain product liability coverage at a reasonable cost or in amounts
sufficient to protect us against potential losses. If we are unable to obtain adequate product liability insurance
at a reasonable cost a successful product liability claim or a series of claims brought against us could require us
to pay substantial amounts that would decrease our profitability, if any.

Our success depends on our ability to retain our key personnel.

We will depend heavily on the principal members of our management and scientific staff. The loss of their
services might impede achievement of our strategic objectives or research and development. Our success
depends on our ability to retain key employees and to attract additional qualified employees, which may be
particularly difficult to do in the future. Competition for highly skilled scientific and management personnel is
intense, particularly in the geographic areas in which we currently are located, and these resources are scarce
relative to the needs of a growing high technology business sector. The failure to recruit such personnel or the
loss of existing personnel could adversely affect our business.
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